TMF HOLDINGD LIMITED

A Tata Enterprise

ANNUAL REPORT
MARCH 31, 2025




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nasser Munjee Mrs. Varsha Purandare
Independent Director & Chairman Independent Director and Chairman
(Resigned w.e.f. 11/6/2025)

Mr. N. V. Sivakumar Mr. P. B. Balaji

Independent Director Non-Executive Director
{Resigned w.e.f. 11/6/2025) {Resigned w.e.f. 10/6/2025)
Mr. Dhiman Gupta Mr. Samrat Gupta
Non-Executive Director Non- Executive Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 23/12/ 2024) (Resigned w.e.f. 15/10/2024)
Dr. Vaijayanti Pandit vir. Asim Mukhopadhyay*
Independent Director Non-Executive Director
{Appointed w.e.f. 9/6/2025} (Appointed on 9/6/2025)
ivir. Sudeep Bhalla* Mr. Prakash Pandey
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
{Appointed on 26/6/2025) (Appointed w.e.f. 03/04/2025)

*Appointment is subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India

MANAGER & KMP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECERETARY
Mr. Anand Bang Ms. Ridhi Gangar Mr. Vinay Lavannis
(Till 2/4/2025) {Till. 22/11/2024) (TilF 31/3/2025)

Mr. Vishwanathan Nallepalli  Mr. Amit Mittal Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi
{From 26/6/2025) (From 22/11/2024 {From 1/4/2025)

Till 15/4/2025))

Mr. Mohit Agarwal
{(From 15/4/2025)

STATUTOTY AUDOTORS
M/s. B. R. Maheswari & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants




CORPORATE INDENTIFICATION NUMBER (CIN)
U65923MH2006PLC162503

REGISTERED OFFICE
14, 4" Floor, Sir H.C. Dinshaw Building 16,Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai- 400001
Tel: 491 22 6172 9600

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

MUFG intime India Private Limited
{(Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 1t Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai-400083
Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com / E-mail 1d: prakash.sampat@in.mpms.mufg.com
Tel: +91 22 6656 8484, Fax: +91 22 6656 8494

BANKERS
HDFC Bank Limited
DEPOSITORIES

Central Depository (Services)
Limited
National Securities Depository Limited

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

iDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Ground Floor, Asian Building,

17, R Kamani Road, Ballard Estate,
Fort, Mumbai, Maharashtra
400001

Tel: +91 22 022 4080 7000;

Fax: +91 22 66311776

e-mail:
gaurav.jeswani@idbitrustee.com
web: www.idbitrustee.com

LISTED AT {Debt Securities)
National Stock Exchange of india
Limited

(NCDs and CP)




TAF HOLDINGS LIBITED

DIRECTORS REPORT
MARCH 31, 2028




To,
THE MEMBERS
TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Directors feel privileged fo present the 18" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
company and the statement of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025.

1. BACKGROURND

TMF Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘TMFHL' or ‘Company’, is 2 subsidiary of
Tata Motors Limited.

The Company is a ‘Systemically Important, Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company’
(NBFC) and classified as Core investment Company (CIC- ND- Sh vide registration No. N-13.01836
dated October 11, 2017. '

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS
Rs. in Crare)

Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24
Totat Income 1067.79 168.25
Less:
Finance Costs 268.77 285.38
impairment of financial instruments and other assets ~2.97 -1.52
Employee benefits expenses - -
Other expenses 3.91 3.7
Depreciation / Amortization 0.36 0.37
Profit/{loss) Before Exceptional item -162.28 -119.68
Exceptional item {Gain) 841.07 -
Profit/{loss) Before Tax 478.78 -119.68
Less: Tax Expense 104.37 -
Profit/(loss) After Tax 374.42 -119.68
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 374.42 -119.68
Balance brought forward from previous year (distributable) -440.48 -177.45
Arncunt Avaitable for Appropriations -56.07 297,13
Appropriations
Statutory Reserve* {74.89} -
Distributicns made to hoiders of instruments entirely equity in 143.35 143.36
nature
Issuance expenses for Perpetual Debentures - -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet -284.31 -4£40.4Q




*In the absence of profit for FY2024 and FY2023 respectively, the Company was not required to
transfer any amount fo Statutory Reserve.

3. BIVIDEND
The Company has not declared dividend for FY 2024-25 on Equity Shares in view of losses.
4. CPERATIONS

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of investing, granting of loans, guarantess, and
other forms of finance to its subsidiaries and Tata Motors group companies and to carry such other
activities as may be permitted under the CIC guidelines. During the year, the Company recorded a
total income of Rs.107.78 crores (as against Rs.168.25 crores for previous year) and profit before tax
of Rs. 478.79 crores (as against loss before tax of Rs.112.68 crores in FY24).

5. PERFORMARNCE OF SUBSIDIARIES
TMF Business Services Limited (TMFBSL)

During the year, the Company recorded a tofal income of Rs. 53.47 crores and loss before tax of
Rs.58.26 crores. Loss after tax for the year was at Rs. 63.54 crores.

8. FINANCE

The total borrowings as of March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 3,261.08 crores comprising mainly of Non-
Convertible Debentures and Inter-Corporate Deposits. The Debt / Equity ratio as on March 31, 2025
is 0.58. The Company complies with all the regulatory ratios applicable to Core Investment Company
{CIC) as per RBI Guidelines.

9. CREDIT RATING

The ratings assigned to the Company in respect of borrowings are as follows:

No. U liinstrument. i e o D CRISTER@ e oo L ICRA% L L CARE L

1. Commercial Paper CRISHL. A1+ ICRA AT+ CARE A1+

2 Shert Term Bank Facility NA NA CARE At+

3 Long Term Bank Facility NA ICRA AA+! | CARE AA+/ Stable
Stable

4 Non-Convertible Debenture CRISIL AA+/ Stable | ICRA AA+] | CARE AA+ Stabie
Stable

5 Perpetual Bonds CRISIL AA+/ Stable | NA NA

@ Rating & Cutlook upgraded w.e.f. June 13, 2024
* Long term rating upgraded w.e f. July 05, 2024

10. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is Rs.37,50,00,00,000 (Rupees
Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Crore) and Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.1741,59,34 420/
(Rupees One Thousand Seven Forty One- Crores Fifty Nine Lakhs Thirty-Four Thousand Four
Hundred and Twenty) consisting of 17,41,593,442 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.




11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Eleven mesetings of the Board were held during the vear under review. For details of meetings of the
Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

12. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Company has constituied following Committees of the Board of Directors:

Audit Committee;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
Corporate Social Responsibility Committes;
Risk Management Committes;

Assets Liability Supervisory Committee;
Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee;

IT Strategy Committee.

@mpap T

The details including composition of the committee (terms of reference, attendance) are included in
the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company, being a Non-Banking Finance Company is exempt from the provisions as applicable
to loans, guarantees, security and investments under Section 186 of the Act. Therefore, no detat!s are
provided.

14. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY/ DIGITAL STRATEGY

The Company has adequate [nformation Technology (IT) structure/ Digital Strategy (DS)
commensurate with its size and operations.

15. COMPLIANCE & REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The Company has complied with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidefines. The compliance
requirements across various depariment are communicated comprehensively through regular
communications. The Company uses web-based tool as a repository of compliance tasks which are
updated as required by the Regulators. The compilations of these reports are reviewed by the Audit
Committee/Beoard.




16. REGULATORY ACTION

There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and operations of the Company in future.

18..DEPOSITS FRORM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of
principal or interest on deposits from public is outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

19. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Return
in Form MGT-7 for FY 2024-25 is availtable on the website at www.tatamotors.com.

20. ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared in accordance with Ind AS
as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

21. PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) and not being involvad in any industriai
or manufacturing activities, there is no material information on technology absorption to be furnished.
The Company continues to adopt and use the latest technologies to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of its business operations.

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year under review was nil and the
Foreign Exchange Cutgo during the vear under review in terms of actual outflow was nil,

22. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company had appointed Mr. Prakash Pandey (DIN: 10850813) as an Additional Director
designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from December 23, 2024 subject to
approval of Reserve Bank of India and Members at the ensuing General Meeting based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Consequent to RBI's approval his
appointment came in effect from April 3, 2025.

During the year, Mr. Dhiman Gupta (DIN: 08420213), resigned as Non-Executive Director from the
Board of Directors of the Company and its commitiees with effect from December 23, 2024.

In addition, Mr. Samrat Gupta (DIN: 07071479) resigned as Non-Executive Director, from the Board
of Directors of the Company and its Committees with effect from October 15, 2024.

After closing of the financial year, the foliowing are the changes in the constitution of Board:
- Dr. Vaijayanti Pandit (DIN: 06742237) has been appointed as an Additional Direcior of the
Company to be designated as Independent Director w.e f. June 8, 2025:
- Mr. Asim Mukhopadhyay (DIN 06520288) has been recommended to be appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company to be designated as Non-Executive Director from June 9,
2025 or such later date as approved by the Reserve Bank of India (RBIY;




- Mr. Sudeep Bhatlla (DIN 11160825) has been recommended o be appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company to be designated as Non-Executive Director from June 26, 2025 or
such later date as approved by the Reserve Bank of India (RBi);

- Mr. Nasser Munjee, Independent Director, Mr. N. V. Sivakumar, Independent Director have
resigned from the Board w.e.f June 11, 2025 and Mr, P. B. Balaji, Non-Executive Director has
resigned from the Board w.e.f. June 10, 2025 due to their pre-occupations.

The Board placed on record its appreciation and sincere gratitude for the va[uab[e contribution/
guidance/ services rendered by outgoing Directors during their tenure.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, the Independent Directors have submitted
declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(8) of the
Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”). There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent
directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. The Directors have also
disclosed their fit and proper status in accordance with the guidelines of RBI. The Board is of the
opinion that the independent Directors of the Company have the required integrity, expertise, and
experience (inciuding the proficiency).

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and reimbursement
of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Commitiee of the
Company.

Mr. Amit Mittal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in place of Ms. Ridhi Gangar effect from
November 22, 2024.

The following were the changes in KMPs of Company post the closing of year under review:

- Mr. Anand Bang ceased to be Manager and KMP of the Company with effect from April 2,
2025,

- Mr. Neera] Dwivedi was appointed as Company Secretary in place of Mr. Vinay Lavannis w.e f
April 1, 2025. )

- Mr. Mohit Agarwal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in place of Mr. Amit Mittal with
effect from April 15, 2025 subsequent to resignation of Mr. Amit Mittal with effect from Aprif
15, 2025.

23. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaiuation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations. The parformance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all
the directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of
hoard processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated
by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of criteria such as the
composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, sic. ‘

In a separate mesting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the Board
as a whole and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of
executive directers and non-executive directors.




The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and
committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

The performance of the Board, its commitices, and individual directors was discussed at the Board
Meeting. Performance evaiuation of independent Directors was done by the entire board, excluding
the Independent Directors.

24. POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & REMUNERATION POLICY AND OTHER
DETAILS

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) based on the requirements of the Company,
recommends the appointment of Directors (Independent / Non — Executive) o the Board, as and when
required,

The Company has adopted the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Paersonnel, and
other employees of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 78(3) of the Companies Act,
2013. The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framad to ehcourage diversity
of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age, and gender in the Board. The Remuneration
Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all cther employees is aligned to the philosophy
on the commitment of fostering a culture of growth with trust. The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure
that the level and composition of the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and alf
other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to successfully run
the Company.

Salient features of the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:
= Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees and Commission {o be paid to independent
Directors and Non-fndependent Non-Executive Directors, in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and as recommended by the NRC: and
= No remuneration would be payable fo Directors for services rendered in any other
capacity unless the services are of a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion
that the Director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.

The Company has also adopted a ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy for ascertaining the ‘fit and propar’ critera at
the time of appointment of directors and on continuous basis, pursuant to the RBI Master Directions
for NBFCs.

25. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Company has adequate Internal Audit Function commensurate with its size and operations.
26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internai controls for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the business, including adherence to the Companies’ policies, safeguarding of assets, prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures. The Company has adopted ‘Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSC) 2013’ as its intemal controls framework which covers all the essential
components of internal controls as stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as required by
the Companies Act, 2013.




Company has adopted Tata Motors Group’s ‘Cne Control Framework’ and convirols testing for the TML
Group entities is performed by Group Control Tower (GCT). The Group uses a tool {called ‘Highbond’)
for documenting risk and controls and even for testing of controis.

Based on results of assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of the controls, Company
has concluded that Company’s Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective during the
financial reporting as of March 31, 2025.

27. RISK AND CONCERRNS

The company has been proactively enhancing its Risk Management Framework in response to ifs
business growth. This involves a thorough, consistent review of all critical risks through its enterprise
risk management framework, fed by the Risk Management Committee. The Asset Liability Supervisory
Committee plays a crucial role in ensuring assets and liabilities are properly aligned, while the Risk
Management Committee offers a comprehensive review of the company's risk portfolio, regularly
discussed with the Board of Directors.

28. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has adopted the Whistte-Blower
Policy which provides a formal mechanism for all employees of the Company to approach the
Management/ Audit Commitiee and make protective disclosures o the Management about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Cenduct as guided by
policies pertaining to Consequence Management, Anti Bribery and Corruption, Conflict of Interest etc.
The disclosures reported are addressed in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the
Policy. No employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle
Blower Policy of the Company is placed on the website of the company i.e. www.tatamotors.com.

2. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOWMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTICN, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at warkplace and has a Policy on prevention,
prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at workpiace in {ine with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace, The
Company has not received any complaint on sexuat harassment during the year.

30. STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company has appointed M/s B R Maheshwari & Co. LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company
for FY 2025 to 2027 and appointment for FY 25 will be placed in the ensuing AGM for ratification.

31. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Company had appointed M/s.8G & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
conducting the secretarial audit of the Company for the FY 2024-25. Secretarial Audit report issued
by M/s. SG & Associates, Practicing Company Seacretary, forming part of the Directors’ Report for the
year ended March 31, 2025 is enclosed as Annexure “1” to this Report.

The Company has reappointed M/s. SG & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary as Secratarial Auditor

of the Company in terms of the provisions of section 2064 of the Companies Act, 2013 for conduciing the
secretarial audit of the Company for the F.Y. 2025-26 and FY 2026-27. ’




32. EXPLANATION ON STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors
in their Reports on the Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2024-25, Further, the secrefarial
audit report also does not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer
for the F.Y. 2024-25,

33. INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred upto the date of Board Report.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In fing with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regutations, the Company
has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions and the same can be accessed on the
Company’s website at www.tatamotors.com. All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by
the Company during the financiat year with related parties were on an arm's length basis, in the
ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. There
were no materially significant refated party transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

Details of Related Party Transactions, as required to be disclosed by indian Accounting Standard —24
on "Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Further, there were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the
prescribed Form AOC—2 does not form a part of this report.

35. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Corporate Governance Report prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of SEB}
Listing Regulations forms part of this Report and attached as Annexure- “2" along with following

certificates/declarations:

o Compliance certificate by Practicing Company Secretary for compliance of Corporate
Governance during the period under review as required under Part E -Schedule V of SEBI
Listing Regulations

s Certificate by Practicing Company Secretary pursuant to Schedule V Part C clause (10
of the SEBI Listing Regulations

»  Declaration from Manager / Chief Financial Officer in respect of financial statements and
Cash Flow Statement pursuant to regulation 17 (8) of SEBI Listing Regulations for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025

» Declaration by Manager on Code of Conduct as required under Part D- Schedute V

36. DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory auditors and secretarial auditors




and the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during the financial year 2024-25. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowiedge and ability, confirm that:

@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b} the directors had selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial vear and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

¢) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

37. OTHER DISCLOSURES

The Company has devised proper systems o ensure compiiance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

Section 138 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder allows the Company to send its Finangial
Statements by electronic mode to such Members whose sharehoiding s in dematerialized format and
whose email addresses are registered with the Depositories for communication purposes.
Shareholders/ Debenture holders who have not registered their email address with the Depositories
are requested to register the same. Further, in accordance with the Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5,
2022 read with Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5,
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Notice of the AGM including the Annual Report
of the Company is being sent only through efectronic made to all the Members/ Debenture holders
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Depuositories.

A copy of Annual Report along with the Financial Statements for FY 2024-25 of the Company is also
available on the website of the Company, www_tatamotors.com.
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FORMNO. MR 3
SECRETERIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no 9 of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014}
For the Financial Year Ended 31% March, 2025

To,
The Members,
TMF HOLDINGS LIWHTED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by TMF Holdings Limited {hereinafter called the Company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in @ manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corperate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the TMF Holdings Limited’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and
Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial vear
ended on 31% March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2025 according to the provisions
of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the A'ct) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’} and the rules made there under;
iif. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made  thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period),

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 {'SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers)Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period),

2 Address : 203, Znd Floor, Mahek Plaza, Above Mehsana
Co—op Bank Limited, Maharashira Nagar, Borivali (W) Mumbsai - 92.
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b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; ,

d} The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,
{Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

e) SEBI {Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI
OPERATIONAL CIRCULAR SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021, as amended from time
to time.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. {Not applicable during the Audit
Period).

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and )

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) i

i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. We further report that, having regard to the
compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents and
records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company.

1. The Reserve Bank of india Act,1934, and
2. RBI's NBFC Directions and Guidelines, Circulars etc. issued by RBI from time to time, applicable
on NBFCs, '

Additionally, a declaration on compliance of various statues duly signed by the Manager & KMP, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer is submitted to the Board on quarterly basis.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the foliowing:
i Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of Eﬁdia,

We further report that, .
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance wi
provisions of the Act.




Mr. Samrat Gupta ceased as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 15-10-2024 due to resignation.

Mr. Amit Mittal was appointed as Chief Financial Officer [CFO) of the company w.e.f 22-11-2024.
Ms. Ridhi Gangar ceased to be Chief Financial Officer (CFO) w.e.f. 22-11-2024 due to resignation.
Mr. Dhiman Gupta ceased as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 23-12-2024 due to resignation.

Mr. Prakash Pandey was appointed as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 03-04-2025.

Mr. Anand Bang ceased as Manger and Key Managerial Personnel w.e.f. 01-04-2025

Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi was appomted as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 01-04-
2025.

e Mr. Vinay Lavannis ceased as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 31-03-2025 due to
completion of term.

a & & & o 9

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent.at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifjcations on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

All the decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in

the Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board as case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Iaws rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period following events have occurred in.the company:
‘e Annual General Meeting was held on September 23, 2024 for the Financial Year 2023-24

wherein alongwith ordinary:business, Special business for approval of Increase in Authorised
Share Capital by Rs. 500 Crores was transacted.

For 5G & Associates

Date: 02-05-2025
Place: Mumbai

Propnetor

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No A12122
C.P.No 5722

UDIN:; AG12122G000249691
UIN:S2004MH073200
Peer review Certificate No.: 991/20




Annexure ‘A’
To
The Members,
TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:
1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

i) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial record. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
practices and processes, we foliowed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and baoks of
accounts of the company. :

IV} Wherever required, we have cobtained Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules, regulations, norms and standards and happening of events.

V) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
norms and standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedure on test basis.

Vi) The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
: For $G and Associates
Practicing Company Sec etarie\s
[N

Proprietor
Membership No: A12122

‘ C. PNo: 5722

UDIN: A012122G000249691
UIN:S2004MHG73800

Peer review Cgrtificate Nc.:991/2{_)30

Date: 02-05-2025
Place: Mumbai



Corporate Governance Report Annexure- 2
L Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong faundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to alf stakeholders comprising regutators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company’s
hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company has a strong legacy of fair,
transparent and ethical governance practices. ‘

The Company has adopted the Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness, Code of
Conduct for its employees. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for iis
Non-Executive Directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which
suitably incorporates the dufies of Independent Directors as iaid down in the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act). The Company's corporate governance philosophy has heen further
strengthened through the Tata Business Excellence Model, Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (“Insider Trading Code™), Vigil
Mechanism, Fair Practices Code, Policy against Sexual Harassment in the Woerkplace. The
Company has in place an Information Security Policy that ensures proper utilization of IT
resources.

‘The Company has signed the Tata Brand Equity and Business Promotion (BEBP) Agreement
with Tata Sons Private Limited for subscribing to the TATA BEBP Scheme. The Company
abides by the Tata Code of Conduct and the norms for using the Tata Brand identity.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipufated under Regulation 17 to 27 read
with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(*SEBI Listing Regulations™), as applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

il. Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has five (5) Directors viz. Mr. Nasser Munjee, Chairman &
independent Director, Mr. N. V. Sivakumar, Independent Director, Mrs. Varsha Purandare,
Independent Director, Mr. P. B. Balaji, Non-Executive Director, and Mr. Prakash Pandey, Non-
Executive Director. The Company had appointed Mr. Prakash Pandey (DIN: 10850813) as an
Additionai Director designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from December
23, 2024 subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India and Members at the ensuing General Meeting
based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee. Reserve Bank of [ndia
granted it's approval for the appointment on Aprit 3, 2025, consequently his appointment came in effect
from that date.

During the year, Mr. Dhiman Gupta (DIN: 09420213), resigned as Non-Executive Director from the
Board of Directors of the Company and its committees with effect from December 23,2024, Mr. Samrat
Gupta (DIN: 07071479) resigned as Non-Executive Director, from the Board of Directors of the
Company and its Committees with effect from October 15, 2024.

Subsequent to closing of financial year 2024-25, foliowing changes has happened:




- Dr. Vajjayanti Pandit (DIN: 06742237) has been appointed as an Additional Birector of the
Company to be designated as Independent Director w.e.f. June 8, 2025: .

- Mr. Asim Mukhopadhyay (DIN 06520288) has been appointed as Additional Director of the
Company {o be designated as Non-Executive Director commencing from June 9, 2025 or such
later date on which approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RB) is obtained:

- Mr. Sudeep Bhalla (DIN 11160825) has been appoinied as an Additional Director of the
Comnpany to be designaied as Non-Executive Director commencing from June 28, 2025 or
such later date on which approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI is obtained:

- Mr. Nasser Munjee, Independent Director, Mr. N, V. Sivakumar, Independent Director have
resigned from the Board w.e.f June 11, 2025 and Mr. P. B, Balaji, Non-Executive Director has
resigned from the Board w.e.f. June 10, 2025 due o their pre-occupations.

L None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public
companies. None of the independent Directors serves as an independent Direcior on
more than 7 listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in
other public companies as on March 31, 2025 have been made by the Directors. None
of the Director is related 1o each other.

ii. Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with
rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they
have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or
may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board
of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned
under Regulation 16(1}{b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are
independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors have included
their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

ii. 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap
between fwo meetings did not exceed one hundred and wenty days. The said meetings
were held on April 2, 2024, May 02, 2024, June 4, 2024, July 18, 2024, September 286,
2024, October 17, 2024, November 22, 2024, December 23, 20624, January 23, 2025,
March 7, 2025 and March 31, 2025. The necessary quorum was present for alf the
meetings.

During the year under review, all the Board members were compliant to the cellings of their respective
Directorships and membership / Chairmanship of various Committees where they are / were members
/ Chairman.

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the efiective
functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Entrepreneur / Extended entrepreneurial / leadership experience for a significant enterprise,
Leadership resulting in a practical understanding of organizations, processes, strategic
planning, and risk management. Demonstrated

strengths in developing talent, planning succession, and driving change and
long-term growth.




Financial Experiise

Education and experience as an Auditor or Public Accountant or a principai
financial officer, comptroller or principal accounting officer or holding a position
involving performance of similar functions.

Strategy and Planning

Appreciation of long-term frends, strategic choices and experience in guiding
and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

Governance

Experience in developing govemance practices, serving the best interests of all
stakeholders, maintaining board and management accountability, building long-
term effective stakeholder engagements and driving corporate ethics and
values.

NBFC Industry
Experience

A significant background in NBFC industry, resulting in knowledge of how fo
anticipate market trends, generate disruptive innovation and extend or create
new business models.

information Technology

BPevelopment of digital solutions for customers and cyber security assurance.,

Diversity

Representation of gender, cultural or other perspectives that expands the Board
understanding of the needs and viewpoinits of our customers, pariners,
employees, governments and other stake holders.

Name of the | Skillt Skilt 1§ Skill Skill iv Skill vV Skill v Skili Vil

Birector Entrepreneur/ | Financial | Strategy | Governance | NBFC Information | Diversity
Leadership Expertise | and Industry Technoiogy

Planning Experience

Mr. Nasser | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yas Yes Yes

Munjee

{Chairman)

Mr. N V.| Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Sivakumar

Mrs. Varsha | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Purandare

Mr. P. B. Balaji | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Hl. Comrmitices of the Board

The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific
issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. These include the Audit Commitiee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitiee, Asset
Liability Supervisory Committee, Risk Management Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committes
and Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of all the Committees. The Board of Directors and the
Committees also take decisions by circular resolutions which are noted by the Board / respective
Committees at their next meetings. The Minutes of meetings of all Commitiees of the Board are
circutated to the Board of Directors for noting.

i) Audi{ Committee

As on March 31, 2025, the Audit Committee comprises of Three (3) Directors viz. Mr. N. V. Sivakumar
(Chairman}, Mrs. Varsha Purandare, independent Directors and Mr. P. B. Balgji, Non-Executive
Directar.




The composition of the Audit Committes is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and
SEB! {LODR) Regulations, 2015. All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial
statements and have relevant finance and/or audit experience.

The Board has adopted the Corporate Governance Guidelines which defines the composition of the
Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting functions in accordance
with the Act and Guidelines issued by the SEBI and RBI. Given below, inter alia, is & gist of the
responsibilities of the Audit Commitise.

The Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference
specified in writing by the Board which shali, inter alia, include—

= the recommendation for appoiniment, remuneration and ferms of
appointment of auditors of the company;

o reviewand monitor the auditors independence and performance, and
eftectiveness of audit process;

e examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

= approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

° approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

s scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

e valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

* evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

e monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matter:

»  The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control
systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of
financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any
related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the
company;

= Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns
in such manner as may be prescribed.

As per Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:
o Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financialstatement is correct, sufficient and credible;
» Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company; (as also provided in the Act)
= Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors; '
= Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's repori thereon
{(a1s also provided in the Act) before submission o the board for approval, with particular
reference to: .
o Matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement
to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (¢) of sub-section 3
of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 :
o Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same

o Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management




o Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings
o Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements

o Disclosure of any related party transactions

¢ Qualification in the draft audit report
Reviewing, with the managemeni the quarterly financial statements ~ before
submission to the board for approvai;
Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, efc.) (as also provided in the Act), the
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendatlons
to the Board o take up steps in this matter;
Review and monitor the auditors independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process; {as also provided in the Act)
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
{as also provided in the Act)
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; (as also provided in the Act)
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; (as also
provided in the Act)
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; {(as also provided in
the Act)
Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy
of the internal control systems;
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing andseniority of the ofiicial heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board;
Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concermn;
To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of deciared dividends) and creditors;
To review e functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism:
Approval of-appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;
Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Commitiee.

The Audit Commitiee shall mandatorily review the following information:

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations:
Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee),
submitied by management;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors:
Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the Audit Commitiee.




Additionatly, the Audit Committee of the Board of 2 Tata company will also need to

e Overses financial  reporting controls  and process for material
subsidiaries. .

*  Oversee compliance with fegal and regulatory requirements including the Tata Code of
Conduct ("TCoC”) for the company and its material subsidiaries.

= consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes invelving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

e The Audit Committee must ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal
systems and processes is conducted at least once in two years to assess operational
risks faced by the applicable NBFCs. '

During the year under review, Ten (10) meetings were held on April 18, 2024, May 02, 2024,
June 4, 2024, July 17, 2024, September 28, 2024, October 17, 2024, November 22, 2024,
December 23, 2024, January 23, 2025 and March 31, 2025. The composition of the Audit
committee and the attendance of its members at its meetings held during FY 2024-25 are give
below: :

MName of Member iiember since Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. N. V. Sivakumar 071172023 independent Director | 10 9
(Chairman)
Mrs. Varsha Purandare | 16/06/2021 Independent Director 10 10
Mr. P. B. Balaj 29/01/2018 Non-Executive Director 10

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year. The
invitees for Audit Committee meetings are Manager, Statutory Auditors, Chief Internal Auditor of the
Company and Tata Motors Limited, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. The minutes of
the Audit Commitiee meetings forms part of the Board papers circulated for Board Meetings. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee briefs the Board members about significant discussions at Audit
Committee meetings. The Audit Committee of the Board meets the Head Internal Auditor at least once
in a quarter without the presence of the MD or Senior Management.

i) Momination and Remuneration Committee {NRC)

The MNomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors has been consiituted to ensure
appointment of Directors with fit and proper’ credentials and to review the performance and to decide
commission payable o the Directors, to formulate and administer Long Term Incentive Plans, if any
and to review employee compensation vis-a-vis industry practices and trends.

As on March 31, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Three (3) Directors
namely Mrs. Varsha Purandare (Chairperson), Mr. Nasser Munjee, independent Directors and
Mr. P. B. Balaji, Non-Executive Director.

During FY 2024-25, Five (5) meetings of the NRC were held on May 13, 2024, September 26, 2024,
November 22, 20624, December 23, 2024 and March 31, 2025. The composition of the NRC and the
attendance of its members at its mestings held during FY 2024-25 are given below:

Name of the member Member since Category No. of meetings
Held Attended
Mrs. Varsha Purandare | 07/11/2023 Independent Direcior 5 5

-| {Chairperson)

Mr. Nasser Munjee 20/06/2020 independent Director 5 5




| Mr. P. B. Bataji ! 29/01/2018 | Non-Executive Director |5 | 4 1

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out
includes participation and contribution by a Director, commitment, effective deployment of
knowledge and experiise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of
behavior and judgment.

NRC/Remuneration Policy:

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP™ and all other
employees of TMF Holdings Limited (*the Company™} is based on the commitment of fostering a
culture of Leadership with Trust. The remuneration policy is aligned to this philosophy.

The remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”). While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (*NRC”) has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which
are as under:

(a) the level and composiiion of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to atiract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successiully;
(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

{c) remuneration {o directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance cbjectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee,
decides the remuneration payable to other Directors and the Executive Directors out of the profits
for the financial year and within the ceifings prescribed under the Act, based on the Board
evaluation process considering the criteria such as the performance of the Company as well as
that of the Director.

The Company pays sitting fees o Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors who are
not in employment in Tata Group Companies, as approved by the Board of Directors.

fii} Asset tiabilify Supervisory Committee (ALCO)

The Asset Liability Supervisory Committee manages the liquidity risk and asset liability management
of the Company. As of March 31, 2025, ALOC comprises the senior management executives of the
Company has 4 meetings happened during the year under review on June 26, 2024, Septemnber 18,
2024, December 19, 2024 and March 19, 2025.

iv) Risk Management Commitiee (RMC)

The Risk Management Committee of Directors manages the integrated risks of the Company. As of
March 31, 2025, Risk Management Committee comprises Three {3) Diractors namely Mrs. Varsha
Purandare (Chairperson), Mr. N. V. Sivakumar and Mr. P, B. Balaii.

During FY 2024-25, Four (4) meetings of the RMC were held on June 13, 2024, September 23, 2024,
December 23, 2024 and March 21, 2025. The composition of the RMC and the attendance of its
members at ifs meetings held during FY 2024-25 are given below:




Name of Member Member since | Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mrs. Varsha Purandare | 16/06/2021 independent Director | 4 4
) (Chairperson)
Mr. N. V. Sivakumar 07/11/2023 independent Director 4 3
Mr. P. B. Balaji 28/01/2020 Non-Executive Direcior 4 4
Mr. Dhiman Gupta* 24/06/2022 Non-Executive Director 3 2
Mr. Samrat Gupta** 11/05/2021 Non-Executive Director 2 1

"Resigned effective from December 23, 2024,
**Resigned of effective from October 15, 2024,

v) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitiee

The Tata Group’s ethos is deeply ingrained in the philosaphy of societal development and is especially
focused upon the engagement and uplifiment of the disadvantaged sections of the society. The
Company is committed to a policy of inclusive and sustainable growth for communities. The Company
shares the Group’s belief that our society can only truly progress, i every individual can be included
and empowered. The Company has constituted the ‘Corporate Social Responsibility’ (CSR)
Committee to formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR poficy, recommend the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on the activities and monitor CSR activities of the Company.

As on March 31, 2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} Committee comprises of Two {2}
Directors namely Mr. Nasser Munjee (Chairman) and Mr. N. V. Sivakumar.

During FY 2024-25, no meeting of the CSR Committee was held in view of non-avaiability of
mandatory CSR spends in terms of CSR provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Name of Member Member Since | Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Nasser Munjee 12/11/2021 independent Director G Q
{Chairman)
Mr. N. V. Sivakumar 07/11/2023 Independent Director 0 0

vi} Stakeholders Relationship Committee {SRC)

The Company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee to consider and resclve the
grievances of security holders of the Company.

As on March 31, 2025, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) comprises of Two (2) members
namely Mr. Nasser Munjee (Chairman), and Mr. P B Bailaji.

During FY 2024-25, One (1) meeting of the SRC were held on January 23, 2025,
The previous AGM of the Company was attended by Mr. Nasser Munjee, Chairman of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Stakeholders — other details

In accordance with Regulation 6 of the Listing Regulations, the Board had appointed Mr. Vinay
Lavannis, Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer.




a. Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer:
Mr. Vinay Lavannis
Company Secretary
Building A, 2nd Floor, Lodha | Think Techno Campus, Off. Pokharan Road No 2,
Thane (West) 400 601.
Beard Line: 022 81070021
Email: yinay. lavannis®imi.co.in

With Effect from April 1, 2025, Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi was appointed as Compliance Officer of the
Company

Name, designation and address of Compliance Officar:

Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi

Company Secretary

Building A, 2nd Floor, Lodha | Think Techno Campus, Off. Pokharan Road No 2,
Thane (West) 400 601.

Board Ling: 022 61070021

Email: neeraj.dwivedi@tatamotors.com

b. Details of investor Complainis received and redressed during FY 2024-2025 are as
follows:

vii} Information Technoloay (IT) Strategqy Committee {ITSC)

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee (ITSC) has been constituted on November 12, 2021
as per the provisions of RBI Master Diraction RBYDNBS/2016-17/53
DNBS.FPD.N0.04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated June 08, 2017 pertaining to Information Technology
Framework for the NBFC Sector. The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the
regulatory requirements. The roles and responsibilities of IT Strategy Committee include:

= Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place;

s Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the
IT delivers value fo the business;

+ Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable;

» Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed fo
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

o Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining Company’s growth and becoming
aware about expasure towards [T risks and controls.

As on March 31, 2025, the IT Strategy Committee (ITSC) comprises of Four {(4) members namely
Mrs. Varsha Purandare (Chairperson), N. V. Sivakumar, Mr. P. B. Balgji and Mr. Neeloy Majumder.
Mr Anand Bang (Manager), Mr. Amit Mittal (CFO) and Mr. Ramesh Chandra (CIO) are permanent
invitees for the meetings of ITSC.




During FY 2024-25, Four (4) meetings of the [TSC were held on June 13, 2024, September 23, 2024,
December 23, 2024 and March 21, 2025, The composition of the ITSC and the attendance of its
members at s meeting held during FY 2024-25 are given balow:

Name of Member Category No. of Meetings .
Held Attended

Mrs. Varsha Purandare | Independent Director (Chairperson) 4 4

Mr. N. V. Sivakumar Independent Director 4 4

Mr. P. B. Balaji Non-Executive Director 4 4

Mr. Neeloy Majumder Chief Digital & Marketing Officer 4 3

Other Disclosures

Related party
transactions

Reguta’uon 23 of
SEBI Listing
Regulations and
as defined under

_the Act

There are no matenal reiated party
fransactions during the year that have conflict
with the interest of the Company.
Transactions entered into with related parties|
during the financial year were in the ordinary
course of business and at arms’ length
basis and were approved by the Audif
Committee. The Board's approved palicy for
refated party transactions is uploaded on
the website of the Company.

WWW . tatamotors com

Details of non -
compliance by the
Company, penalty,
sirictures imposed on
the Company by the
stock exchange, or
Securities and
Exchange Board

of India ('SEBI') or
any statutory authority
on any matter related
to capital markets

Schedule V (C)
10(b) to the SEBI
Listing
Regulations

during the iast three financial years.

There were no cases of non-complianceNA

Whistle Blower Policy
and Vigil Mechanism

Regulation 22 of
SEBI Listing
Regulations

and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for directors and employees to
report concerns about unethical behaviour.
No person has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said|
palicy has been uploaded on the website of
the Company.

The Company has a Whistte Blower Policywww.tatamotors.com

Discretionary
requirements

Schedule H Part E

of the SEBI Listing
Regulations

ta.  Mr. Nasser Munjee, Chairman does
not maintain any separate office.

b. The auditors’ report on financial
statements of the Company are
ungualified.

c. The Company is having separate
posts of Chairman and the Manager.
Mr. Nasser Munjee is an Independent

NA




Director and not related to Mr. Anand
Bang, Manager.

Regulations

d. Chief Internal Auditor has direct
functional reporting to Audit
Committes.
Subsidiary Regulation 24 of The audit committee reviews thelNA
Companies the SEBI Listing consolidated financial statements of the

Company and the investments made by its
subsidiary companies. The minutes of the
Board meetings along with a report on
significant developments of the subsidiary
companies are periodically placed before
the Board of Directors of the Company.

Llf‘egulation 17 of
Listing

e SEBI
Regulations

Policy on Archival andRegulation 8 of [The Company has adopted a Policy onwww.tatamotors.com
Preservation of FEB! Listing Archival and Preservation of Documents.

Documents Regulations

Code of Conduct The members of the Board and Senionwww.tatamotors.com

Management Personnel have zffirmed
compliance with the Code of Conducy
applicable to them during the vear ended
March 31, 2024. The Annual Report of the
Company contains a certificate by the
Manager & KMP, on the compliance
declarations received from Independent
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Senior Management.

of
Directors

Terms of AppoeintmentRegulation 62
independent{1A) of SEBI

Listing

Regulations and
Section 148 read
with Schedule 1V

re-appointment of Independent Directors
are available on the Company’s website.

and Redressal) Act,
2018

of the Act
Familiarization Regulations The Company conducts inductionThe details will be
Program 25(7)y and 62 programme for Directors. uploaded at
(1A} (i) of SEBI www.tatamotors.com as
Listing and when any Director
Regulations joins the Board.
Disclosure under © (Clause [PartC  |No complaint was filed during the year INA
the Sexual Schedule V of under this Policy.
Harassmeant of SEBI LODR
Women at
Workplace
(Prevention,
Prohibition

Terms and conditions of appointmentiwww.itatamotors.com




Disclosure of Clause m Part C [ Nil NA
‘L.oans and Schedule V of
advances in the SEBI LODR
nature of loans to
firms/companies
in which directors
are interested

v. Means of Communication
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published in
leading newspapers in India which include The Free Press Journal (English newspaper).
The results are also displayed on the Company's website i.e. www iatamotors.com.
Financial Resulfs, Statutory Notices and Press Releases after the deciaration of the
quarterly, hatf-yearly and annual results are submitted to the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) as well as uploaded on the Company’s website.

V. General shareholder information
i Financial Calendar
Year ending: April 1 to March 31
Dividend Payment: NA
if, Date of Book Closure/Record Date: NA

fii. Listing on Stock Exchanges

Non-Convertible Debentures and Commercial Papers are listed on below Stock
Exchange:

National Stock Exchange of India Lid {(NSE)
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

jv. Stock Codes/Symbol
NSE : Nl

The Company has paid Annual Listing fees for FY 2024-25 to the National Stock Exchange (NSE)
where the Company’s securities are listed.

v. Corporate ldentity Number {CIN) of the Company: UB5523MM2006PLC 162503
vi.Market Price Data: Not applicable since Company’s Equity shares are not listed.

vii. Registrars and Transfer Agents
Name and Address:

MUFG Intime india Private Limited
(Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park

L B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai - 400083




Tel +81-22-49188000
Fax: +81-22-49186060
Website | www.linkintime.co.in

For the convenience of the security holders, documents will also be accepted at the following
branches/agencies of Link Intime India Private Limited.

Place Name and Address Phone / Fax / Email

Mumbai | Registered Office | Tel: +81-22-48186000

MUFG infime India Private Limited | Fax: +91-22-48186060

{Formerly Link Intime India Private | Email;

Limited) prakash.sampat@linkintime.co.in
Website: hitps./fwww linkintime.co.in

C-101, st Floor, 247 Park
LB.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West)
Mumbai — 400083

viii. Securities Transfer System:

All transfer, transmission or transposition of securities, are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Reguiation 40,
Regulation 61 and Schedule V!l of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other
applicable staiues. All requests for transfer and/or demateriliasation of
securities held in physical form, if any, should be lodged with the office of -
the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, TSR Consultants Private
Limited, Mumbai or at their branch offices or at the registered office of the
Company for dematerialisation. Transfers of equity shares in electronic
form are affected through the depositories with no involvement of the
Company. All request to approve transfers of Equity shares are noted at
subsequent Board Meetings/ Stakeholders relationship committee.

The following compliances pertain to share transfers, grievances, stc.:

(1} Pursuant to Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
certificates are filed with the stock exchanges on yearly basis by the
Compliance Officer and the represeniative of the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent for maintenance of an appropriate Securities
transter facility.

(2) Pursuant to Regulation 13 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a
statement on pending investor complaints is filed with the stock
exchanges and placed before the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis.

(3) Pursuant to Regulation 61(4) read together with Regulation 40(9) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, a Certificate by the Company
Secretary-in-Practice is filed with the stock exchanges within one
month from the end of the financial year, certifying that since all the
Debentures were issued by the Company in Demat form, no
physical debenture certificate were required to be delivered during
the period from Aprit 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 pursuant to
Regulation 61(4) read with Regulation 40(%) of Securties and
Exchange Board of India (Uisting Obligations and Disclosure




Requirements) Reguiations, 2015.
ix. Sharehoiders as on March 31, 2025:

a.  Distribution of equity shareholding as en March 31, 2025: Not
Applicable as Equity shares are not listed

b. Categories of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2025

Promoters 1.741,583,442 100
Other Entities of the Promater Group INit Nl
Mutual Funds & UTI Nl Nl
Banks, Financial Institutions, Siates and Centraliil INil
Government

insurance Companies ' Nil Nil
Foreign Institutional Invesiors and Foreign  PortfolioNil Nil
investors — Corporate

NRI's / OCB's / Foreign Nationals INit Nil
Corporate Bodies / Trust Nl Nl
Indian Public & Others Nil Nl
Alternate Investment Fund N Nl
{EPF account Nil Nl
GRAND TOTAL 1,741,583,442 100

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The Company’s shares are not listed and traded on any stock exchange. However, equlity shares
of the Company representing 100% of the Company’s equity share capital are dematerialized as
on March 31, 2025 except six equity shares of the Company which are held by Tata Motors
Limited jointly with its representatives in physical form. Under the Depository System, the
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s Equity shares is
INESOSHO1018.

Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Funci:_

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the IEPF {Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘'IEPF Rules”) to be read with Clause 61A of SEB! (LODRY), all unclaimed/unpaid
dividend, application money, debenture interest and interest on deposits as well as principal amount
of debentures and deposits, sale proceeds of fractional shares, redemption amount of preference
shares, efc. pertaining to the Company remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the
date they became due for payment, have to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, established by the
Central Government. Furthermore, the IEPF Rules mandate companies to transfer shares of
shareholders whose dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed for a period of 7 consecutive years {o the
demat account of the IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect of
which there is a specific order of the Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of
shares,

in the interest of the securities holders, the Company sends pericdical reminders to the securitics
holders to claim their dividends/ interest/ principal amount in order o avoid transfer of




dividends/interest/ principal amount on NCDs to IEPF Authority.
On behalf of the Board of Directors of

TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

5, J 2e
gigzﬁﬁw

Chairperson




Declaration by the Managser on Code of Conduct 23 reqguired by Schedule ¥ of Seourities and
Exchange Board of indla {Listing Obligaiions and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2045

I, Vishwanathan Nallepalli, Manager of the Company hereby declare that all the members of Board of
Directors and Senior Management Perscnnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct, as
applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2024-25.

For TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Vishwanathan Nallepalt
Manager

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Mumbai




MANAGER /ICFO fi: ﬁ;é‘“e‘;aim?} in respect of Financlal Statements and Cash Flow Statement
{pursuant o reguiation 17 {3} of BEB {(Listing Obligetions & Disclosure Reguirements),
Reguiziions, 204 :‘3 r the Financial Year ended March 21, 2028

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st
March 2025 and we hereby certify and confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following:

a. The Financial Statements and Cash Flow statement do not contain any materially unirue statement
or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

b. The Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement together present a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws
and reguiations.

¢. There are no tfransactions entered in to by the Company during the vear ended 31st March 2025
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of Company’s Code of Conduct.

d. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for Financial Reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of these internal control systems of the Company
pertaining 1o financial reporting. Deficiencies noted, if any, are discussed with the Auditors and
Audit Committee, as appropriate, and suftable actions are taken to rectify the same.

e. There have been no significant changes in the above-menticned internal controls over financial
reporting during the relevant period.

f. That there have been no significant changes in the accounting policies during the relevant period.

g. We have not noticed any significant fraud particularly those involving the, management or an
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over Financial

Reporting.
%};%?’«7//

Vishwanathan Nailepai!i Mohit Agarwal
Manager Chief Financial Officer

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Mumbat




AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company”),

| have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by TMF Heldings limited {“the
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2025 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and sub-regulation {1A) of
Regulation 62 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI {Listing Obfligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 {the Listing Regulations)and as made applicable to the Company effective September 7, 2021 on
a comply or explain basis until March 31, 2025, and the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report
on Corporate Governance submitted 10 the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27{2){a)of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination
has been limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance. it is neither an sudit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

| have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing
reasonable assurance on the compliance with corporate governance requirements by the Company.

Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to
me and the representations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and sub-regulation {1A) of Regulation
62and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Uisting Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2025.

1 further state that such compliance 1s nei_ther an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S G &Associates
Practicing Compa ny Secretary\
\l“,-n—

L“M-«

Suhas S

anpule

Proprietor

Place: Mumbai Miembership No: 12122
Date: 02-05-2025 CP No: 5722

UDIN No: A012122G000251867
UIN: 52004MH073900
Peer Review Certificate No: 991/2020

£ s 203, 2nd Floor, Mahek Plaza, Above Mehsanz
Co-op Bank Limited, Maharashira Nagar, Borivali (W) Mumbai - 82,




CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Schedule V Para € clause {10){i) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
' Reqguirements) Regulations, 2015}

To,

The Members,

TMF HOLDINGS LIMHTED

14, 4™FLOOR, SIR H.C. DINSHAW BUILDING
16, HORNIMAN CIRCLE, FORT,
MUMBAI-400001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of TMF Holdings Limited having CIN U65923MH2006PLL162503 and having registered office
at 14, 4™ Floor, Sir H.C. Dinshaw Building 16, Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai Maharashtra - 400001
{hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3} read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(1)
of the Securities Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications {including Directors
tdentification Number {DIN} status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory

Authority.
. Name of the Director DIN
Mr. Nasser Mukhtar Munjee 00010180
Mr. Narumanchi Venkata Sivakumar 03534101
Mrs. Varsha Vasant Purandare 05288076
Mr. Pathamadai Balachandran Balaji 02762983
Mr. Prakash Pandey™ 10850813 .

*Mr. Prakash Pandey {DiN: 10850813)was appointed as an additional Director in the Board Meeting
held on 23 December,2024, w.e.f. 23" December, 2024 or date of approval of RBI whichever is later.
As RBI approval received on 3™ April, 2025, his effective date of appointment is 3™ April, 2025.

i

Address ; 203, Znd Floor, Mahek Piaza, Above Mehsana
Co—op Bank Limited, Maharashira Nagar, Borivali (W)} Mumbai - 82.




Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company. '

For SG & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Dy o

e

Suhas Ganpule

Proprietor

Membership No: A12122
C.P.No: 5722

UDIN: AD12122G000251955
UIN:S2004MHO73900

! Peer Review Certificate No: 991/

Date: 02-05-2025
Place: Mumbai



Annexure-1
Form AOC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 128 read with ruie 5 of Companies (Accounis)
Rufes, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiariesfassociate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amount in Rs for the F.Y. 2024-25)

TMF Business Services Limifed {(Formerly Tata Motors Finance Limifed):

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Si. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the subsidiary TMF Business Services Limited
{Formery Tata Motors Finance
Limited)
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 29/03/2016

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned. if NA
different from the hoiding company's reporting period

4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last Not applicable
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries

5 Share capital 37,2271

& Reserves & surplus (9,91.62)

7 Total assets 313,54.24

8 Total Liabilites 286,23.15

9 Investments -

10 Turnover* 50,4232

11 Profit  {loss) before taxation (16,69.04)

12 Provision for taxation {5,90.93)

13 Profit / {loss) after taxation (10,78.11}

14 Proposed Dividend 0

15 Extent of shareholding as on date {inpercentage) 100%

*Represents Revenue from Operations.




# Note that all the figures are rounded off to lakhs of rupees,
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence cperations - NiL
- Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the vear.- NIL
On behaif of the Board of Directors of
TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairperson

Date: June 26, 2025




B R MAHESWARI & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCCUNTANTS

M — 118, Connaught Circus, New
Delhi— 116001 Phone: +91 (11}

4340 2222

Email: brme@brmco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TMF Holdings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cpinion

S84

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TMF Holdings Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”} and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Othes Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes io the consolidated financial statements, material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consclidated
fizancial statemerts’™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information ‘and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statement of such subsidiary
as were audited by other auditor, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and in the context of the
overriding effect of the provision in the scheme of arrangement as approved by the Natonal Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT), regarding acconating of sale of discontinued operations from the specified
retrospective appointed date, give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2025, and
consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further desceibed in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financizl statements in [ndia in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Instirute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
to in sub-paragraph 18 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2
basis for our opinicn.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, weze of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financizl statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters 1o be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Information Technology (¥IT™) Systems and controls impacting financial statements

The Group relies extensively on mformation
technology (IT) systems to suppozt its financial
reporting  processes, Including  transaction
recording, data processing, and reporting across
multiple business units.

The integaty of financial reporting is dependent on
effective IT General Controls (ITGCs) i areas
such as user access management, program change
management, and IT operations. Weaknesses in
these controls may increase the =nisk of
unauthorized wansactions, data manipulation, or
errors going undetected, thereby impacting the
relizbitity of financial information,

We identified ITGCs as a key audit matter due to
the pervasive use of IT systems in financial
reportng and the powential impact that ineffective
IT controls could have on the accuracy of the
consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures with respect to this matter
included the following:

> Evaluate the design and operating effectiveness
of ITGCs across key systems relevent to
firancial reporting,

> Tested user access controls to assess whether
access was appropriately restricted to authorized
personnel.

3 Assessed change management controls to
easure that system changes were authorized,
tested, and implemented appropriately.

¥ Hvaluated I'T' operations controls, including
backup TECOVELY DIroCesses job
processing.

4 3
and ana

Based on the procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the design or
operating effectiveness of IT controls that would
unpact the Consolidated financial statements.

Giher Information

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our a2uditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

6. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In copnection with cur audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our kaowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement
therein, we are required to commumnicate the matter to those chasged with governance and take
appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibiliies of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Comsclidated
Financial Statements

10.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies incladed in the Group zre responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate tnternal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the zccounting records, relevant to the
prepatztion and presentation of the coasolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding

Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directots of the companies
included in the Group are respousible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as 2 going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic zlternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1L

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statenents
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errox, and to issue an auditor’s
report that inchides our opinton. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance butis not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matesial i, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated fmancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:



14.

& Identify and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whetner due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resuling from fraud is higher than for one resultng from
erroz, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures thar are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3}() of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing out opinion oa whether the Holding company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

& Evaloate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estmates and related disclosures made by management.

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtamed, whether a material vacertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt oa the abihty of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 1o our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtatned up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

& FHyaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemente,
incloding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in 2 manser that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audic evidence regarding the financial information of the entities oz
business activities within the Group to express opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such endties included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent anditors. For the other eatities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain respomsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carded out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Compasny regarding, amoag other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audic findings, inclading any
significant deficiencies in interpal control that we identify during ovr audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our anditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the marter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reascnably be expected to ourweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Emphasis of Maiter

16.

We draw attention to Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the overa
accounting for the Scheme of arrangement {for amalgamation of Tata Motoss Finance Limited with Tata
Capital Limited. The Scheme has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide
its order dated 01 May 2025 with appointed date of 1 April 2024 and a certified copy has been filed by
Tatz Motors Finance Limited, 2 subsidiary of the Company with the Registrar of Companies,
Maharashtra, on 08 May 2025. In accordance with the scheme approved by NCLT, the Company has
given effect to the Scheme from the retrospective appoiated date specified thetein ie. 1 April 2024 which
overrides the relevant requirement of Ind AS 110 {according to which the scheme would have been
accoumted for from 08 May 2025 which is the date of loss of control as per the aforesaid standard). The
fmancial impact of the aforesaid treatment has been disclosed in the aforesaid note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Maters

i7.

18.

The consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the yvear ended March 31,2024 were audited
by another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 02,2024,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those consclidated financial statements.

The consolidated {inancial statements include the financial statements of a subsidiary, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥189.15 crores as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of 5347 crores, net
loss after tax of ¥63.54 crores, and total comprehensive income of Nil for the vear then ended. These
financial staternents have been audited by another firm of Chastered Accountants, whose report has been
fumnished to us by Management. Our opinion oa the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the said subsidiary, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, including the report on Other Information,
i based solely on the report of the other auditor.

QOur opinicn on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is sot modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the report of the other avnditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
19. As required by paragraph 3{xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020™),

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-secton {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included by the auditor of the Subsidiary in
its CARO 2020 report issued in respect of the financial statements of the subsidiary company which
are Included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

20. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(&) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

() In owr opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated i paragraph 20 (h){vi)
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below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 (as
amended).

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (lacluding other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account aad records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the overriding effect of the scheme
approved by the NCLT as described in Emphasis of Martter Paragraph above.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, ncne of the
directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as 2 director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is
made to ous remarks in paragraph 20 (b) above oz reporting under Section 143{3)(b) and paragraph
20 (2)(vi) below on reporting uader Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
{as amended).

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statermments of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Anpexuge A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auvditor’s Report in accozdance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auvditors) Rules, 2014, 1o our opinion and to the best of our
information and 2ecording to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 35 to the consclidated financial
statements.

ii, Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025

ifi. There were no amounts due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company. Based on the report of the other auditor, the subsidiary 15 not
reguired to transfer any amouats to the investor education and protection fund.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which is company
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act bave
represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiery to or i any other
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entites (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest I other persons or endties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Holding Company ot its subsidiary or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultmate Beneficiaries.



(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is company
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually ot ia the aggregate) have
been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary from any persoafs) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the undesstanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holdiag Company or its subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend
of invest in othet persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiades™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit proceduses, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate In the
circumstances, performed by us 2nd those performed by the auditor of the subsidiary, which is
a company incorporated in India, whose financial staternents have been audited uader the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditor to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(e) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The group has not declared ox paid any dividend during the year. Hence, compliance with
section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended Macch 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. The Audit Trail has been maintained as per the statutory requirements for records
retention as per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies {Accounts Rules} 2014.
Further, the Subsidiary Company uses services of third party service provider for invoice
processiag and in the absence of Service Organisation Type 2 report, specifically covering the
maintenance of audit trail, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said
software was enabled and operated throughout of the year for all the relevant transactions
tecorded in the software or whether there are any instances of audit trail feature has been
termpered with,

21, The Group has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:001035N /N500050

" Digitaliy signed by
AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWAR

MAHESHWAR| Date: 2025.05.10

21:20:23 +05'30"

Akshay Maheshwari
Partger
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25584764 BMIBFX 6369
Place: Delhi
Drate: May 10, 2025



Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under
clause (I} of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of TMF Holdings Limited (hereinafter refesred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary compaay, to whom reporting
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which is a company incorporated o India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal contxol over
financial reporting criteriz established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Costrols Over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Charteted Accountants of India ("ICAILY). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and matatenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting zecords, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial informaton, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3

L

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with refetence to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAT and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pexform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and mainrained and if such controls operated effectively 1o 21l material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to
provide 2 basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Compaay’s internal financial controls system with
reference to consolidated financial starements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed t0
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting znd the preparation of financial



statements for external purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial coatrol with reference to financiai statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and (aidly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company aze being made
only in accordance with anthorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasopable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised zcquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statemens.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent lmitadons of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaternents
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial coatrol with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies ot procedures may detetiorate.

Opinion

8.

Ia our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorperated in
India, have, tn all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statetneats and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectevely as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICATL

Other Matters

9.

Cur aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding repozt of the auditor
of such company incorporated in India. Gur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

For B R Maheshwari & Co LLFP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Nuwber: 001035N /IN300050

" Digitally signed by AKSHAY
AKSHAY MAHESHWARI

.Date: 2025.05.10 21:20:45
MAHESHWARI-2::

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Numbes:

UDIN: 25564704BMIBTFX 6369

Place: Delhi
Date: May 10,2025






TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2825

{% in crores)

., As at Miarch 31 As at March 31
Particuiars Notes
2328 2024
H ASSETS
1 finzntial assets
{a)  Cash and cash equivalentis 5 6.18 3,013.86
{b} 8ank balance other than cash and cash equivalents kS - 107.58
{c}  Derivative financial instruments 16 - 10z.44
{d) Receivables
i.  Trade receivables 7 7.34 41.43
it.  Other receivables g 0.01 12.40
{e} Loans g - 31,506.8%
{fi  Investments a0 £61.14 2,829.45
{g}  Other firancial assets i 8,048.53 1,351.43
8,723.21 38,412.50
2 Non-finzncial assets
{a}  Current tax assets (net) 182.45 354.16
{6) Deferred tax assets {net} 12 - 15.92
i) Property, plant and equipment 33 102.08 257.92
{6} Goodwill 164 - 208.12
{e}  Gtherimangible assets 148 06.33 7.24
{fi  Cther non-financial assets 15 20.80 222.71
21276 1,0664.14
3 Assets held for sale - 65.45
Total assets 9,035.97 39,542.18
1 LIABILITIES AND EQUHTY
1 Financial lizbilities
{a] Derivative financial instruments pi - 491
{b] Payables 7
(i) Trade payables
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises $.17 13.18
- total cutstanding dues of craditors ather than micro enterprises znd small enterprises 0.86 267.44
{iij Cther payables
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises .05 110.84
{c)  Debt securifies 18 1,116.08 7,268.37
{d)  Borrowings {Other than debt securities) 18 2,145 .00 25,348.38
{e} Subordinated hkabilities 20 - 484.48
(f}  Other financial liabilities 21 42,22 1,184.38
3,204.18 34,682.00
2 Mon-financial fiabilities
{a)  Current tax Habilities {net) 3.87 2.41
{b} Deferred tax Kabilities {nat) 12 104.37 -
{c}  Provisions 22 0.10 110.83
{d}  Other non-financial liabilities 23 5.79 74.62
314,13 1B7.98
E Equity
{2}  E£quity share capital 24A 1,741.59 1,741.59
{b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 248 1,800.00 1,800.00
{c}  Other aquity 2,076.G7 {677.45)
Equity attributable to cwners 5,617.60 2,864.14
Non-controdling interasts - 1,808.00
5,617.66 4,672.14
Total itabilities and equity 9,035.57 39,542.10

See accompanying notes forming part of the consglidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for 8 R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: G01035N/N5Q0050

AKSHAY Digitally signed by

AKSHAY MAHESHWAR!
Date: 2025.05.10
MA H ES HWARE 21:06:47 +05'30"
AKSHAY MAHESHWAR!
Partner

Membership No. 504704

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Director
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Date: May 10, 2025

N. V. SIVAKUMAR
Director
{DIM - 03534101}

NEERA * Sty s
KUMAR
DWIVED!
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a
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NEERAJ DWIVED!
Cornprany Secratary

Membership No - ACS20874



TMF HOLDINGS LiMITED
Consalidated Statement of Profit & Loss fos the year ended March 31, 2025

{% in croves)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars Notes March 31 March 32
2025 2024
Revenue from cperations
{a} Interestincome 25 66,43 41.78
(b} Rentalincome 48.86 54.91
{2} Netgsin on fair value changes 5 11,17 13.77
{d} Feasand commission income 27 0.03 a.02
1 Total Revenue from operations 12648 110.48
B Qther income 28 7.80 30,13
13 Total income [I + 1} 134.29 140.61
H) Expenses:
{a) Finance cost 23 268.81 227.34
(b} Impairment/ {reversal of impairment) of financial instruments 30 {8.22} 0.33
{c) Employae benefits expanses 31 0.29 a.75
{d} Depreciation and amortization 13 & 148 40.63 38.05%
(e} Other expenses 32 21.33 48.88
Total eupenses 322.84 331535
A Profit/{Loss}) beforg exceptional items and tax {ilt - IV} {188.55} {17474}
VI Exceptional items
Impairment of business %2.00 -
Vi Profit/{Loss) for the year before tax {V - Vi) {22055} {174.74}
ViilL Tax expense i2
Current tax - Q.30
Deferred tax 5.28 {5.21)
Total tax expense/ [credit) (net) 5.28 {5.52}
[+ Frofit {Loss} for the period from continuing operations (VI - vil} {225.83} {168.83}
X Profit/(less) from discontinued operations 43 4,073.33 22411
X Tax expense of discontinued aperations 48 104.37 172.27
Xli Profit/licss) from discontinued operations {after tax} (X - X1} 3,568.56 31.84
Xi§  Profitf{Loss) for the year after tax {EX + X8} 3,743.13 [£25.89]
KV Other comprehensive income
A L lItdtems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss
{a} Remeasurernents of the defined benefit plans - {3.33)
{b} Equity Instruments through Gther Comprenensive income - 45.28
#. Income tax relazing 10 iterns that will not be rechassified to profit or loss - {11.40)}
Subtotal {A) - 30.55
B L ltvitemns that will be reclassified to profit or ioss
{a} Net Gains/{iosses) on cash flow hedges - 15.86
(b} Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive [ncome - {74.35)
il.  Income tax relating 1o items that will be reclassified to profitor loss - 18.71
Subtotal {B) - {39.78)
Gther Comprehensive income - {5.23)
X Total comprehensive income for the year (XHI + XiV) 3,743.13 126.22)
XV Earnings per equity share of 2 100 each 33
{it from continuing operaticns
Basic {in %) {2.12) (2.75)
Diluted fin &) {2.12) 2,75}
{ii} from discontinued oderations
Basic {in T) 2279 0.30
Diluted {in %} 22,79 0.30

See arcompanying nates forming part of the consclidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP

Charterad Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001035N/NS00050

AKSHAY Digitatly signed by

AKSHAY MAHESHWAR?

MAHESHWAR] Pate: 26250510

21:07:27 +05'30'
AKSHAY MAHESHWAR] *

Partner
Membership No. 504704

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chief Financial Officer
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Date: May 10, 2025



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 3%, 2025

{% in crores)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 Margh 31
2025 2024
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
MNet profitf{loss) for the year from continuing operations {225.53) {188.83)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations 3,968.96 3184
Adiustments for:
Interest income on lozns, deposits and investments (66.43) {3,849.85)
Balances written back (0.10} {6.24)
Finance costs {other than Interest expense on assets taken on lease} 268.81 2,711.45
Interest expense on lease liabifity - 6.77
Tax expense/ {reversal} 108.65 166.38
Allowance/ (reversal) for loan losses (net of writeoff) {2.98} 1,101.19
Allowance/ (reversal} for douhtful loans and advances {othersjinet of write off} (5.24) 26.50
Gain on sale of nvestments {net) {0.61) {146.98)
Dividend income - {12.95)
Mark-to-market {MTM} on investments measured at fair value through profit or less {10.92} {518.57)
Depreciation and amortization expense 4G.63 65.16
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments {including assets scrapped/ written off} {net) 13.52 4.36
Fair value changes on derivative instrurments - §.27
Loss on sale of assets held for sale - 33.72
Impairment of business 32.00 -
MTM Gain on Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to {3,968.98) -
Tata Capital Limited {Refer Note 48)
COperating cash flow before working capital changes and discounting tharges 152,50 {622.80)
Movements in working capital
Trade and other receivables 7.26 {27.28)
Loans - 1,418.53
Cther financial assets - {18.59)
Trade and other payables {1.81) 41.87
Cther non-fiancial assets (1.54) {31.89)
QOther financial fisbilities 4.60 27121
Provision for expenses (0.13) 13.88
Cther non-financial liabilities 0.96 (5.68}
Assets held for sale - 95.08
151.74 1,138.2¢
Finance costs paid {281.05) {2,343,52)
Current/income taxes paid/ (refund) {net} {50.40} (5.89)
Net cash used in operating activities 1169.71) {1,231.15}
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assats {43.54) {111.78}
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 14,81 8.77
{Purchase)/ Redemption of mutual fund units (net} {45,59) 146.12
interest income recefved on loans, deposits and investmensis 94.6G 4,005.93
Redemption of Debt securities - 1.50
investment in treasury bills - {5,372.30)
Rademption of treasury bills - 5,380.0¢
Distribution from trust securities - 0.5%
Deposits with more than 3 months maturity - {13.86)
Realisation of deposits/restricted deposits with banks 100.00 74.70
Investment in channel finance - {5,593.94)
Recovery in channetl finance 353.95 6,061.55
Inter corporate deposit {placed)/repaid (net) 118.00 -
Bividend income - 12.35
Net cash generzted from investing activities 602.23 4,660.23




TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended March 31, 2025

{%in crores)
For the year ended For the year ended
Pasticulars March 31 Pjarch 31
2025 2028
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

increase in cash cregit (net) - £8.06
Interasi payment on iease itabiiity - 16.77)
Principal payment of jease liability - (14.28)
Distributions made to holders of Instruinents entirely equity in nature {143.35) (317.50)
Repayments of Collatralised debt obligation - {74.87)

Proceeds from debt securities 480,60 8,366.54
Repayment of debt securities {2,846.17) (13,179.00%
Repayment of subordinated liabifities - (230.10)

Proceeds from borrowings {other than debt securities) 2,852.00 216,401.95
Repaymaent of borrowings {other than debt securities) {892.00} £19,551.57)
Net cash used in financing activities {438.92) {4,537.64)
Met decraase in cash ang cash agquivalents A+ 2 + ) {540} {1,148.56)

(% in crores)

for the year endad For the year ended
Patticulars March 33 Margh 31
2025 2024

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,162.41
Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited 1o Tata Capital Limited {Refer Note 48) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,013.85
Net decrease in cash 2nd cash equivalents {1,148.56)
See accompanying notes forming part of the consofidzied financial statements |
Motes:

Finance costs has been considered as arising from operating activities in view of the nature of the group's business

The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method 23 per the requirements of ind AS 7 Statemant of Cash Flows.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
For B R Maheswari & Co LU PATHAMAD g ™ S
Chartered Accountants Al BALACHANDRAN NARUMANCREALE

BALACHAND Batad HIVENKATA i,

Firm Registration Number: 001035N/ 300050
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Director
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2.3

TMF HOLDENGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Background and cperations

TMiF Holdings Limited (the “"Company®) is registered as a Non-Banking Financial {Mon-Depaosit Accepting or Holding)
Company with the Reserve Bank of India {RBI} with effect from August 8, 2006. Pursuant to application raquesting for
conversion of the Group to a Core Investment Company, submitted to RBl on fune 23, 2017, RBlissued & fresh Certificate
of Registration of NBFC - Non Deposit taking - Systemically Imperiant - Core Investment Company {CIC) dated October 12,
2(G17 to the Company.

The Company is primarily a holding company, holding invesiments in its subsidiaries and other Groug companies.

The Company and fts subsidiaries {colfectively referred 1o as "the Group”) is engaged primarily in lending activities
providing finance for vehicle and to corporates dealers and vendors of ultimate parent company (referred to as "Tata
Maotors Limited"), through its PAN India branch network,

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and suthorised for issue on May 10,
2025,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards {ind AS")
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) read with ralevant rules issued thereunder and the
other aceounting principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by the
Reserve Bank of India or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

The preparation of financial statements reguires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent
liahitities, Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are material to the
Group are discussed in para 3(ili) - Use of estimates and judgements,

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupeas {INR) and alt values are rounded to the nearest crores, except
when otherwise indicated.

Histarical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and plan
assets of defined benefit plans, which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Presentation of financial statements

Tne financial statements of the Group are presented as per Scheduie H (Division lil} of the Companies Act, 2013
applicable to MBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA). The Statement of Cash Flows has been
presented using indirect method as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The srincipal accounting polides applied in the preparatian of these financial statements are set out beiow. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consclidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiarias are entities controlied by
the Group. Control exists when the Group

{a) has power over the investee,

1k} it ;s axposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

{c} has the zbility to affect those returns through its power aver the investee,

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements listed above. In assessing control, petential voting rights that currently are exercisable
are taken into account. The results of subsidiaries acguired or disposed off during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statemaerts from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

The financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together of like items of assets, liabiities, incame and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balences and
intra-groug transactions and rasulting unrealised profit or {osses, unless cost cannot be recovered, as per the applicable
Accounting Standard in india. Accounting policies of the respective subsidiaries entities are aligned wherever necessary,
s0 as to ensure consistency with the accounting policies that are adopted by the Group under Ind AS.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controiling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the emount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in eguity and
attributed to owners of the Group.
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TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statemen; of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{2 in eroras)

As at March 31 Ag at March 32
Particutars 2025 2024
Number 3 Number 3
Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,74,15,53,442 1,741.59  1,74,15,83,.442 1,741,589
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding 2t the end of the year 1,74,15,93,442 1,741.59  1,74,15,93,442 1,731,589
Other equity
(% in croves)
Reserve & surplus Other components of equity
" i 7
Particuiars Special Securities Capital Retained insf:::'lt:nts Debi instruments :::;i:g Hedging Total
reserve Premium Account raserve eRYNINgs through OC1 threugh OCI Resarve Resarve
Balance 35 at Aprit 3, 2024 $34.2% 1,760.33 241.73 {3,779.50) 17854 326,71 15.08 16.41 (677.24)
Disposal on account of merger of Teta Motors Finance
Litnited 1o Tata Capital Uimited {Refer Mote 43} {276.46) 156.72 {150.82) - {178.54) (325.71) {15.08) {16.41} (B4€.27}
257.83 1,247.05 50,91 {3,779.50} - - - - {1,528.71}
Profit [ {Loss) for the year from continuing operations - - . [225.83} - - {225.83}
Profit / {Loss) for the year frem discontinued aperations 3.968.96 3,968.96
Totai Comprehensive income/{ioss) for the year - - - 3,743.13 - - - - 2,743.13
Distribt_xtions made to holders of instruments entirely - - (143.25) - - - (14338}
aguity in pature
Transfer to special reserve 74.28 - - (74.88) - - - -
Raiance as at March 31, 2025 332.72 1,847.05 50.92 {254.60} - - - - 2,076.07
{2 in crores)
Reserve & surplus Other companents of equity
Equi 2 of
Particulars Special Securities Capital Retzined ins:rzit:n:s Debi instramants ::: i: Hedging Total
feserve Pramium Account rasarve earnings N through OCH Eing Resarye
through OCI Reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2023 52391 1,750.33 241.73 (3,358.94} 144.65 381.35 (6.36) 21.96 {241.37)
Profit for the year - - - {116.55} - - - - {116,598}
Other comprehensive income [{less} for the year - - {3,33] 33.28 {55.64) 2131 {5.55 {9.23}
Toral Comprehansive income/lloss) for the year - - - {120.33} 33.88 {55.64) 21.41 {5.55} (326.22)
Distributions made to holders of Instruments entirely - - - {303.86) - - - - (305.86}
equity in nature
Transfer to special reserve 1038 - - £10.38} - N - - -
Balance as 3t March 31, 2024 524.29 1,790.23 24173 {3,779.50} 178.54 325.71 15.05 i5.41 {877.45}

See accompanying notes farming part of the ¢
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THF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

When the Group loses control of 2 subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair vaiue of consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (it} the previous
carrying amount of the assets (induding goodwill), and Jiabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. The
fair vaiue of any investrment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recogrition for subsaquent accounting under Ind AS 209 Financial Instrurments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investrnent in an associate or jointly controiled entity.

interest in loint arrangemenis- Joint Venture

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually
agread sharing of controf of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimaus consent of the parties sharing control,

A joint venture is a joiat arrangement whereby the parties that have joint controt of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. The results, assets and liabilities of 2 joint vemture are incorporated in these finandal
statements using the equity method of accounting as described below.

Eguity methoed of aceounting {equity accounted investees)

An interest in an joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date in which the investee becomes a
joint venture and are recognised initially at cost. The group's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The consolidated financial statements include the group’s share of profits
or losses and equity movements of equity accounted invesiess, from the date that joint control commences until the
date that joint controf ceases,

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that
interest (including any long-term investments in the nature of net investments} is reduced to nil 2nd the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except 10 the extent that the group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of
the investee,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group’s
interest in the joint venture, unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred and where material, the results of joint ventures are modified to confirm to the
group’s agcounting policies.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Acouisition refated costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, fiabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition are recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date, except certain assets and liabifities
reguirad to be measured as per the appiicable standard.

Purchase consideration in excess of the groug’s interest in the acquiree’s net fair value of identifisbie assets, liabilities
and contingent Habilities is recognized as goodwill. Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
igentifiable assets, Hiabilities and contingent liabilities over the purchase consideration is recognized, after reassessmant
of fair value of net assets acquired, in the Capital Reserve.

Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under comrmon control are accounted for
using the pooling of interest method. The difference between any consideration transferred and the aggregate historical
carrying values of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised in sharehoider’s equity.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting polities and reported amounts of assets, lisbifities and
disclosures of contingent fiahifities at the date of these financial statements and reported amounts of income and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underfying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to sccounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised and future period affected.

In particuler, information about materizl areas of estimstion uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in
following notas -
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TRF HOLDINGS LIVITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financia! Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

a} Mote 3 (xill) A- Business model assessment for classification and measurement of financial assets
b} Note 3 (i} A and 43 - Impairment of financial assets based an the expected credit loss model

c} Note 3{iv) - Recognition of interest income/axpenses using Effective Interast Rate [EiR) method.
¢} Nota 3{vi} and 3{vii) - Useful lives of property, piant and equipment and intangible assets.

e) Note 3(x} and 36 - Measurement, of assets and obligations of defined benefit employee plans.

f} Note 3(v) and 12 - Recognition of deferred tax assats.

g) Nete 3{xi) - Measurement and recognition of Provisions and Contingencias.

h) Mote 3(xili} and 38 - Fair value measuremant of Financial Instruments.

i} Note 3(«iii} A - Effective Interest Rate {EIR} methodology that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return
over the expected behavioral ife of financial instruments.

1} Note 3(viii)- Determination of lease term where Group is a lessee

k} Mote 3{ix] & 144 - impairment of intangible assets- goodwill

Reveriue recognition

{2} Income on toans arising from financing activities

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate {EIR) to the gress carrying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets. When 2 financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Group calculates interest income
by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortized cost of the finangial asset,

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

- the rate that exactly discourits estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
grass carrying amount of a financiat asset.

- by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows,

- including all fees/service charges and incentives paid and received between parties o the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts,

Any subseguent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interast income with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets,

Overdue Interest is recognised on a point-in-time basis, and are recorded when realised since the probability of collecting
such monies i estabiished when the customer pays,

income from direct assignment,
Gains arising cut of direct assignment transactions camprise the difference between the interest on the lvan portfolio

and the applicable rate at which the diract assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess
interest spread {EIS}. The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at the
applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the consolidated statement of profit and Joss,

Income Taxes

Income tax expanse comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit &
legs except when they relate to items that are recognised outside the consolidated statement of profit and loss (whether
in ather comprehensive income or directly in equity}, in which case tax is also recognised outside the consolidated
statement of profit and {oss.

Current Income taxes are determined based on raspective taxable income of Group and tax rules applicable for
respective tax jurisdictions.

Daferred tax assets and lisbilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax assets and lishilities are computed separately. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is grobable that future taxablie income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets ang liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realised or the Habitity is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax assets and Habiities are offset when there {5 a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax fiabilitias angd when they relate fo income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current and deferred tax assets and Labilities on a net basis.

Praperty, Plant and equipment {PPE}

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depraciation and impairment, if any,
Cost inclugdes purchase price, non-refundable taxes and levies 2nd other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to its location and working condition for its intended use.
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TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consclidated Financizl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2623

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated
usage, operating conditions, past history of replacerment and anticipated technological changes.

Schedute !l to the Companies Act 2013 {*Schedule’) prescribes the useful ives for various class of assets. For certain class
of assets, based on technical evaluation and assessment, Management befigves that, the useful lives adopted by it
reflects the periods over which these assets are expected to be used. Accordingly for those assets, the useful lives
estimated by the management are different from those prescribed in the Schedule. Management's estimates of the
usefut lives for various class of PPE are as given below:

Tvpe of Asset Estimated useful life
Building 19 and €0 Years
Data Processing Machines 3Years

Furniture and Fixture 5and 10 Years
Office Equipment 210 10 Years

Motor Vehidles 4 and 5 Years
Vehicles on Operating Lease 4 and 6 Years

The useful fives and method of depreciation is revieweg at least at each year-end, Changes in expected useful lives are
treated as change in accounting astimates,

However, leasehold improvements and PPE located in leasehold premises are depreciated on a straight-line method over
shorter of their respective useful lives or the tenure of the lease arrangement.
Individual assets costing less than <. 5,000/- are expensed off at the time of purchase.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible asseis are
carried at cost less any accumuiated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amertisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed a1 least at the end of each reporting period. Changes In the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite fives fs recognised in the consclidated statement of
prafit and joss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. imtangible assets are amortised on 2
straight-line besis over thelr estimated useful lives.

intangible Assets and their Usefu! Lives are as under

Type of Assets | Estimated useful Life
Software S years

Leases
Contracts/arrangements, or part of a contract/arrangement meeting the definition of "lease” and falling within the scope
of ind AS 115 "Leases™ 1o follow accounting mentionad below

{4} Group is 2 Lessee - Assets taken on lease

{i} Right of use of assets

The Group recognises right- of- use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, lass accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recogaised, initial direct costs incurred and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Greup is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased assel at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straighi-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and lease term. Right-of-use assets are
subject to impairment.

{fi}) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments ta be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments {including in-substance fixec
payments) and variable lease payment that depend on a index or rate less any lease incentives receivable. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exerdising the optien to terminate.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised in the consolidated statememn of
profit and loss as an expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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TMVIF HOLDIBGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

In caiculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implcit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest with corresponding amount recognised in
finance cost under the consolidated statement of profit and loss and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, 2 change in the
in-supstance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group appiies recognition exemption of not to recognise right-of-use assats ard lease liabilities for short-term leases
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain 2
purchase option} and fow-value assets that are considered of low value, Lease payments on short-term ieases and leasas
of low-velue assets are recognised as expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

B) Group as a Lessor

Lease classification is made at the inception date and is reassessed only if there is a lease modification, Changes in
estimates {for example, changes in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset}, or
changes in circumstances {for exampie, defauit by the lessee), is not 2 lease modification do not give rise te a new
clagsification of a isase for accounting purposes.

Assets eiven on operating lease
The Grouy has given vehicles on lease where it has substantially retained the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership of

an vehicie and hence these are classified as operating lease. These assets given on operating lease are included in
Property Plant and Equipment {PPE). Depreciation on the vehicla are recognized as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and Joss and initial divect cost incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the vehicle and are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss in the form of depreciation over
the operating lease term.

Lease rental income is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and 3oss as per contractual rental unless
another systeratic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit derived from the leased asset is
diminished,

Assets given on finance lease
The Group has given vehicles on lease where it has transferred substantiaily ail the risks and rewards incidental to

ownership of 2n vehicle and hence these arg classified as finance lease.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as & finance fease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in
the lease. The net Investment in the lease is cafculated by discounting the gross investment in lease at the interest rate
impiicit in the lease. Lease rantais for the period are apportionad betwaen principal and interest income. The portion of
principal amount foring part of principal amount reduces the net investment in the lease. interest (finance) income is
recognised in the statement of profit or Joss under Interest income over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment in the lease.

Impairment of Man financial assets

Goodwill

Cash generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairmant annuaily at each balance sheet date, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than the carrying smount of the unit, the impairment loss it allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated te that unit and then to the other assets of the unit gro rata on the basis of carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Goodwill impairment loss recognized is not reversed in subsequent period.

Property, plant and eguipment and other intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that any groperty, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. if any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimatad to determine the axtent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverabie amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, in assessing vaiue in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cashe-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to #ts recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.



TMF HOEBINGS LIMITED
Motes forming part af Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 32, 2625

(%t Employas benefits

{A) Shert-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of shortterm emgployee benefits expected to be patd in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognised during the pericd when the empioyee renders the service. These benefits include salaries and
perfarmance incentives/bonuses which are expectad to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the empioyee renders the related services.

(B} Post Employmant/retirement benefit Plans
{1) Defined contribution pians

Superanrmation fund

For superannuation fund, Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the coniributions made.
Payments/Caontributions to the Group's defined contribution plans are stcounted for on an accrual basis {i.e. when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution) and are recognised as an expense in the
consofidated statement of profit and loss,

{2) Defined benefit plans

(@} Peavident fund

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of TMF Holdings Limited and one of the subsidiary Company are
entitied te receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which beth employees ang the
Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of
employees’ salary). The contributions, except the employer’s contribution towards pension fung paid to the Regienal
Provident Fund office, as specified under the law, are made fo the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by Tata
Moters Limited {uitimate Parent Company), The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than
the statutory rate of inmterest declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and
Misceltaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Company. The liability in respect of the
shortfall of interest earnings of the Fund is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The principa! and interest
liahility arising oniy to the extent of the aforesaid differential shortfalls is a defined benefit.

{b) Gratuity

For defined benefit schames in the form of gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is actuarially determinad using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each year end. The retirement benefit
obiigation recognised in the Balance Sheet reprasents the present value of the defined henefit obligation as reduced by
the fair velue of scheme assets.

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, post employment/retirement defined benefit plan covering eligible
emplayees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments to eligible employeas on resignation, retirement, or death
white in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ to 30 days’ basic salary
payable for each completed vear of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The liability
determined basis actuarial valuation is compared with the fair value of plan assets and the shortfall or excess is
accounted for as a fiability or an asset respectively,

Tha present value of the said obfigation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using market
yields of government bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liabifity.

The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liahility or asset.
The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined benefit liability is recognised in the consclidated stetement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the perlod in which they accur, directly in QCL They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtsitments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

{C} Other long term employee benefit plans

{1} Defined henefit plans

Cormnpensated absences

The figkilities for compensated absences are not expectad to be settfed wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period In which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respact of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
prolected unit cradit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related cobligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Metes forming part of Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(xi} Provisicns and contingent lisbilities

{xif)

A provision is recognised if, as @ result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to the net present vaive using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, whara appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
requirad to settle or a zeliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent lisbility. Contingent
liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or nmon-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the
centroi of the Group.

Claims against the Group, where the possibility of any cutflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabitities. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised
in the financial staternents.

Dividend {inciuding dividend distribution tax}

Any dividend declared or paid by Group and its subsidiaries is based on the profits svailable for distribution as reported in
the financial statements. Indian law mandates that dividend ba declared out of distributable profits, after setting off un-
provided losses and depreciation of previous years. In case of inadequacy or absence of profits in a particuiar year, a
group may pay dividend out of accumulated profits of previous years transferred to consolidated statement of profit and
loss. Hawever, in the absence of accumulated profits a group may declare dividend out of free reserves, subject to
cartain conditions as prescribed under the Companies (Declaration and Paymant of Dividend) Rules, 2014, Accordingly, in
certain years the net incama reposted in these financial statemeants may not be fully distributable,

{xdil} Financial instrurments

-

A firangial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o 3 financial asset of one enzity and a financiat liabifity or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

tnitial recognition and measurement

Ali financial assets are recognised initially at fair valua. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the firancial asset are added to the fair
value. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades] are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interast.

Classification and subsegqueant measurament

For the purposes of initial recogrition, financial assets are classified in the foliowing categories

a. at amortised cost, ar

B. at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH, or

¢. &t fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

The above classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flow.

(£} Debt Instruments
initial classification of debt insruments depends on the Group's business modet for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categaries into which the Group classifies its debt instruments.

(=} At amortised cost:

A debt instrument 3s measurad &t amortised cost, if both the following conditions are satisfied/ fulfilled

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coliecting contractual cash flows; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and
interest (SPP) on the principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to finance receivables
and invastments,

(b} &% FVTOCE

A debt instrument is classified at FVTOC, i both of the following ¢riteria are men:

- The chjective of the business madai is achieved both by caliecting contractual cash flows and seiling the financial assets;
and
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- Centractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solety payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
vafue. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI. However, the Group recognises interest income, impairment
losses and reversals in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumnulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OC! is reciassified frem the equity to the consolidated statement of profit and loss, interest
earnad whilst holding FVTOC debt instrument is reported as interest income wsing the EIR mathod.

{c) At FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which doas not meet the criterie for
categorisation as at amortized cost or s FVTOCI, Is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCH
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency {referred 1o as ‘sccounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized in the
consolidated statermnent of profit and foss,

Berivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of ind AS 102 are 0ot separated. Financial
assets with embadded derivatives are considarad in their entirety when determining whether their cash fiows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

{11} Equity instruments/investments

Investments in equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, which are held for trading, are
classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments, other than held for trading, the Group has irrevocable option to present in
00! subsequent changes in the fair value. the Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
ciassification is made on initial recognition and is rrevocable.

Where the Group classifies equity instruments as at FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL, There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to consclidated statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment,

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recogaised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

{10} kmpairment of financial assets

The Group applies the Expected Credit Loss {ECL) maodel in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognising impairment loss on
financial assets except for

- eguity Instruments which are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109, and

- gther debt financial assets held at fair value through profit or Joss {FVTPL)

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise from ail possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets {'lifetime ECL), unless there had been na material increase in credit risk of a default accurring singe
origination or initial recognition, in which case, the impairment allowante is based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL {both life time and 12 months) ere calculated on & collective basis considering the homogeneous nature of the
underiying portfalic of financial assets. In case of TMFHL, for stage 1 and stage 2 assets, the company makes provision at
higher of requirement as per ECL Model and as per RBI nprms.

The impairment methodofogy applies depends on whether there has been material increase in credit risk. When
determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased materially since initial recognition and when estimating
expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without ungue cost or efforf. This includes both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on
historical experience and forward-ooking information.

The expected credit loss is & progduct of exposure at default ('EAD’), probability of default {'PD) and loss given default
{‘LGDY}. The Group has devised an internal model to evaluate the PD and LGO based on the parameters set out in ind AS
109, Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented inte three stages based on the risk profiles. The three stages
reflect the genera! pattern of credit deterioration of a financial assets. The Group categorises financial assets at the
regorting date into stages based on the days past due {'DPD’) status as under:

- Stage 1: tow credit risk, i.e. O to 30 days past due

- Stage 2: material increase in credit risk, i.e. 3110 90 days past due

- Stage 3: Credit Impaired assets, l.e. more than 80 days past due or cases where the group suspects fraud and legal
proceedings are initisted.

For restructured cases which are not getting covered under any specific regulatory package issued by RBI, as 2 part of
quaiitative assessment of whether a customer is in default {L.e. credit impaired), the Company carefully considers and
assesses various instances to determine whether the restructuring of a loan or advance should result in treating the
custorner as defaulted and therefore assessed as stage 3 for £CL calculations,

Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in “default” and therefore Stage 2 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations when
the borrower becomaes 80 days past due on its centractual payments.



TMF HOLDENGS LIMITED
fNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

LGE is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where & default occurs at a given time. i 5 based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Group would expect to receive, including from the realisation
of any collatersl, It i3 usually expressad as a percentage of the EAD.

PD is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will defauit on their obligations in the feture. For assets which
are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifatime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered
to have a 100% PD, PD estimation procass is done based on historical internal data available with the Group.

EAD represents gross carrying smount at the reporting date in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2. In case of Stage 3 loans EAD
represents gross carrying amount at the time when the default occurred for 1st time,

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments gceurring in the economy
and market it operates in. On 2 pericdic basis, the group analyses if there Is any relationship betwean key economic
trends tike GDP, Brent rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD,
determined by the Group based on #s internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not
be always reflective of such relationships, temperary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such
macro-economic trends reasonably.

Based on the consideration of external actual and forecast information, the group forms a ‘base case’ view of the future
diraction of relevant economic variables. This process involves develaping two or more additional economic scenarios
and considering the refative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the
other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomaes.

Collateral vaiuation:

The Group craates & secures first and exclusive sollateral charge at the timea of loan origination on all vehides for which
vehicle financing leans are given, Hypothecation endorsement is obtained in favour of the Group in the Registration
Certificate of the vehicle funded under the vehicle finance catagory. Any surplus remaining after settlement of
outstanding loan by way of sale of vehicle {¢collateral) is returned to the custamer. Also, the Group secures portion of the
toss against loans financed to customers by obtalning third party credit guarantees, For the corporate lending loan
exposure, wherever required the Group obtains security cover in the form of immoveable properties by creating charge
over the collateral,

The measurement of impairment losses across all the categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particuiar, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and coliaterai vaiues when determining impairment losses and
the assessment of a material increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of aliowances. The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and thair interdependendies, The inputs and models used
for caleuiating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of financial statements. The
Group regularfy reviews its models in the context of actual loss experience and makes adiustments when such differences
are materially material.

The amount of ECL {or reversal) at the reporting date is recognised 85 an impairment loss/{gain} in the consofidated
statement of profit and loss,

ECL ot Dabt instruments measured at amortised cost
The ECLs for debt instruments measured at amortised cost is reduced from the gross carrying amount of these financial
assets in the balance sheet.

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through 0Q

The ECLS for debt instrumants measured at FVOCH do not reduce the gross cartying amount of these financial assets in
the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. instead, an amount equal to the sllowance that would arise if the assets
were measured ar amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated Impairment smount, with 2 corresponding
charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCH is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial assets is written- off {either partialty or fully) to the extent that there is no
reasonakie expectation of recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery pracedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any subsequent recoveries against such financial assets are credited ta the consolidated
statemant of profit and foss.

{iW] Derecognition of financial assets

The Group de-recognises a financiai asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferrad asset, the Group recegnises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated fiability as collateralised borrowing for
the procesds received.
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On de-recognition of @ financisl asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had bean recognised in 01, and accumulatad
in equity is recognised in the consolidated staternent of profit and loss.

Financial liakilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity .

Debt and equity instrumenss, issued by the Group, are classified as either financial lisbilities or as equity, in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

1] Financial liabilities

initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial fiabilities not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities are deducted
from the fair value of financial liabifities. The transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of finandial abilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or foss.

The Group’s financial liabilities majorly comprise of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, including bank
overdrafts and cash credit facility and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
Afl finandial liabilittes are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interast rate (FIR) method or at
fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL).

fal AT FYTPL:

Financial fiabilittes at FVTPL include financial liabilities heid for trading and financial Fabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FYTPL. Financial Habilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also inciudes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group,
that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated
embedded derivatives are aise classified as heid for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial ifabilities, designated upon initial recognition at FYTPL, are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind AS 100 are satisfied.

(b} At amortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the
Effeciive Interest Rate {EiR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the £IR, The EIR amortisation is included in finance cast in the
profit ar loss.

Finaaciat puarantee contracks:

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a foss it incurs because a specified debtor falls to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by a Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial

~ the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Berecognition of financial Habilities:

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities whan and only when, the Group’s obligations are discherged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabifity de-recognised and the consideration
paid and payabhle is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Modification/Renesotiation that do not result in derecognition

Changes to the carrying amount of a financial liahility as a result of renegotiation or modification of terms that do not
result in derecognition of the financial liability, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and foss. Any
subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows of finandal liability is recognised under finance cost in the
statement of profit or loss with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial lfability.

{11} Equrity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liahitities,

Incremental costs incurred which are directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Moetes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Cash and cash eguivalents

(Xin crores)

Particulars As at March 31 As 2t March 31
2025 2024
{3) Cashonhand - 7.02
(b} Balance with banks 6.19 567.86
[c}  Chegues, drafts on hand - 9.66
¢} Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months - 2,429.32
Total 5.19 3,613.86
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(%in crores)
Particulars As at March 31 As a2t March 31
2028 20524
{a) Deposits with banks - 104.25
(b} Earmarked balances with banks - 0.24
{Refer note i}
{c} Margin money / cash collateral with banks - 3.09
{Refer note i and iii)
Total - 107.68
Note :-

(i) Earmarked balances with hanks on account of undaimed interest on debt securities.

(ii} Margis: rnoney is towards mark-to-market on derivative instrument entered to hedge risk arising from external commercial borrowings.

{iit} Cash collateral with banks acting as credit enhancement in respect securitisation fransactions.

Trade Receivables

{% in crores)

Particuiars As at March 31 &s at March 31
2025 2024
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 10.05 45,13
Impairment loss atlowance-Trade Receivable {2.73} {3.70}
Tot] 7.34 43.43

No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or lointly with any other person. Nor any trade
receivable sre due from firms or private companies respectively In which any director is a partner, a director or 2 member.
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Ageing of trade receivable at March 31, 2025 is given below-

As at March 31, 2025

(T in crores)

Particulars

Qutstanding for following paricds from due date of payment

lessthané & Months -1

Maora than 3 Total

Not due Unbilled Mionths Year 1-2Years  2-3 Years Vears

{ii Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered good 5.78 . - - - - - 5.78
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables —

which have significant increase in

eredit risk - 1.73 - . . - - 1.7
{liz) Undisputed Trade Receivables —

credit impaired - 0.42 050 115 - - - 207
{iv} Disputed TYrade Receivables -

considerad good . - - - - N .
fv} Disputed Trade Receivables -

which have significant increase in

credit risk v . - - - . - .
{vi) Disputed Trade Recsivables -

credit impaired 0.17 - - - - - 0.32 .49

Totai 5.55 2.13 0.50 1.15 - - 0.32 10.05
Less : Allowance for receivables
considered good 0.4}
Less: Allowance for credit impaired
batances {2.57}

Total 7.34
ageing of trade receivable at March 31, 2024 is given below-

{Tin crores)
As at March 31, 2024

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particuiars Not due Unbilled tessthan6 &Months -1 1-2¥Years  2-3 Yaars More than 3 Torat
Wionths Year Years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivebles -

considered good 20,72 - 13.30 2.58 335 0.30 - 40.63
{if} Undisputed Trade Receivables —

which have significant increase in

credit risk - - 1.09 - - - - 1.09
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

credit impaired - 0.29 .18 - - - 0.47
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -

consideraed good .17 - - - - - 017
{v} Disputed Trade Receivabies —

which have significant increase in

credit risk - - C.53 - - - - 0.53
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -

credit impaired - - 0.78 0.55 .54 0.06 - 2.23

Tatal 20.89 - 15.98 3.99 3.89 0.26 - 45.12
Less : Allowance for receivables
considered good {5.98}
Less: Allowance for credit impaired
halances {2.7G}

Total 431,43
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8 Other Receivables

{Zin crores)

Particuiars As at March 31 As at March 31
2025 2624

Cther Receivabies considerad good - Unsecured 0.01 19.40

Total 4.01 1%.48

Mo ather receivabie are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or jointly with any other person. Mor any other

receivabie are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is 2 partner, & director or a member.

S Loans
{Xin crores)
Particutars As at March 31 As at March 31
2025 2024
{A} At Amortised Cost
From Financing Activities
{a)  Term loans - 12,380.20
(b} Finance Lease receivables - 153.90
{c)  Factoring - 329.05
{d)  Chanrel Financing - 1,796.31
(e}  Credit substitutes - B37.31
{Refer note (i) below}
From other than financing activities
Inter corporate deposits (repavable on demand) - 118.00
Total (A} - Gross - 15,654.81
Less: Impairment loss allowance - {897.50}
Total (A} - Met - 14,757.31
{3} At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FYOLY)
From Financing Activities
Term loans - 17,203.86
tess: Impairment loss allowance - {454.36)
Total (B) - Net - 15,749.50
@
{a}  Secured by tangible assets - 30,384.71
{refer note {ii) & {i#))
{b)  Covered by government guarantees - 478.02
({refer note {iv})
{c}  Unsecured - 1,995.94
Total {C} - Gross - 33,858.67
Less: Impairment loss allowance - {1,351.86)
Total {C) -« Net - 31,506.81
(o)
Loans in india
{a)  PublicSector - -
()  Others - 32,858.67
Loans outside indis
{a)  PublicSector - -
()} Others R .
Total (D] - Gross - 32,858.67
tess: impairment loss aliowance - {1,351.86}
Total {D} - Nat - 31,506.81
Motes

{i) Investments in bonds, debentures and other financial instruments which, in substance, form a part of the Group’s financing activities
{"Credit Substitutes") have been dassified under Leans.
i) Group covers/secures the credit risk associated with the loans lended to customers by creating an exclusive charge/ hypothecation/
security on the assets/vehicles as mentiened/specified In the loan agreement with the customers. This includes vehicle term loan lending dane
to Micro and Small Enterprises, for which the Group has availed the benefit of Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micre and Small Enterprises
{CGTMSE] scheme to secure credit default risk.

fiii) For ioans secured against underlying vehicle, security s created by way of-borrower signing and executing hypethecation Agreement
hefore disbursement of loan. Borrower ensures endorsement of hypothecation in R_egistration Certificate of underlying vehicle in favour of the
Company. However, in certain cases the Company is in the process of endorsing the hypothecation in Registration Certificate book of
underlying vehicle. This does not impact the Company’s right as security holder over the asset under finance in the court of law, in case of
default by borrower,

(iv) Fully backed by guarantee of Cantral Government of india under the emergency credit Uine guarantee scheme (ECLGS).
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TMIF HOLDINGS LEMITED
Motes forming part of Conselidated Financia Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2025

Annexure to Mote 10 - Details of investrients

{% in crores)

Quantity Cruentity
Bescrigtion finnosdasat AsatMar3l {innos)asat AsatMarch 31
Mareh 32 Parch 31
2025 2025 2824 2024
{a) Investments sreasured at fair value sther comprehensive income
Investment in equity shares
f} Quoted
Tata Steel Limited {face value reduced from Rs. 10 per share to Re,1 per i ) 60,95,110 $4.99
share)
Tata Chemicals Limited - . 10,060 1,09
Tata Power Limited - - 9,120 0.36
Tata Consumer Products Uimited - - 11,468 1.26
fiiy Unguoted - Group Companies
Taj Air Limited - - 42,080,000 4.20
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - {4.20)
Tata International Limited - - 19,350 42.29
Tatz Industries Limited - - 993,753 28.99
Subtotal {a) - 168.98
{b} Ilnvestments measured at fair value through profit and toss
i Imvestment in eguity shares
{i} Quotad
Auternobile Corporation of Goa Limited - - 48,315 10.45
Tata Technologies Limited - - 81,159,920 787.29
{ii} Unquoted
Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Limited - - 2,85,7:4 -
Tata Technologies Limited
- 797.74
i} Investment in trust securities
S81 Macquarie Infrastructure Trust - 1,50,00,60G 5.02
- 5.02
i investment in government securities (Quoted)
Government securities bonds - 2.68
- .68
W jnvestment in mutual funds 61.14 300.38
6114 300.38
Subtotat (b} 61.14 111282
{c} Investments measured at Amortised cost
1 Investment in Preference shares
0]
Fully P2id Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares {Unguoted)
6% Tata Precision Industries (ladia) Limited, 2025 - - 40,000 .40

C.AG



TMF HOLGINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Annexure to Mote 10 - Details of investments

{X in crores)

Descrigtion

Quantity
[ir nos.j as at
March 32

A5 at Mar 31

Cuaniity

{innos.}asat AsatMarch3i

March 31

2025

20825

2024

2024

i
{i

£t

it}

H
{it
{ii}

W

4

investments in Debentures and Bonds

Fully Paid Secured, Nan - Cumulative, Non - Convertible, Redeemable

Debentures {guoted}
8.49% NTPC Limited (issued as bonus) {refer note 1)

Fusdly paid unsecured subsrdinated non-convertible debentures
{guoted}
9.95% Tata Motors Finance Limited

Fully paid unsecured subordinated non-convertible debentures
{unguoted)

9% Tata Motors Finance Limited

10% Tata Motors Finance Limited

10.25% Tata Motors Finance Limited

Investment in government securities {Quoted}
Treasury bills
Government securities bonds

Fully pald unsacured optionaily convertible zere coupon debentures
Loginomic Tech Solutions Private Umited {“TruckBasy”) (refer note 2}

Subtatal {c}

investrments measured at cost

Egquity instruments

Joint Venture

Loginomic Tach Solutions Private Umited {“TruckEasy”} (refer note 2)
Subtotal {d)

Total{as b+c+d)

2,000

2,000
1,000
3,000

8,35,000

31,200

200.00
200.00

200.00
100.00
100.00
400.00

500.00

56114

2,75,752

8,35,000

31,200

129,52
1,087.33

1,247.25

1,247.65

2,528.45

During the financial vear ended March 33, 2024 there has been partial face value redemption in 8.48% NTPC Limited debentures. Thus,

restated face value post such partial face value redemption stands at Rs. 5.

During the vear ended March 31, 2024 the Group has written off investment, which was fully provided for in earlier year, of X 11.00 crores
{optionally convertible debentures of ¥ 8.35 crores and eqguity shares of X 2.65 crores) as the Group does not expect to recover its cost of
investment,
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TiE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2025

Cther firancial assets

(T in crores}

Particulars

As 2t Miarch 31

As 2t Mareh 31

2025 2024
{a} Deposits a.34 10.82
(et of provision T0.09 crores ; March 31, 2024 £ 0.19 crores)
{6} Interest accrued on investmenis 31.57 0.13
{c} interest acerued on deposits - 0.43
{d) Application money receivable towards securities - 61.35
(e} Receivable from mutual funds - 264.15
(A Others- Investment in TCL {Refer note below) 8,016.62 814.55
{Net of provision = ril; March 31, 2023 ¥ 54.1 crores)
Total 8,048.53 3,081.43

Note - The MCLT has sanctioned the Scherne of Arrangement of amalgamation of TMFL into TCL on May 01, 2025. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company will
receive equity shares in the ratic of 37:100, i.e. 18,38,67,495 equity shares having face value of X 100 each of TCLin liev of 49,85,39,176 equity shares having face

value of X 100/- of TMFL, which the Group has accounted at fair value through profit and loss @ % 436 per share.

12 Income taxes
2] Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
{Xin crores)
Particulars For the vear For the year
ended March 31 ended March 31
2025 2024
Income tax expeanse
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Adjustments for current tax of prior yaars - 0.30
Total current 1ax expense - 0.30
Deferred tax
Decrease (increase} in deferred tax assets 5.28 102.37
{Decrease} increase in deferred tax liabilities 104.37 63.69
Tetal deferred tax expense/{benefit) 1058.65 166.06
income Tax expense 109.55% 166.36
b} Reconciliztion of the income tex expenses and accounting profic

Reconciliation of the income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by india's tax rate:

{% in crores)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 31 ended March 32
2025 2024

Profit/{Loss) before taxes 3,852.78 49.35
Income tex expense st statutory tax rates applicable to individual respective entities 269,67 1242
Tax effect of the amount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income :

- Effact of axpenses not deductibie for tax computation - 0.70
- Utilisation/credit of unrecognised tax ivsses, unabsorbed depreciation and other tax benefits {0.22} (0.38)
- Dividend from subsidiaries, joint operations, equily accounted investees and available-for-saile investments ) .

- £ffect of income texable at lower rate - {57.60}
- tmpact of change in statutory tax rates - -

- Deferred tax assets not recognised because realization is not probable (1.25) 253.27
- Previously unrecognised and unused tax losses now utilised - -

- Daferred tax asset now crested on previously unrecognised and unused tax losses - {43.38)
- adjustments recognised in refation 1o the current tax of pricr years - 0.39
- Previously recognised deferred tax assets now reversed 5.28 -

- Taxes on income at different rates - -

- Disposat on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tata Capital Limited {Refer Note 43} {863.83) -

- Deferred tax liability on undistributable earnings of subsidiaries - -

- Others - 1.53
Income tax expensef{credit] recognised for the year at effective tax rate 102.63 166.36
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TVIF HOLDINGS LEIMITED
MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statemenis for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Deferrad 1ax assets/liabilities (net)

Significant components of deferred tax assets and labilities for the year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows:

{%in crores)

Disposal on
aecount of
f I{ 3
Particulars As at ;ﬂﬂ::s: :in:::a:a Through profit c?:n;f:e:t;:e As at
Aprit 01, 2024 ) and foss h March 31, 2023
Limited to Tata income
Capital Limited
{Refer Note 43)
Beferred tax liabilities :
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FVTOC and FVTPL 234.44 (234.19) . } -
- Disposal of investments in a subsidiary company - - 104,37 - 10437
- Income to be taxed on actual receipt basis 83.81 (83.81} - - -
- Sourcing commission claimed on Incurrence basis 40.08 {40.08} - - -
Totai deferred tax labilities 358.03 (358.63} 104,37 - 194.37
Beferred tax asset :
- Property, plant & eguipment & Intangible assets- Accumuiated
depreciation/Amortisation 1242 804 (a-33) i )
- Expenses deductible in future years: -
Provisions for impairment allowances on financial assets 303.45 {302.55} (0.50} - -
Compensated absences and retirement banefits alowable on
. £.14 (6.14) - - -
payment basis
- Unabsorbed depreciation under tax book 43 .88 {43.28) - - -
~ Others 5.06 {9.06} - - -
Tetal deforrad tax assets 374.95 {359.67) (5.28) - -
Net deferred tax asset/(liakilities) 16.92 {21.64) {109.65) - {164.37)
Significant components of deferred tax assets end liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:
(% in crores)
Ty other
Particulars As at Through profit cam::eg:en{::e As 2t
Aprit 01, 2023 and loss K wMarch 31, 2024
intome
Deferrad tax liabilities :
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FYTOCl and FYTPL 183.38 58.08 {7.32} 234.14
- Income to be taxad on actual receipt basis 77.51 §.30 - 83.81
- Sourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis 40.73 {0.70} - 40.08
Toial deferred tax Habilities B01.67 53.68 (7.32) 358.02
Deferred tax asset :
- Property, plant & equipment & Intangible assets- Accumuiated depreciation/Amorti 8.22 8,20 - 12.42
~ Expenses deductible in future years:
Provisiens for impalrment allowances on financlal assets 459.75 {156.30) - 303.45
Compensated absences and retirement benefits aliowable on
payment basis 5.02 1.05 ) 614
- Unabsorbed depreciation under tax book - 43.88 - 43.88
- Others {3.48) 4,79 7.75 9.06
Total deferred tax assets 469.58 {102.38) 7.75 374.95
Nat deferred tax assesf{liabilities) 167.91 {15606} 1507 31692

d) Amounts recognised directly in equity
There was no income of axpenses far current and previous year for which tax impact has been routed through raserve.

e} Tax iosses
As at March 31, 2025, unrecognized deferred tax assets amount o £ 7.22 crores {As at March 32, 2024 - T12.07 crores) and X 306.56 crores {As at March 31, 2024 -
% 827.22 ¢rores) which ¢an be carried forward indefinitely and up to a spacified period, respectively. These relate primarily to business losses, depraciation carry
forwards and other deductible temporary differences. The deferred tax asset has not been recognized on the basis that its recovery is not probable in the

foreseaable future.

Unrecogrized deferred tax assets expire unutilized based on the year of origination as follows:

Atarch 31, Xincrores

2026 13,00
2027 14.23
2028 8.18
2028 34.19
2036 27.16
2031 63,43
2032 §7.42
2033 74,15
Total 306.58
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Notes forming part of Conselidated Fin

TVF HOLDINGS LIMITED

ancial Statements for the year ended March 33, 2025

15 Other non-financial assets
(Zin crores)
Particulars AsatMarch 31 AsatMarch 3%
2025 2824
(a) Capital advances 0.04 16.22
(b} Depasits with statutory authorities 0.04 2.54
{Net of provision March 31, 2025 £ nil ; March 31, 2024 % (0,42 crores)
{ey Deposits paid under protest 171 13.09
(dj Prepaid expenses 0.06 448,19
{2) Taxes recoverable and dues from government 1901 111.4%
{Net of provision March 31, 2025 T il ; March 31, 2024 X3.04 crores)
{f) Stamp papers - 12.59
{g) Others non-financial assets 0.04 26.15
(Net of provision March 33, 2075 % nil ; March 31, 20243 2.17 croses)
Tokal 28.90 22271
1§  Derivative financial instruments
The Group do not have derivative financial instruments as at March 3%, 2025
Derivative financial instrurnents as at March 31, 2624
{£in crores}
. Notional Fair value Notional Fair Value
Pariiculars b ita
Arnouns Asseis Agmounts Liabilities
Currency derivatives
Forward exchange conhtracts 1,831.18 4.91
Currency Swaps
Subtotat - 1,831.18 4,81
Interest rate derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps 1,831.18 13.42
Subtotal 1,831.18 13.42 - -
Other derivatives
Cross currency interest rate swaps 538.96 89.02
Subtotal 538.96 82.02 - -
Tota) Derivative Financial instruments 2,370.14 1062.44 1,831.18 4.81
Derivative designated as hedge
Cash flow hadging:
forward exchange contracts 1,831.18 491
Cross currency interest raté swaps 538.96 89.02
interest rate swaps 1,831.18 13,42
Subtotal 2,3709.14 102.44 3,831.18 4.91
Total Derivative Financial instrurments 2,370.14 102.44 3,831.18 4,81

Rafer Note 43 on Financial Risk Manan

gement for maturity analysis of Derivative financial liabitities at March 31, 2024.



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2025

17 Payables
{%in crores)
Particulzrs AsatMarch 31 AsatMarch 31
2025 2024
(a) Trade Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.17 13.13%
(i} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smali enterprises .66 267.44
Total (A} 0.83 280.63
{b) Other Payables
i} total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(it} total cutstanding dues of creditors other thaa micro eaterprises and small enterprises 0.05 110.84
Total {B) Q.05 110.84
Total {a+B) 8.88 391.47

Note: According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from its suppliers regarding their
status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2006, the Group has amounts due 1o micro and small enterprises
under the said Act as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 a5 follows :

{Xin crorest

Barticudzrs Asat March 31 As at March 31

2025 2024

EE

rincipal amount due G.17 13.19
Interast due on above - -
Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

G

(d)  Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay " -
(e} Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end - -
{f} __Amount of further remaining due and payabis in the succeeding year - -
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THAF HOLDINGS LIMITED

notes forming part of Conselidated Financiat Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2025

Payables
Trade Payables aging schedule
Ageing of trade payable at March 31, 2025 is given below-

{%in crores}
As at March 31, 2025
4 1
Particulars Pot due Unbitied ess than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Tota
Year 3 Years
{iy MSME 0.15 - 0.01 - - 0.17
(i} Others 0.46 - 0.20 - - 0.66
#ity Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Othars - - - - - -
Total 0.62 - 0.2% - - - $.83
Ageing of trade payable at March 31, 2024 is given below-
{Xin crotes)
As 2t March 3L, 2024
Particulars Not due Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
Year 3 Years
(i} MSME 11.55 - 1.64 - - - 13.19
{ii} Others 160,20 35.90 §2.84 243 3.84 2.23 267.44
{iti} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dues-Others - - - - - - -
Total 171,75 35,80 &4.48 243 3.84 2.23 280.63




TRIF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Metes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2625

18 Debt securities {at amortised cost)
X in crores)
Particulars AsatMarch3l Asat March3i
2825 2024
{a) Privately placed non-convertibie debentures
Unsecured 1,116.08 5,299.38
{b) Commercial Paper
Unsecured - 1,968.99
{net of unamortsed discounting charges and borrawing cost of
% nit; March 31, 2024 X 56,00 crores}
Totat {A) 1,116.08 7.268.37
i. Debtsecurities in India 3,116.08 7,268.37
it. Debnt securities outside india - -
Total {B) 1,115.08 7,.268.37
Details of non cumulative debentures {unsecured)
[Xin crores}
Particulars As at March 21, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Aroount
Range Range
Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
viaturing within 1 Year 7.69% 3 389.32  7.02% to 10.54% 3,515.02
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.53% 831.33 7.69% to 8.53% 2,186.57
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years - -
Total Face Walue 1,228,65 5,701.99
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 104.57 402,61
Total Amortised cost 1,115.08 5,229.38

Datails of commercial papers {unsecured)

X in crores)

Particudars As at March 31, 2035 As at Mayeh 31, 2024
Interast Rate Amount Interest Rate Amount

Repayzble on Maturity:

Maturing within 1 Year - 8.32% 10 8.50% 2,025.00

Total Face Value - 2,025.060

Less: Unamortised discounting charges - 56,01

Total Amartised cost - 1,568.92



TMF HOLDINGS UMITED

Netes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the yoar ended March 31, 2025

19 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) {at amortised cost)

{Zin crores}

Particulars Asg at March 31 As at March 31
2025 z024

{a} Tarm loans from banks

(i} Secured - 19,826.74

(i} Unsecured - 2,463.72
(b} inter corporate deposits from ralated parties {unsecured) 2,145.00 -
{c} Loans repayable on demand from banks

(i} Secured - 2,740.00

{refer note i}

{it} Unsecured - 174.9G
{d) Cash credit from banks {secured) - 143.03

{rafer note i)

Total (A} 2,145.00 25,348.38
i. Botrowingsin india 2,145.00 22,867.84
ii. Borrowings outside India - 2,4380.45

Totat {8} 2,145.00 Z25,348.38

Note

Nature of Security for secured term loans from hanks:

Secured term loans from banks are secured by & pari-passu charge in

favour of the security trustee ont

a) All recetvables of the Group arising out of {oan, lease transactions and trade advances.

B gy Al ather book debts.
¢} Receivables from factoring in which Group has invested.

&} Such other current assets as may be identified by the Group from time to time and accepted by the security trustee.

(i} The borrowings have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Also the Group has not d

{iii) The Group has utilized aH it's borrowings from Banks & Financial Instituttons for the purpose they have been horrowed.

Setails of term leans from banks {secured]

efaulted in repayment of princips! and interest.

{Z in crores)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Parsiculars Interest Rate interest Rate
Amount Amount
Range Range

1 Repayable on Malurity:
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Maturing between 3 Yearsto S Years
Total rapayable on maturiy (A}

2z Repayabie in installments:

i, ©Onguarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing berween 1 year 1o 3 Years
Naturing between 3 Years to 5 Years
Subteizt {B]

ji. On half yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1yearto 3 Years
Maturing between 3 Years 10 5 Years
Subtotal {C}

jii. On yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 vear to 3 Years
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years
Subtatai (O}
Total repayable on instaliments {E = B+£+D)

‘Total term loans as per contractusl terms (F = A+E)
{ ess: Unamortised borrowing costs
Total Amortised cost (G

7.40% to 9.11%
8.79% o B.75%

§.25% 10 9.80%
8.25% t0 9.40%
8.25% 10 8.10%

8.50% to 9.85%
8.50% to 8.10%
8.50% to 8.55%

7.85% to 9.05%
2.05% to 9.05%
9.05% to 9.05%

2,005.00
200.00

—

2,205.00

3,695.80
4,496.44
1,414.06
9,606.30

908.43
2,842.81
1,289.52
5,041.88

260.00
200.00
100.00
500.00
15,158.18

17,353.18
6.82
17,246.28



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITEDR

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Betaills of external commercial borrowings (USD)

{Xin crores)

As at March 331, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

. interest Rate interest Rate

Particuiars
Range Amount Range Amount
{Rafer note) {Refer note)

Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 5.04% to 9.17% 83381
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.62% 0 B.78% 1,650.88
Maturing batween 3 Years to 5 Years
Total repaysble on maturiy 2,484.69
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 4.24
Total Amortised cost (H) 2,480.85
Grand Total (I=G+H} 1382678

Dgtaits of term loans from banks {unsecured)

(Zin crores)

As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 38, 2024
Particulars interest Rate Interest Rate
Amount Araount
Range Range
1 Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1. Year 7.90% to B.90% 210.00
Maturing between 1 vear to 3 Years -
Maturing between 3 Years {6 5 Years 8.80% t0 8.90% 400.00
Total repayable on maturiy (A} $10.00
2 Repayable in Instaliments:
i, Onguarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 9.05% 62.50
Maturing between 3 year to 3 Years 9.055 125.00
faturing between 3 Years to S Years -
Subtotsl (B} 187.50
fi. Onhalf yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.80% t0 9.20% 666,67
Maturing hetween Lyear to 3 Years 8.80% t0 8.30% 250.00
Maturing between 3 Years to S Years -
Subtotal [C) 916.67
i, On yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.70% 10 8.95% 750.00
Maturing betwaen 1 year to 3 Years -
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years -
Subtatat {D} 750.00
Total repaysble on installments (E = B+C+D) 1,854.17
Total term loans as per contractual terms {6 = A+F) 2,484.37
Lass: Unamortised borrowing costs Q.45
Total Amortised cost 2,863.72
Details of loans repayable on demand from banks {secured)
{%in crores)
As at Marchi 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Interest Rate Interest Rate
Amount Amount
Range Range
Maturing within 1 Year 7.70% 10 8.50% 2,740.060
Totai 2,745.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs -
Net 2,7460.00
Details of ioans repayable on demand from banks {unsecured)
[Xin crores)
As at March 33, 2025 As st March 31, 2024
Particulars interest Rate Interast Rate
Amocunt Amount
Range Range
Maturing within 1 Year B.083: to B.08% 174.50
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years -
Total 174.5C
Less: Unamortised botrowing costs -
Net 174.50
Details of cash credit facilities (secured)
{%in croras}
A3 at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Enterast Rate ! Interest Rate
Amgunt Amount
Range Range
Maturing within 1 Year $.90% to 2.05% 1,43.03
Maturing between I year to 3 Years -
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years -
Total 143.063
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs -
Net 143.03

Details of Inter corporate deposits from related parties {unsecured)



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Xin crores)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024
Particuiars interest Rate interest Rate
Amaount Amount
Range Range

Repayable on Maturity:

Maturing within 1 Year 8.25% to 8.92% 2,145.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years -
Maturing between 3 Years 1o 5 Years -

—_ -
e

Total 2,145.60
Less: Unamortised horrowing costs -
Net 2,125.00

20 Suberdinated Liabilivies (at amertised cost)
{Xin crores)

Particulars As ot March 31 As at Miarch 31
2025 2024
{aj Perpetual Debt Instruments o the extent that do not qualify
as equity {unsecured} - 50.10
(b} Privately placed subordinated unsecured redeemable, non-
convertinle debentures - 434.38
Total (A} - §84.48
i. Deht securities in India - A85.48
ii. Debtsecurities outside india - -
Totai {8} - A84.48
sarticulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
X in crores fFace Value {3} X in crotes Face Vajue (X}
11.03% THFL Perpetual "A” FY 2013-14 - - - -
11.35% TMIFL Parpetual "B" FY 2013-14 - - - .
11.10% TMFL Perpetual "A" FY 2014-15 - - 50.30 16,00,000.00
- 50.30
Less : Unamortised Borrowing Cost 6.20
Total - 55,108

rredemption pericd is not applicable as the NCDs are perpetual. The Group has a cal! option which can be exercised, after the prior approval of the
Reserve Bank of india, at the expiry of 10 vears from the date of allatment and at the end of every month thereafter. In case of non-exercise of the
aption at the expiry of 10 years from the date of allotment, coupon rate will be increased as per the terms of relevant offer docurment.

Details of Subordinated liabilities in the nature of Tier Il unsecured redeeemable non-convertible debentures
{Zin crores)

As 2t March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particuiars Interest Rate Interest Rate
Ameount Amount
Range Range
lssued on private placement basis
Repayabie on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year - 9.70% to 10.60% 235.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - -
Maturing batween 3 Years to 5 Years - 8,35% to 10.00% 200.00
Maturing heyond 5 Years - -
Totai Face Value - 435,00
Less: Unamortised horrowing cost - 0.62

Total Amortised cost - 434.38
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2025

21 Other financials lizbilities

{Xin crores}

Farticulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2025 2024
{a} Interast accrued on borrowings - 145.88
(b} Interest payabie on others 26.04 26.04
{c} Lease liability for right of use assets - 81.68
{d} Payable for assigned receivabies - 437.31
{2} Deposits 16.18 20.14
{f} Others - 473.33
Total 42,22 1,184.38
22 Provisions
(% in crores)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2035 2024
{2) Provision for leave encashment 0.02 11,21
(b} Provision for gratuity - 7.52
{c} Provision for indirect taxes 0.01 68.92
{d} Provision for consumer disputes - 1118
{e} Provision for expenses 0.07 12.09
Total 0,16 116,93
23 Other non-financial liabilities
(Xin crores)
Particulars AsatMarch31  Asat March 31
2025 2024
Statutory dues 5.42 54,81
Others 0.37 18.71
Total 572 74,62




TMFE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Motes forming part of Consofidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

24p Ecuity Share Capital

{Xin crores)

. A5 at March 31 Asatarch 31
Particulars
2025 2024
No. of shares T Mo. of shares %
A Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 3,00,00,00,000 3,000.00 2,50,00,00,00C 3,500.00
3,000.00
Preferance shares of T 160 each 7,50,00,000.00 750.00 7,50,00,000.00 750.00
750.00 730.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,74,15,93,442 1,741.59 1,74,15,93,442 1,741.58
Total 1!741.59 1;741.59
a)  Reconchiation of the equity shares sutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
{Zin crores)
particulars As at March 31 A5 gt March 31
: 2025 2024
Meo. of shares g Nag. of shares K3
(38} Shares cutstanding at the beginning cf the year 1,74,15,93,442 1,741.59 1,74,15,93,442 1,741.59
Shares eutstanding at the end of the year 1,74,1593 442 1,741.59 1,74,15,93.442 2,741.59
BY  DPetails of shares held by holding company and its subsidizries:
particuiars As at Parch 31 As 2t March 31
2025 2028
% of lssued % of {ssued
No. of shares Mo, of sh
© Share Capital ©- of shares Share Capitel
Equity shares with voting rights
Tata Motors Limited 1,74,15,83,442 1005 1,74,15,93,442 100%
¢} Detzils of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the issued share capital:
articulacs As at March 3% As at ddarch 31
2025 2024
% of Issued % af 1ssued
No. of share: No. of sh
ares Share Capital o. ol shares Share Capital
Equity Share with veting rights
Tata Motors Lirnited 1,74,15,93,442 100% 1,74,15,93,442 10055
d)  Terms / rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has single class of equity shares. Accordingly, alf equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's
rasidual assets. The equity shares arg entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference
shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On
winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distributton
of all preferential 2mounts in proportion 10 the number of the equity shares held.
e} Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
i The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.
fi. The Company has notissued any bonus shares.
iii. The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.
f}  Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year

The Company has not deciared dividends during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
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Motas forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

As at March 31 As at March 31
248 Instruments antirely 2guity In nature 2025 2024
Number {% in crores) Number {% in crores)
Balance as at beginning of the year 18,000 1,800.00 18,000 1,800.00
Increase during the year - - - -
Balance as at end of the year 18,000 1,.800.00 18,000 1,800.00
Details of instrumeants entirely equity in nature hald by -
As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2025 2024
Numbar 2 Number g
Others 13,000 1,300.00 18,000 1,800.00
Tata Motors Limited 5,000 500.00 - -
Totai 18,000 1,300.00 13,000 1,800.00

The Company has issued 18,000 subordinated, listed, unsecured, rated perpetual securities of face value of % 10 lakhs each aggregating to X 1800.00 crores. The
caupon on these securities ranges between 7.2962% p.a. 10 8.7551% p.a.

These securities are perpetual in nature with no maturity or redemption and are caliable only at the option of the Company. There is a step up provisioa of 100 bps
over the respective coupon rate if the securities are not calied by the issuer at the end of 10 years from the date of allotment. The payment of any Coupon may be
cancelled or suspended at the discretion of the Board of Uirectors.

The Coupon on these instruments shall not be cumulative axcent where the Company shall not be liable to pay Coupon and may defer the payment of Coupon, if

i. it's adjusted net worth to aggregate risk weighted assets ratic (“ANW Ratio”) is below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by R8! under the CiC
Directions; or

if. the impact of such payment results in the Company’s ANW Ratio falling below or remaining below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribad by &Bi under
the CiC Directions.

As these securities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, thase are classified as aquity.

Tata Motors Limited has written put option 1o purchase these instruments from the investors on respective option exercise dates as specified below:

Onptions Exercisable Date Amount {¥ in crores) Status of Options E_KETCESEd by
Tata Motors Limited
11" August, 2024 195 Exercised
18" August, 2024 305 Exercised
04™ November, 2025 100 Not due
27" November, 2025 100 Not due
2™ December, 2025 150 Mot due
30” December, 2025 150 Not due
15" Segtember, 2026 100 Not due
28" September, 2076 100 Not due
30" September, 2026 15G Not due
30™ June, 2027 200 Not due
30™ September, 2027 250 Not due




TiVIF HOLDINGS LUIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2025

24C {i} Other components of equity
{1} The movement of equity instruments through other comprehensive income (OCH} is a5 follows -
{Tin croves}

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 178.54 144,65

Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tata Capital Limited (Refer Note (178,54} -

48}

Other comprehensive income for the vear - 33.89

Balance at the end of the year - 178.54

{2} The movement of hedging reserve is 25 foliows :-
(Xin crores)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Riarch 31, 2023

Belance at the beginning of the year 15.41 2388

Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tata Capital Umited {Refer Note {16.41} -

48}

Gain/{loss) recognised on cash flow hedges - {5.55)

Balance ai the end of the year - 16.41

{3} The movement of cost of hedging reserve is as follows -
{in crores}

Particulars Year endad Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance 2t the beginning of the year 15.05 {6.36)

pisposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tata Capital Limited (Refer Note {15.05) -

48}

Gain/lloss) recognised on cash flow hedges - Gain/{Loss) - 21.41

Balance at the end of the year - 15.95

{4} The movement of debt instruments through other cornprehensive income is as follows -
(% in crores)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Miarch 34, 2023
salance at the beginning of the year 325.71 381.35
Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motars finance Limited to Tata Capitat Limited (Refer Note {325.71) -
48}
. {55.64)

Gainf{loss} on fair value of debt instruments (net of ECL and tax effects)

Batance at the end of the year - 325.71

{5} Summary of other components of equity :-

(Xin crores)

Particulars Year ended Year anded
March 31, 2024 narch 31, 2022
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - 178.54
Hedging Reserve - 16.41
Cost of hedging reserve - 15.065
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income - 325.71
- 535.71

Total




a)

b}
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TMIF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{1} Motes to reserves

Special reserve

As per Section 45-C of Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 every non-banking financial company shall create 3 reserve fund and transfer
therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any
dividend is declarad. No appropriation of any sum frem the reserve fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except
for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to
the Reserve Bank of indiz within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal,

Capita! redemption raserve

The indian Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act”) requires that where a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or
securities premium account, 3 sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to a capital redemption
reserve account and details of such transfer shall be disclosed in the balanca sheet. The capital rademption reserve account may he
applied by the company, in paying up unissued shares of the company to be issued to shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus
sharas,

Securities Premium Account
The amount raceived in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Account. Also, eligible issue
expensas in respect of new equity infusion & CCPS infusion is recognised In Securities Premium Account.

Capital Reserve

The Capital Reserve represents the compensating reversal adjustment relating to amortisation of discount on the Zero Coupon
Debentures which were charged against the Securities Premium Reserve earlier which is not aflowed as per the Companies Act, 2013,
This separate reserve head is ¢reated based on the FAQ issued by the ind AS Transition Facilitation Group.

Generzai reserve
The Group has transferred a portion of net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to General Reserve pursuant te the earlier
provision of Companies Act, 1956, Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings
Retainad earnings are the profits/ {losses) that the Group has earned/ incurred dll date.

Eejuity Instrurmact throkgh OC!
It represents the cumulative gains/{losses} arising on the revaluation of Equity Shares measured at fair value through OCL

Hadging Reserve through OC!
it represents the effactive portion of the fair value of forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedge.

Cost of hedge reserve
Fair value gain/foss) attributable to cost of hedge on all financials instruments designated in cash flow hedge relationship are
accumulated in cost of hedge reserve.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, Z025

25 Interest income
(Zin crores)
3 Forthe year ended For the year ended
Particulars arch 31 March 31
2025 2024
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
{a) interest onloans 1.90 30.39
{b) interestincome from investments 52.13 .
{c) Interest on deposits with banks 5.18 8.41
{d) Otherinterestincome 121 2.98
Total 55.43 41,78
26 Net gain on fair value changes
(X in crores)
. For the year anded  For the year ended
Particutars March 31 hdarch 33
2025 2024
{2) Netgain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1117 13,77
Totat 11.17 33.77
Fair value changes:
{2) Realised 11.05 13.77
{b} Unrealised 0.12 -
Totat 1117 i3.77
277 Fess and commission income
oarticulars For the yearended For the year ended
aftarch 31 March 3%
2025 2024
Crther feas & charges 0.03 0.02
Total 0.03 2.02
28 Otherincome
{Zin crores)
. Fer theyearended  For the year ended
Pariicutars March 32 iarch 31
2625 2024
{a} Support services income - 25,50
{b) Balances written back 0.10 G.11
(¢} Net gain on derecogrition of property, plant and equipment 1.61 001
{d) Miscellaneous income 6.09 £51
Total 7.80 30,13
28 Finance Costs {on financial lizbilities measured at amortised cost)
[Xin ¢rores)
. For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars Mareh 21 Mazch 3l
2025 2024
{a) interest on borrowings 49.81 2.82
(b} intarest on debtsecurities 218.00 282.68
{c) interest on subordinated liabitities - {58.17)
{dy Other finance charges - 0.01
Tota 268.82 227.34




TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

MNotes ferming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3¢ impairment/ {reversal of impairment) on financial instruments
{Xin troves)
Particutars For the year ended For the year ended
\ RMarch 32 March 33
2025 2024
toans {at amortised cost)
{a) Allowance for loan losses {3.00) {1.61)
(b} Loans written off {4.25) -
{net of recoveries of % 4.54 crores for the year ended March 31, 2025; 2 158,20 crores for
year ended March 31, 2024}
Investrmants {at amortisad ost)
{a} Allowance for investments - {21.03}
{b) investments written off - 1101
Other financial assers
{a} Allowance for doubtful assets (0.99) L1286
{b} Batances written off 0.02 0.68
Total 18.22} .33
31 Employee Benefits Expenses
(X in crores)
parsicutars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31 Tigzeh 34
2025 2024
(a) Salaries 0.27 0.71
{b] Centribution to pravident and other funds 0.02 0.04
Totai .23 §.75
32 Other expenses
(X in crores)
Particulars For the year anded  For the year ended
March 33, March 33,
2025 2524
{2 Rent, taxss and anergy costs .16 3872
{b} Repairs and maintenance 0.38 (.35
{c} Printing and stationery - 0.01
{0} Advertisement and publicity 0.61 0.01
{e) Director's fees, allowances and expenses 057 0.45
{f)  Augitor's fees and expensas 0.36 352
{refer note (i)
{g} Legaland Professional charges 2.30 1.70
{h) Insurance 0.04 0.65
{il Cenvatcredit reverss! 0.32 .29
{j) Service Provider Fees 1.92 170
{k} Netioss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 15.14 a.37
{l} Traveiling and Conveyance - 0.04
(m) Others expenses 0.13 0.26
Totai 21.33 48.88
{i} Auditors’ remuneration {excluding Geods and Service Tax):
(% in crores)
Sarticulars Far the year ended For the year ended
’ March 34 March 31
2025 26524
(8] Asauditors - statutory audit 0.24 123
{b} Tax audit 0.03 0.26
{c} For other services 0.07 .16
{d} Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.02 0.08
Total 8.36 1.74
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33  Earnings per share
Basic and diluted sarnings per equity share are computed in accordance with ind AS 33 — Earnings per share. Basic earnings per equity
share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity halders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year {including Ordinary shares that will be issued upon conversion of 8 mandatorily convertible instrument],
Biluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of alf the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The following table sets forth, for the vears indicated, the computation of earnings per share.
5 For the yeer ended for the year ended
Pasticulars March 31 March 31
2025 2024
Basic
Sasic earnings per share (%) from continuing operations (2.12) {2.75)
Sasic garnings per share (%) from discontinued operations 22.7% 0.30
Net profit attributable to equity share holders from continuing operations {refer (369.45) (472.69)
note 1}
Net profit attributable to equity share helders from discontinued operations 3,968.96 51.84
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 1,74,15,93,412 1,74,15,93,442
Diluted
Dituted earnings per share (%) from continuing operations {2.12} {2.75}
Diluted earnings per share [%) from discontinued operations 22.79 .30
Net profit attributable 1o equity share holders from continuing operations {refer (360.18) (478.68)
note 1)
Net profit attributable to equlty share holders from discontinued operations 3,868.96 51.84
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 1,74,15,93,442 1,74,15,93,442
Face valiue per share {%) 10.00 10.00
Note 1 - Calculation of net profit atiributable to equity share hotders
profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss {225.83} {168.82)
Lass - Distribution made to holders of perpetual instruments {143.35} {309.86)
Met profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity share hoiders {365.18) (478.69)
34  Segment reporiing
The Group primarily operates in one reportable segment of finanding and hence there are no separate reportabie operating segments
1o be reported as per the IndAS 108 - Segment Reporting.
35  Contingent liabilities and commitments -
i Contingent abilities to the extent not provided for:
A Claims against the group not acknowledged as debits: {T in crores}
Particulars As at ilarch 33 As at March 31
2025 2524
in respect of consumer disputes - 25.76
Towal - 2575
The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims agsinst the Group Companies primarily by the custorners and proceedings pending
with Income Tax and other suthorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and praceedings and has adequately provided
for where provisions are required and disciosed the contingent lisbilities where applicable, in its finandial statements. The amount of
provisions / contingent fiabilities is based on rmanagement’s estimatg, and no significant iability is expectad to arise out of the same.
8 Bank guarantee for which the Groug is contingently fiable:
{% in crores)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2025 2024
In respect of guarantees given by banks for [ncome tax matters - 29.00
Z Commitments:
A Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 3 nit {as at March 31, 2024: 15,27
crores)
8 Other commitments

5} Loan commitment towards vehicle financing % 294.35 crores {as at March 31, 2024: € 1904.25 crores)
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35 Empioyee benefit

a} Super annuation plan
The Group rakes contribution towards superannuation fund, a defined contribution retirement plan for gualifying employees,
The Superannuation Fund is administered by the Trustees of the Tata Motors Limited Superannuation Fund. The Group is liable
1o pay 1o the superannuation fund to the axtent of the amount contributed and recognises such contribution as an expense in
the year of contribution.

Cn zeeount of the above contribution plans, a sum of ¥ nil {previous year X 0,96 crores) has been recognised in the Consolidated
Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity plan

The gratuity defined benefit plan is a fundad plan and the Company makes contributions to the Tata Motors Umited Gratuity
Trusts for funding the defined benefit gratuity plan for qualifying employees. The plan provides for a lumpsum payment 10
vested empioyees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent 1o 15t
30 days salary payable for each completed year of service, Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service,

The following table sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for the

gratuity plans

a} Changes in defined benefit obligations
{Tin crorves)
Particulars AsatMarch31l  Asat March 31
2025 2924
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 53.31 51.91
Current service o3t - .76
interest cost - 3.37
Remeasurement {gains) / losses - -
Actuarial {gain] flosses arising from change in financlal assumptions - 0.60
Actiarial (gain} flosses arising from change in demographic assumptions - (0.62)
Actuarial (gain} /losses arising from change in experience adjustments - 3.39
Benafits paid from plan assets B {10.11)
Benefits paid directly by the employer - -
Transfer on account of Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Lirnited to
Tata Capital Limited (Refer Note 48) 153.31) -
Befined benefit obligation, end of the year - 53.31
b) Changesin plan assets
{Xin erores)
Particulars Asativiarch 31 As at Miarch 31
2025 2024
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 45.79 51.80
Interast income on plan assets - 339
Remeasurement {gains) / josses ) - -
Return on plan assets, {exciuding amount included in net Interest expensa) - 0.03
Employer's contribution - 0.58
Benefits paid - {1011}
Transfer on account of Disposal on account of merger of Tate Motors Finance Limited to
Tata Capital Limited (Refer Note 48) (45.79) -
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year - 45,79
g)  Amount recognised in balance sheet consist off
{Xin crores}
Particulars asatMarch31  Asat March 31
2025 2024
Present velue of defined benefit obligation - (53.31}
Fair value of pian assets - 45.79
Net {Liability} / Assets - {7.52)
di Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss {including discontinued operations):
{Xin croras)
Particulars AsatMarch3i  Asat March31
2025 2024
Current Service Cost - 4,76
interest on Defined Benefit Obligations {Net) - (0.02)
- 4.74

Net Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss
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¢} Amount recognised in Gther Comprehensive Income{0C) for the Year {including discaontinued operations:
(T in crores)
Particulars &5 at March 31 As at March 31
2025 2024
Remmeasurament of the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expensefincome - {0.03)
Actuarial gains/losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions - {0.62)
Actuarial gains/{losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions - 0.60
Actuarial gains/{losses} arising from changes in experience adjustments on plan liabilities - 3.39
Met impact on the other comprehensive income befors tax - 3.34
fi The fair value of Company’s Gratuity plan asset by category
{% in crores)
Particulars AsatMarch 31 As at March 31
2025 2024
Asset Category
insurer managed funds
~Insurer Managed Funds {unguoted) - 100%
The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximizing returns while ensuring credit guality of the debt instruments.
The asset allocation for plan assets is determined based on nvestment criteria prescribed under the Indian Income Tax Act,
1961, and is also subject to other exposure Hmitations. The Company evaluates the risks, transaction costs and liguidity for
potential investments. To mzasure plan asset performance, the Company comparas actual returns for each asset category with
published henchmarks.
g] The sssumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plans are set out below:
Particulars AsatMarch31  AsatWarch 3%
2025 2024
Discount rate NA 7.00%
Expected refurn on plan assets A 7.20%
Salary Escalation rate NA 7.005%
Indian Assured
Lives mortality
Martality Tables NA {2006-08} Ult
(a) Discount rate is based on the prevalling market yields of indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.
(b} The estimates of future salary inCreases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account the Infiation, seniority,
prornation and other relevant factors.
h} The maturity profite of defined benefit obligation are set out below:

{T in crores)

Particulars As at Miarch 311 Asat March 33
2025 2024
Within nexs 12 months (next annual reporting period) - 5.83
Between 1 and 5 years . 31,44
Between 5 and 9 years - 42.27
10 years and above - -

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:
{% irs crores}

Particulars As at viarch 31 | As at March 31
2025 2024

100 bps increase in discount rate - {2.89}

100 bps decrease in discount rate - 3.21

100 bps increase in salary escaiation rate - 3.17

100 bps decreass in salary escalation rate - {2.91)

The ahove sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption whiie holding all other assumptions constant. in gractice,
this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit obligation
calcutated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
defined benefit lizbility recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared te the previous year.
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Notes forming part of Consolidatad Financial Statemeants for the yesr ended March 32, 2025

Weighted Average Duration of Defined Benefit obligation:

Particulars As it March 3T As at March 31
2025 2024
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obiigation NA 5.81 years

k} The best estimate of the expected Contribution for the next year:
{Z in crores)
Particulars As at March 3L
2025
The Group expected contribution 1o the funded gratuity plans in FY 2024-25 -
i} Risk Exposure

Through its gratuity defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed 0 5 number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed
below :

investment Risk: If futurg investment réturns on assets are lower than assumed in valuation, the scheme’s assets wili be lower,
and the funding level higher, than expected.

Change in bond yeilds: A decrease in yields will incresse plan liabifities, although this will be partiaily offset by an increase in the
value of the plans” bond holdings.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Relazed party disclosures

Related parties and their relationship
Parties where the control exists:
Holding Company: Tata Motors Limited

Subsidiaries
TMF Business Services Limitad
Tata Motors Finance Limited (upto March 31, 2024) (Refer note 48)

Jotmt venturas
Loginomic Tech Solutions Private limited

{1V} Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place

i

{ii)

{3}

(v

{8}

Feliow substdiaries, asseciates and Jeint arrangements within the Group

Tata Motors Giobal Services Limited (formerty known 26 TML Business Services Limited}
Tata Technologies Limited

Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services india Private timited

Tata Motors Insurance Broking And Advisory Services Limited

Tata Cummins Private Limited

Tata Sons and its subsidiaries and Joint arrangements
Tata $ons Private Limited
Tatz AIG General Insurance Company timitad

post Employment Benefit Plans
TME Business Services Limited {Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance timited Fraployees Gratuity Trust)

Key Management personnel:

Mir. Nasser Munjee, Independent Director ang Chairman

Mrs. Varsha Purandare - Independent Director

Mr. N. V. Sivakumar - Independent Director

Nir. P. S. Jayakumar, Independent Director {upto November 7, 2023)
8y, Dhiman Gupta - Non-Fxecutive Director {upto December 23, 2024)
Mr. Amit Mittal — Chief Financial Officer (from December 1, 2024 to April 15, 2025)
Mr. Mohit Agarwal — Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f April 15, 2025}

Mr. Vinay Lavannis - Company Secretary {upto March 31, 2025}

Mr. Anand Bang, Manager

Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi — Company Secretary (w.e.f. April 1, 2025

Transactions/Balances with Related parties
The foliowing table summarizes related-party transactions for the year ended and balances as at March 31, 2025

(% in crores)

Other Related

Transactions Holding Company i Total
partias

al Transactions during the year

Rent income 0.05 2.38 2.43
interest income on channel financing / toan / bonds - 1.50 1.90
Expenses for support servicas {incl. reimbursement of expenses) 0.10 0.95 1.05
Loans and advances recovered - 365.56 365.56
Inter corporate deposits recovered 118.00 - 11840
Interest income on inter corporate deposits placed 1,21 - 1.21
Exercise of put optian on Hybrid perpetual bonds 500.00 - 500.00
interest expense on inter corporate deposits acceptad 449.26 - 49245
tnter corporate deposits accepted 2,940.00 - 2,940.00
Inter corporate deposits repaia 795.00 - 795.00
b} Balances as at

Amount payable in respact of inter corporate deposits 2,145.00 - 2,145.00
Arnount receivable others - 2.66 2.66
Amount payable others 0.22 .60 0.82
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37 Related party disclosures

The following table summarizes related-party transactions for the vear ended and balances as at March 31, 2024

{%in crores}

Other Related

Transactions Hoiding Company parties Totaf

a} Yransactions during the year

Purchase of receivable 2,105,77 404,06 2,509.83
Loans and advances given 618.00 5,563.84 6,211.94
Factoring transaction 0.14 - 0.14
Recoveries from employee benefit trust - 212 8.12
Loans and advances recovared ) 800.0G 6,061.55 5,561.55
Expenses for other services {incl. reimbursement of expenses) 1.43 40,12 41.55
Rant Expanses .11 - 011
QOther Expensaes - 0.15 0.15
income related to financing activities 0.01 “ 0.01
interest income from assets given on finance lease 3.02 1.57 4.59
Dividend incoma - 10.57 10.57
Rent income - 3.63 3.63
Other Income 0.36 - .36
Interest income on loans and investmeants 8.77 0.26 7403
Service charges income 0.329 - 0.38
Interest income on channel financing / Loan - 30.3% 30.38
Shert-term advances 409.23 643.54 1,052.77
Short-term advances refunded back 409.28 635.49 1,044.77
b} Baiances as at

Receivable - ioans and Advances 118.02 365.55 48357
Cther Receivables 102.78 40.64 150.42
Accrued Interest income - Finance lease 0.28 0.14 0.42
Other Payables 0.74 13.84 14.58
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37 Relzted party disclosures

Key management personnel remuneration
{%in crores)

Fortheyear  Forthe year ended

2)

Particul

ardculars ended March 31 March 31
2025 2024

Shart term employee benefits (refer note below) 0.31 12.26

Note: ‘

Expenses towards provision for gratuity and leave encashment which are determined actuariat basis at an overall Company lavel are not
inciuded in the above information.
includes sitting fees paid to non-executive directors is X 0.31 crores and % 3.34 crores for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024,

respactively.

Terms and conditions of transaction with related parties:
The transaction with related parties are made in the norma! course of business and on terms equivaient to those that prevail in arm’s

length transactions.
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38 Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by categories
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each ¢ategory of financial assets and liabilitfes as at March 31, 2025:
{Xin crores)

Derivative Derivative
Financial assets Amortised cost FvTac EVTRL ingtruments in instruments  Total carrying
hedging not in hedging value
relaticnship ralationship
investments 600.00 - 61.14 - - 661.14
Trade & other receivables 7.35 - - - - 7.35
Cash and cash equivalents 6.19 - - - - 5.1%
Cther financial assets 3191 - 8,018.62 - - 8,048.53
Total 64545 - 8,071.78 - - 8,723.21
{Zin croves)
Berivative Derivative
Financial liabilities Amortised Cost  FVTOC FYTPL instrumentsin - Instruments  Total carrying
hedging net in hedging value
refationship relationship
Barrowings 2,145.00 - - - - 2,145.00
Dabt securities 1,116.08 - - - - 1,116.08
Trade & other payables 0.88 - - . - 0.8%
Other financial liabilities 42,22 - - - - 42.22
Total 3,204.18 - - - - 3,304.18

The foliowing table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024:
% in crores})

Darivativa Perivative
Financial assets Amortised cost nToQ FVTPL instruments in nstruments Total carrying
hedging aot in hedging velue
refationship relationship
investments 1,247.65 168.98 1,112.82 - - 2,525.45
Loans 14,757.31 18,749.50 - - - 31,506.81
Trade & other receivables S80.83 - - - - 60.83
Cash and cash equivalents 3,013.86 - - - - 3,013.85
Other bank balances 107.68 - - - - 107.68
Other financial assets 1,091.43 - - - - 1,091.43
Derivative financial instruments - - - 102.44 - 102.44
Total 20,278.76 15,918.48 1,112.82 102.44 - 38,412.50
(% in crores)
Derivative Darivative
Finzncizal Habilities Amaortised cost FYTOCT FVTPL mstrumc?nts i msfrumen;ts Tetal carrying
hedging not in hedging valug
relationship rejationship
Borrowings 25,348.39 - - - - 25,343.39
Debt securities 7,268.37 - - - - 7,268.37
Trade & other paysbles 391.47 - - - - 391.47
Subordinated iiabilities 484.48 - - - - 484.48
Derivative financial instruments - - - 4.91 - 4.91
Other financial liabifities 1,184.38 - - - - 1,184.38

Total 34,677.08 - - 4.91 - 34,682.00
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Fair value hierarchy
Set out below, is 3 comparisan by class of carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial assets/labilities, other than those with the carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

{Z in crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025
Carrying vaiue Fair value Level T levei2 Lewel 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 6114 61.14 61,14 - - . 6Lid
Other financial asset 8,016.62 8,016.62 - - 8,016.62 8,016.652
Total 8,077.76 8,077.75 61.14 - 8,016.52 8,677.75

{% in crores)

Particuiars As at March 31, 2025

Carrying value Fair value Leve] 1 Eevel 2 Level 3 Total

Financial fiakilities measured at
amertised tast for which fair value is

disclosed

Borrewings 21,4500 21,45.00 - 21,45.00 - 21,45.00
Debt securities 11,16.08 13,19.81 - 13,159.8% - 11,15.81
Total 32,61.08 32,64.82 - 32,64.81 - 32,64.81

£air valuation of financiz! habilities that are of short term in nature is equal to it's carrying value

The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023:
{%in crores)

Particulars A5 3t March 31, 2024

Carrying value Fairvalue Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured 2t fair value

Investments 1,281'.80 1,281.80 423.25 - 858.55 1,281.80
Derivative instruments 102.44 102.44 - 102.44 - 102.44
Loans 16,748.50 16,749,50 - - 16,749.50 16,749.50
Total 18,133.74 18,133.74 423.2% 102.44 17,608.05 18,133.74

(Zin crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Carrying value fair value Level 1 Levef 2 Level 3 Totai

financial assets measured at amortised
cost for which fair value is disciosed

Loans 14,757.32 14,776.52 - - 14,776.52 14,776.52

Total £4,757.32 14,778.52 - - 14,776.52 14,776.52
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{Xin crores)

Particulars ! As at March 31, 2024

Carrying valug Fair value Levef 1 Level 2 tevel 3 YTotal
Financial Habilities measured 2t fair vajue
Derivative insiruments 4,81 4,91 - 4.91 - 4.91
Total 4.91 4.91 - 4,93 - 4.21

{Xin crores}

Particulars As at March 33, 2024

Carrying value Fair value Leval 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total

Financiai liakifities messured at
amortised cost for which fair vajue is

disclosed

Borrowings 22,290.45 22,290.45 - 22,290.45 - 22,290.45
Debt securities 5,299.39 5,238.01 - 5,288.01 - 5,288.01
Subordinated liabilities 484.48 457.50 E 497.50 - 497.50
Totat 28,074.32 38,075.95 - 28,075.86 - 28,075.96

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference 10 quoted prices
{unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities. This category consists of quoted equity shares and mutual fund investments.

Valuation technigues with observable inputs {(Level 2): This leve! of hierarchy includes financial assets and Habilities, measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabie for the asset or liability, either diractly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly {i.e; darived from prices).
This level of hierarchy include Group's over-the-counter (QTC) derivative contracts,

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs {Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measurad using
inputs that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model
based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from cbservable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based
on avaitable market data. This level of hierarchy include investments in certain unguoted equity shares.

There has been no transfers betweean level 1, level 2 and jevel 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Derivatives instruments are fair valued using market observable rates and pubtished prices together with forecast cash flow information where
applicable are classifiad in level 2. The fair value (L.e. Market to Market) of the derivative instruments is provided by independent third party externat
valuer (i.e. reputed benks/financial institution).

The fair value of loans arising from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flows using rates at which foans of similar
credit quality and maturity would be made and internal assumptions such as expected credit losses and estimated colfateral value as at March 31,
2025 and 2024. Since significant unobservable inputs are applied in measuring the fair valug of toans arising from finance activities are dassified in
tevel 3.

The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expectad future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return,
adjusted for the wredit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar maturity and credit quality are classified in level 2,

The fair vaiue of the long term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly
different from their carrying amousnts.

Costs of certain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriste estimate of fair value bacause of a wide range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range. These investments in equity instruments are not haid for
trading. instead, they are held for medium or long term strategic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 109, the Group has chosen te designate
these investments in equity instruments at FYTOC! as the directors believes this provides 2 more meaningful presentation for medium or long term
strategic investments, than refiecting changes in fair value immediately in profit or loss.

Certain unquoted equlty instruments clasified as Level 3 are falr valued by independent third party valuer using the Comparable Company
Methed/Approach (CCM). Since significant unobservabie inputs are applied in measuring the fair value they are dassified in Level 3. Increase or
decraase in muitiple will result in increase or decrease in valuation.

Management uses its bast judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial Instruments. Howaver, there are inherent iimitations in any estimation
technique. Therefore, for substantiaily alt finencial instruments, the fair value estimates presentad above are not necessarily indicative of all the
amounts that the Group could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments
subseguent 10 the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported st each year end.

Fair value of financial assets/Habilities measurad at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of other financial assets and other financiat izbifities other than those disclosed in table above valued at ievel 2 and level 3 are
considered to be the sarne as their fair values due to the short term maturities of Instruments and no materiai differences in the values.
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Reconciliation of level 3 fair vaiue measurement is as below !
{Zin crores)

Particulars As at March 31,  Asat March 34,
2025 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 17,608.06 17,210.90
Disposal on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance {17,608.06) -
Limited to Tata Capital Limited {Refer Note 48)
Additions during the vear - 4,116.74
MTM gain/({loss) recognized in OCH - {177.23)
MTM gain/{loss) recognized in P&L - £10.27
Realised during the year - (4,152.62}
Balance at the end of the year - 37,608.06

309 Group 3s @ Lessee

The Group has ieases for the office premises at its PAN india branches, rented yards for repossessed vehicles and for other equipments like Gensets.
With the exception of short term leases and feases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is refiected on the balance sheetas a right-of-use asset
and a lease liahility. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate {such as lease payments based on a percentage of revenue)
are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and asset.

The Group classifies iis right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment {refer Note 13}

Leases of rented offices are generaily limited to a lease term of 2 to 12 vears. Leases of rented yards generatly have a lease term ranging from 5 years
to 9 years. Lease payments are generally fixed however the Group has one lease where rentals are linked o outstanding Loan and the number of
empioyees

Each lease generatly imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Group to sublet the asset to ancther party, the right-of-use
asset can only be used by the Group.

Refer Note 13 Tor details of right-of-use assat recognized.

Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and lease lisbilities 2nd the movements during the year:
(X in crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 20258 As at March 31, 2024
Right-of-use Borrowings Right-of-use Borrowings
assets assets

Buildings Lease tizbilities Buildings Lease Liahilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 70.96 81.68 75.30 83.89
Disposal on account of merger of Tata (70.95) {81.88) - -
Motors Finanice Limited to Tata Capital
timited (Refer Note 48)
Additions - - 15.39 15.39
Detetions - - {2.89) (3.32}
Depreciation expense - - {15.84) -
Interest expense - - - 8,77
Payments - - - {21.05)
Total “ - 70.56 81.68

When measuring the lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental
borrowing rate.

Refer Note 43 on Financiaf Risk Manangement for maturity analysis of lease Habilities at March 31, 2024

{Rin crores}
s . For the year For the year
Set out beiow, are the amounts recognised in profit and
toss ’ 8 P ended March 31, ended March 32,
2625 2024

Depraciation expense of right-of-use assets - 16.84
Interest expense on lease liabilities - 6.77
Rent expense- Short term leases - 513
Leases of low value assets - 3.68

40 Group asa Lessor

The Group has given passenger and commerdial vehictes under operating lease.

The Group has recognised lease rental income from leasing of these assets amounting to T il (March 31, 2024: X 53.76 crores) in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, There are no variable lease rentals recognized during the year.

Although the risks associated with rights that the Group retains in underlying assets are not considered to be significant, the Group employs strategies
ta further minimise these risks, For example, ensuring ali contracts include clauses requiring the lessee to campensaie the Group when a property has
been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term.
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The undiscountad maturity analysis of future lease receivables is as follows-

X in croves)
As atMarch 3%, Asat March 31,

Particulars - 2024
Within 1 year 23.56 38.13
1-2 years 12.79 10.49
2-3 years 372 303
3-4 years 0.49 3.39
4-5 years - 0.56
Above 5 years - -
Totai 40.56 60.60

4% Finance Lease receivabies

The Group has entared into lease arrangements as 2 lessor that are considered to be finance leases. The Group ieases vehicles and as it transfer's
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets they are diassified as finance feases. The jease term for these leases ranges from 2
to 7 years.

The maturity analysis of lease receivabies, including the undiscounted iease payments to be received are as follows:

{% in crores)

Particulars AsatMarch  As at March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Lass than 1 year - 82.91
1-2 years - 56.18
2-3 years - 52.95
3-4 years - 35,16
4-5 years - 3.75
Total undiscounted lease payments - 234.95
Unearned finance income - {41.05}
Net investment in the lease - 193.80

Further, Group has recognized following amounts in consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year:

(X in crores)

For the year
Particulars
31, 2025

For the year

ended March ended March 33,

2024

Finance income on the net investment in
the Jease

13.90
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TVIF HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consofidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and Babilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled

(3 in croves)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024
Current Non current Totad Current Nan current Totak
t ASSETS
I Finzneial assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents 6.18 - .19 3,013.86 - 3,013.86
{b} Bank Salance other than cash and cash - - - 107.68 - 107.68
equivalents
(¢} Derivetive financial instruments - - - 96.18 6.26 102.44
{d) Receivables - - - - -
i. Trade receivables 7.34 - 7.34 41.43 - 4143
ii. Other receivables 4,01 - .01 1%.4¢ - 19.40
{e} Loans - - - 24,993.73 6,513.03 31,506.81
) Investrments 6114 B00.00 56114 481.32 2,048.12 2,528.45
(g} Cther financial assets 31.57 8,016.96 8,048.53 1,081.33 10,10 1,091.43
2 Non-financial assets
{3} Current tax assets {net) - 18945 189.45 - 354.16 354,16
(b} Deferrad tax assets (net} - - - - 16.92 16,92
{c) Property, plant 2rd equipment - 302.08 102.08 - 257.92 257.92
{d} Goodwil! - - - - 205.1% Z05.19
{e} Other intangible assets - 0.33 £33 - 7.24 7.24
{f} Other non-finencial assets 1912 1.79 20.9¢ 190,52 32.29 22271
3 Assets held for sale - - - £65.46 - 65.46
Total assets 125.36 8,910.61 9,035.97 30,080.86 §,451.24 38,552.10
1] LIABILITIES
i Financial liabilities
() Derivative financial instruments-FL - - - 19.51 {14.6G} 4.91
{b} Payabies
i. Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and 817 - 017 13.19 - 13.19
smazll enterprises
- totat cutstanding dues of creditors other than 0.66 - .86 267.44 - 267.44
micro enterprises and smali enterprises
i, Other payables -
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - - - - -
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 8.05 - 0.65 110.84 - 110.84
micro enterprises and small enterprises
{c} Debt securities 375.38 740.65 1,116.08 5,442.2% 1,826.08 7,268.37
{d} Borrowings (Other than debt securities} 2,145.00 - 2,145.00 12,385.83 12,961.56 25,348.39
{e) Subordinated liabilities - - - 234.27 250.21 484,43
{f) Other financials Habilities 12.68 208.53 42.22 1,064.69 115.6% 1,184.38
4 Mon-financial ligbilities
{a) Current tax hiabilities {net) 3.87 - 387 2.41 - 2.41
{b) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 104.37 - 104.37 - -
(¢! Provistons 0.07 0.83 0.20 15.32 95.60 110.93
{d) Other non-financial Hiabilities 2,80 2.99 5.78 74.62 - 74.62
Totat liabilities 2,685.07 773.24 3,418.31 19,631.42 15,238.54 34,859,286
Net {2,538.71) 8,137.37 5,517.65 10,458.44 {5,787.38) 4,872.14
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Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose It to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), cradit risk and liquidity risk, The Groun's risk management strategies focus on
the un-predictability of these elements and seek to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Centralised treasury department and risk managemant
department sdvises on financial risks and the appropriate finangial risk governance framework for The Group's and provides assurznce to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that finandial risks are identified, measured and managed In accordance with the Group's policies
znd risk ohjectives.

All hedging activities are carried out by Centralised treasury department possessing the sppropriate skills, experience and supervision, The Group's policy is to hedge the exposure by
taking derivative instruments and not to trade in derivatives for speculative purposes.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meat its obligations under s financial Mstrumeant or customer cantract, leading to a financial loss, The Group 15 exposed 10 credit risk from
its

-operating activitias, primarily loans erising from financing activities;

- Investing actlvities, including primarily investments in dabt securities, preference shares, equity shares and mutual fund schemes; and

- financing activities, including term depasits and balances with banks and financial institutions and other finandial ingtruments.

Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of finencial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, time deposits with banks, loans arising
from finanting activities, lnvestment in debt instruments, derivative instrements, trade receivables and other financial assets excluding equity investmants.

Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired
Credtht risk on cash and cash equivatents and deposhts with banks/financial institutions is generally low a5 the said deposits have been made with banks/finandial institution who have been
assigned high credit rating by international/domestic rating agencies,

Credit risk on derivative Instruments Is generally low as The Group enters inte darivative contracts with reputed banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with internaily approved financial institutions/counter party and primarily include investments in mutual funds and bank depesits,

Nene of the Group's ¢ash equivalents, inciuding time depuosits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding the derivative contracts, trade receivabies and other financial assets are
neither impaired nor past due, there were no indications as at March 31, 2025, that defaults in payment cbligations will occur.

The Group exposure to market risk Is a function of asset liability management activities. The Group continuously monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate risk fimits,
The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) reviews market.refated trends and risks and adopts various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in ling with the Company’s risk
management framework, ALCD activities are in turn monitored and reviewed by a board sub-committee,

Loans arising from financing activities - Credit quality of financial assets and fmpairment loss

Loans from financing activities to customers. Credit risk for loans is maneged by the Group's through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and periodic monitoring of the
creditworthiness of its customers to which The Group's grants credit terms In the normat course of businass, Credit risk is monitored by the cradit risk department of The Group's
independent Risk department/function wha have the responsibility for reviewing and managing credit risk.

The Group ¢reates & secures first and exclusive collsters charge at the time of ean origination on alt vehicles for which vehicle financing loans are given. Hypothecation endorsement Is
ohigined in favour of the Group in the Registration Certificate of the Vehicle funded undar the vahicle finance catesory. Ary surplus remaining after settiement of outstanding loan by way
of ssle of vehicle [collateral} is returnad 1o the customer, Also, the Group securas portion of the Joss against loans financed to customers by obtaining third party credit guarantaas. For
the corporate lending loan expasure, wherever required the Group obtains security covar in the form of immoveable properties by creating charge over the collateral.

Cencentrations arisa when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar busipess activities, or activities in the same zeographical region, or have similar acenamic features that
wauld cause thelr ability 10 meet contractual obfigations to be stmifarly affectad by changes in economic, political or other cenditions. The Group is In retail & corporats lending businass
on pan india basis. Vehicle Finance consists of fanding for purchasa of new and used Commercial Vehicles and Passanger Vehicles agalnst security. Hypothecation endorsement is mede in
favour of the Group in the Registration Certificate in respect of aff registerable collaterzl. Fortfofio Is reasonably well diversified across South, North, Cast and Western parts of the
cauntry. Similarly, sub segmants within Used Vehicle Finance like refinance against existing vehicles and repurchase vehicles (first time buvyers}, ieading to well diversified into sub product
mix.

The maximum credit sxposure to any individual customer from the finanging business es of March 31, 2025 was % nil {March 31, 2024: X 164.61 trores).

On account of adoption of ind AS 108, The Group's uses the 3 staging Expected Credht Loss (ECL) model to assess the provision for impairment 1oss allowancs, The model takes into
ACCount a continuing credit evaluation of Group's customers” financlal condition; ageing of loans; the value and adegquacy of collateral received from the custemers; The Group's's
historicat loss experience; and adjusted for forward looking informstion. The Group's defines default as an event when thers is no reasonable expectation of recovery,

The Group's makes allowances for losses on its portfolio of icans on the kasis of expected future collection from receivables. The future collection are estimated on the basis of past
coflection trand which are adjusted for changes in current circumstances as well as expected changes in collection on account of future with respect to cartain macro economic factor. The
Group's impairment assessment and measurement approzach is set out in Note 3(xvif) A - Accounting policies,
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{Z in crores}

Stage-1i Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
Particulzrs Loans {Gross} {mpairmentloss  Loans [Gross} Impairteent loss  Loans {Grass) typairment foss  Loans {Gross) wnpairment dass
allowance aliowance allowance aliowance
As at baarch 31, 2024 28,972.55 215.73 1,911.32 246.05 1,974,582 89G.07 32,858.69 1,351.85
Dispasal on account of {28,872.55) {215.73) {1,911.32} {245.05) {3,974.82} {890.07) {32,858.68) {1,351.85)
merger of Tata Motors
Finance Himited to Tata
Capital Limited (Refer
Note 48}
Transfers during the
year
Transfer to Stage-1 - - - - - - - _
Transfer to Stage-2 - - - . . . N .
Transfer 1o Stage-3 - - - - - - . .
As at March 21, 2025 - - - - - . - -
{% in croras)
Farticulars Stage-% Stage-Z Stage-3 Total
Lozns {Gross) impairmentloss  Loans {Gross) Impairment loss  Loans {Gross) Impairmentloss  Loans {Gross) impairment loss
aflowance allowance allowance aliowante
As at 3xst March 2023 30,367.63 212.0% 2,607.86 151.05 3,281.79 1,581.687 38,257.28 1,944.81
Transfers during the
vear
Transfer to Stage-1 520,01 53,20 {556.50) (29.23) {63.51} 123574 - -
Transfar to Stage-2 {1,609.03} {15.50) 1,682.54 36.37 {73.54) {16.87) - -
“Transfer to Stage-3 {663.24) {£.54) {449.99) (23,20} 1,113.93 28.74 - -
{3.552.96) 27.18 575.05 116,15} 975.91 {11.60) - -
Impact of change in (61,98 100,65 251
credit risk on acesunt of ) 98} ) : ) 1,251.02 ) 1,328.70
Changes in Ogening
Credit Exposure {38,842.09} {28.32} {1,534.03) (83.74) {563.99} (189.84) {20,840.11) {261.80}
New Credit Exposure
N 38,099.96 66.78 151.44 14.24 29.51 7.62 39,280.91 £8.64
during the vear {(netof
Amount Written off
During the year . - - - {1,745.40) (1,749.40) [1,749.39) {1,749.40)
As at Marchi 31, 2024 28,972.55 215.73 3,911.32 246.05 3,974.82 3286.07 22,358.62 i2%1.85

{8) Managemeant of Liquidily risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Group's will not be able to meet its financial obligetions as they become due. The objactive of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity
2nd ensure that funds are available for use as and when required.
The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and resarve borrowing facifities, by continuously manitaring forecast and actual cash flows,
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities, The Group invests 18 surplus funds in bark fixed deposit and liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry
ne/negligible mark te market risks.
The belaw table analyses The Group’s nen-derivative and derivative financial liabitities as at the reporting date, into relevant maturity groupings based on the remalning period {as at that
date) to the contragtual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the helaw table are the contractual un-discounted cash flows,
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of finandal Hiabilities, including estimated/cantractual interast payments as at March 31, 2025:
{Xin crores}
Total
y . . ) Due in 3rd 1o 510
Particukars Carrying amount  Duein lstyear  Duelin 2nd year vaar Due after 5thysar  contractual
N cashilows
Non derivatives
{a} Borrowings 2,145.00 2,145.00 - - - 2,145.00
{b} Trade and other payables 0.88 a.88 - - - 0.88
{c} Debtsecurities 1,116.08 389.32 831,33 - - 1,220.65
{d} Other financtal Habilities 42.22 12,64 1.82 172 26.04 42.22

Total 3,304.12 2,547.84 833.15 172 26.08 3,408.75
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The table belew provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, ingluding estimated/contractus! interest payments as at March 31, 2024:
(X in crores)

Total
Particulars LCarrying amount  Duein fstyear  Due in 2ndyear Bue in 3rd 1o 5th Due after Sthysar  contraciual
year cashifows
Non derivatives
{a} Borrowings 23,348.39 13,788.27 5,517.62 9,112.93 . 28,418.82
{b) Trade and other pavahles 391.47 321.47 - - - 391.47
(c} Debt securitias 7,268.37 £,667.75 389,32 1,797.55 - 7,854.72
{d} Subordinated liabiiities 484.48 321.54 1518 251.63 - 562.55
{2} Lease iabilities 8163 22,27 20.72 42.81 15.56 101.36
{fi  Other fingncial liabilities 1.102.7G 1,065.33 1.9 5.34 28.04 1,102.70
Derivatives -
{a} Derivative contracts 4.91 1952 {14.60} - - 482
Yotat 34,682.00 22,280.15 5,934.22 1%,210.37 A%.80 38,465.34
(Ci Management of Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial strument will fluctuate because of changas in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. The value of a finandal instrument may change as & result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and ather market changes. Financlal Instruments affected by marker risk inelude borrowings, investments and derivetive financial
instruments,

The Group exposura to market risk i3 a function of asset liability management activities. The Group contlnuously monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate rigk limits.
The Asset Uiability Management Committee {ALCO) reviews market-related trands and risks and adopts various strategies related to assets and liabifities, in line with the Group’s risk
management framework. ALCO activities are in turn monitored and reviewed by a board sub-committee.

Forgign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact/changes related to fair value or future cash flows of an financial instrument exposure in forefgn currency, which fluctuate dua to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The fluctuation in foralgn currency exchange rates may have potentiai impact on the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Laoss and equity, where assats/hiabilities
are denominated in a currency other than the functiona! currency of the Group.

Tha Group's forgign currency expesure arises mainly frem variable rate forsign currency borrewings denominated in USD. The Group, as per its risk management poficies, enters into
darivative financial instruments like currency swaps and forward contracts t¢ mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in foreign currency. When a derivative is entered in to for the
purpase of being as hedge, the Group negotiates the tarms of those derivatives 10 match with the terms of the hedge exposure. The Group policy is to fully hedge its foreign currency
borrowings at the time of drawdown till the repaymant,

No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Group does not expect any material effect on the Group’s profit and loss & financial position arising from the effects of reasonably possible
changes to foreign exchangs rates on varisble rate foreign currency borrowings as the exposure is fully hedge by entering into derivative financial instrumants,

intersst rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market rates relates primarily to the Group’s berrowings obligations with fleating/variable interest rates,

The Group borrows through various instruments which has interest rate reset clause which Is exposed te interast rate risk. For the foreign surrency denominated floating interest rate
borrovitngs, the Group manages s interest rate risk by entering into interest rata swap and <ross currency interest rate swap derivative instruments in which it sgrees to exchange, at
specified intervals, the differance betwesn fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount,

The interést rate exposure on account of variable/foating rate foreign currency borrowings is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the Group as disclosed in {iv}
derivative financial Instruments and hedging activities below,
As at the end of reporting period, the Group had followlng variable interest rate borrowings:

{2 in crores)

Particulars Asat March 31,  As at March 34,
2025 2024

Mon derivative Fipancial Liokilities

Variable rate borrowings * - 22,250.28

Net Exposara - 22,250.28

* The abeve excludes the foreign currency denominated floating Interest rate borrowings, the Group manages its interest rale risk by entering into intarest rate swap and cross currency
interest rate swap derivative instruments in which it agrees to exchange, st specified intervals, the difference betwsen fixed and variable rate interest amounts caleulated by reference 1o
an agreed-upon netional principal amount,

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Profit or oss is sensitive 1o interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changss in interest rate, Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting
date would result in an impact {decreasefincrease in case of profit/{ioss) before tax of % nil and T 222.50 ¢rores on incame for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
rgspectivety.

The above sensitivity analysis assumes that all other varisbles remsin constant and the borrowings cutstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting
period.
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Equity price risk
Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investrents in equity securities.
The fair value of some of the Group’s investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss exposes the Group to equity price
rigks. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair value of Group's Investment in equity securities a5 at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was %
it and % 572,98 crores respectively.

(Hincrores)

Particutars impact on profit for the year {rmpact on other components of equity

March 31,2025 March 3%, 2024 March 31, 2025 warch 31, 2024

increase in equity price by 10 % - - 79.77 12.05
Gecrease in equity price by 10% - - {0.80) {18.05)
{Note: The impact is indicated on equity before consequential tax impact, if any).

Capital management

The gapital struciure of the Sroup consists of ret debt and total equity of the Group. The Group manages its capita! to maximise the return to stakehclders through an optimum mix of
debt and equity within the overall capital structure. The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Group considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital.

tn addition the Group has financial covenants ralating to the borrowing fachities that it has teken from the lenders which is monitored and complied by the Group.

44 Recondgliation of Movement in Borrowings to cash fiows fram financing activities
[% in crores}
Disposal an
account of
p merger of Tata o
t G £ 3
particutars As at Agril 21, Motors Cinance  Cash flows {net) E_xchange A'nor.tasz ion / EIR  Asat March 3%,
2624 L difterence adjustments 2025
Limited to Tata
Capital Limited
{Refer Note 48}
{a) Debtsecurities 7,268.37 {3,829.39} {2,355.57} - 3347 1,116.08
{b) Borrowings {Cther than debt securities) 25,348.38 [25,263.39) 2,060.00 - - 2,145.0C
{¢) Subordinated liabilities 484,48 {484.48} - - - -
Totai 33,101.24 {29,577.76) {295.37) - 33.17 3,261.08
{Z in crores)
N As 2t Aprit 01, Exchange Amortisation / ER As at March 31,
h &
Particulars 023 Cash flows {net) difference adjustments 2025
{a) Debtsecurities 13,553.88 {4,812.47) - 526.96 7,268.37
5} Borrowings [Other than debt securities) 24,148.58 1,188.57 (1.58) 12.82 25,348,389
{e} Subordinated liabilities 713.30 {230.10} - 1.28 484.48
Total 35,435.76 {3.854.00] $1.58) 54:.06 33,161.24
45 The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 {the Code') which may impact the contribution by the Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from

47

which the Cade and its provisions would be applicable Is yet to be notified and the rules which would provide the detzils based on which financtal impact can be determined are yet to be
framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained. The Group will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact, if any, ¥ the financial results following the Code
bacoming effective and the related rules being framed and notified.

Asset Held for sale
The Group has acquired underlying collateral in satisfaction of its receivable frarm certain borrowers and has classified those assets as beld far sale. As at March 31, 2025 assets held for
sale amounted to T nil {#¢ at March 81, 2024 X 65.46 crores). The Company expects to dispose off these assets in open market within next I yesr,

Figures of previous perlod have been regrouped / reclassified wherever required.
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48 Discontinueg Operation

{
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Disposal due to merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited for Tata Capital Limited

The Board of Directors of Tata Motors Finance Limited {"TMFL"}, & wholiy-owned subsidiary of the Company, at its meeting held on June 4, 2024,
approved {subject to the requisite regulatory and other approvals) a Scheme of Arrangemest for amalgamation of the TMFL with and into Tata
Capitai Limited (“TCL") with appointed date of Aprit 1, 2024, The Scheme has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal {“NCUT™),
Mumbai Bench en May 1, 2025. TMFL and TCL has received all other necessary regulatory approvals and the scheme is effective from May 8, 2025,
Accardingly, the Company has accounted for transfer of net assets {as calculated below) In accordance with the sccounting principles generally
accepted in india and has recognised the excess of consideration received (investmeant value) over the carrying vaiue of net assets ransferred as at
April 1, 2024, amounting to % 3,968.96 croves (net of taxes} in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The same is entirely attributabie to the
owners of the Company. Further, the comparative consolidated statement of profit and loss has been re-presented to show the discontinued
operation separately from continuing operations.

Nat Assats of TRMFL are as follows:
{% in crores}

AsatAprit 1,
2024

{a} Firancisl Assets 37,888.77
{b} Non Financial Assets (including assets classified as held for sale) 678.36

Total Assets associated with TMFL 38,567.13
{2} Financial Lighitides 31,812.21
{h} Non Financial Liabilities 180.66

Total Lizbilities directly associated with TMFL 31,992.87
Statement of Profit and Loss of TMIFL is as foilows:

{%in croras)
Yaar ended March 33, Year ended ddarch 31,
2025 2024

{a} Revenue from operations N 4,943.97
(b} Otherincome - 49,96
{c) Totalincome {a+h) - 4,593,932
{d} Expenses - 4,769.82
{e} Loss before exceptional items and tax {c-d} - 224,11
(i Exceptional item - {gain)/ joss {4,073.33) -
{fi  Profit/ (ioss) before tax from discontinued cperations {a-f) 4,073.33 224,83
(g} Tax expense 0437 17227
{h} Profiy/ {foss} for the year from discontinued operstions {f-g) 3,968.96 51.84
Met cash Fiow Attributable to TMFL is as follows:

{Z in crores}

Yaar eanded March 31,

2024
{8} Cash flow from operating activities (1,465}
(b} Cash fow from investing activities 3,865
{c) Cash flow used in Financing activities {3,622)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent {1,122}
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Email: brmef@brmeo.com

To the Members of TMF Holdings Linsited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TMF Holdings Limited (*“the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheer as  at March 31, 2025, and the Standalone
Statemnent of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Compagies Act, 2013 (“the Act'ym
the manner so required and give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the yeat then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India rogether with the ethical requirements that ace relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matrers are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
sudit of the standalone financial statements of the cutrent perod. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide 2 separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Statements

Ioformation Technology (“IT”)} Systems and controls impacting Standalone Financial

The Company’s financial reporting process is
heavily reliant on a complex IT environment.

Key financial reporting systems are interfaced with
each other, and autornated processes are used for

Our procedures with respect to this matter

included the following:

% Obraned an understanding of the IT control
environment relevant to financial reporting;

recording and processing 2 high velume of
transactions. Given the pervasive use of I'T and the
significant volume of transactions processed, the
integrity and reliability of IT systerns and selated
controls are critical to the accurate preparation of
the standalone financial staternents.

We identified IT systemns and controls as a key
audit matter because of the:

*  High dependency on automated controls
and system-generated data;

o Risks associated with wnzuthorized access
or changes to systems and daza;

s Potential irnpact on finandal reporting in
the event of deficiencies in IT general
controls (IT'GCs), including user access
management, change management, and
program development.

> Evalvated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key IT general controls over
user access management, program changes, and
other relevant areas;

» Performed testing of automated controls and
key system interfaces used in financial reporting;

» Assessed the rebiability of system-generated
reports and data used In substantive audit
procedures;

> Involved our IT specialists 1o support the audit
procedures in evaluating system coafigurations
and access controls,

Based on the procedures performed, we did not
identfy any material exceptions in the design or
operating effectiveness of IT controls that would
impact the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informatdon. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
staterents and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
nformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there 15 2 matenial misstaterment therein, we are required
to comnmunicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations.



Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial
statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
standalone financial position, standalone financial performance, changes in equity znd standaloae cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and rmaintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recozds, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to conminue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or t©
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 2
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an audiror’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 15 not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can anise from fraud ot error and are considered matetial if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procecures respensive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a2 matetial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone fnancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

® [Dvaluate the appropsiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of managernent’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audir evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 2 going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ase required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to



10.

11.

modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
4 going concern.

®  Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements sepresent the underlying transactons
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies i internal control
that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemnent that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

- From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattess that were

of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our zuditor’s report unless law or regularion
prechudes public disclosure abour the matter or wher, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
maiter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

13.

"The Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the year ended March 31,2024 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 02,2024, expressed
an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statement.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14.

15.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

() We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our andit.

(b} In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 15(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rudes, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the stzadalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 fom
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.



(f) With respect ro the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 15(k){vr)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended),

{e) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standzione financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”.

)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
out informarion and according to the explanations given to us:

i

vi

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone fnancial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any rnaterial foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company;

(2) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
those disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fands (which are material erther individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds ot
share premium or any other soutces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiasies™) or provide any gnarantee, security or the
like oa behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaies;

{b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Notes to accounts to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entdes {*Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ulimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

() Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropsiate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b} contain zny material misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.

Pased on our examination which inchaded test checks, the company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended Match 31, 2025 which has 2
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of andit trail feature being tampered with. The Audit Trail has been
maintained as per the statutory requirements for records retenton as per proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the companies (Accounts Rules) 2014



16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Fiern Registration Number: 001035N /N50005G
-, Digitally signed by

AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWAR
MAHESHWAR] Date: 26250510

2126110 +05'30"
Akshay Maheshwad
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2025



Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referzed to in paragraph 15 (2) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of TMF Holdings Limited on the
standalone finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.  We have zudited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TMF Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial staternents of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consideting the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Instinute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial staternents based on our andit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and pian and perform the audir to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all matenal respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial staternents included obtaining an understanding of internal
Gaancial controls with reference to financial staternents, assessing the dsk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the tisks of material
misstatement of the financia! statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprapriate to provide 2 basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements Is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain



to the mamtenance of records that, in reasonable derail, accurately and fairdy reflect the tansactons and
dispositions of the assets of the company; () provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financal statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditares of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisatons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statemenss,
meluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

&

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 2a adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as ar March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by ICAL

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firmn Registration Number:G010351N/N500050

" Dhgitally signed by

A KS HAY AKSHAY MAHESHWAR!

MAH ES HWARE Date: 2025.05.10

23:26:36 +05°30'

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2025



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of TMF Holdings Limited on the
standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of
account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

i

@

(®)

©

@

{(A) The Company is rmaintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
sitiation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(1)@)(B) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

The die deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed mn favour of the lessee), as disclosed in the standaione financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Consequently, the
question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuvation by a Registered Valuer,
or specifying the amount of change, if the change 15 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value
of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment does nor arise. The Company does not have any Right of
Use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3{Z(d) of the Order is nor applicable to that extent.

{e) Based on the information and explanatons furnished to us, no proceedings have been imitiated

on or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibiton of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the questdon of our commenting on
whether the Cormpany has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financjal statements does
aot adse.

i, (2} The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any inventory.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

iy aggregate, at any point of dme during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of cuzrent assets and hence reporting uader clause 3{)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii, {a) Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, reporting under clause 3(iiz) (2}

(b)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with
the Reserve Bank of India engaged in the business of granting loans,

Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the aforesaid
investments / loans, in our opinion, the terms and conditions undes which such loans were granted/
investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not made an
advance in loans / given any guarantee / provided any securities.
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Vil (a)

(b)

i, (a)

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest ate regular as per sdpulation.

In respect of the loans, there does not exist any overdue amount remaining outstanding as at March 31,
2025,

Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, reporting under clause 3{iii)(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is 2 non-banking financial company registered with
the Reserve Bank of Indis, engaged in the business of granting loans.

The loans granted during the year, including to promoters/related parties had stipulated the scheduled
repayment of principal and payment of interest and the same were tepayable on demand, details of which
are mentioned below:

{Amount in Cr.)

Particulars All Parcties Promoters Related parties

Aggregate amnount of loans/ advances
in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand (A) 205.65 - 205.65

- Agreement does not specify - - -

any terms or period of

repayment {B)
Total (A+B) 305.65 . 305.65
Percentage of loans/ advances in 100% - 100%

nature of loans to the towal loans

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has neither provided any loans, guarantees, nor securitics in
connection with any loan extended to its directors or to any other persons in whom the directors are
interested. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) are not
applicable to the Company. The provisions of sub-sections (2) to (11) of Section 186 are not applicable to
the Company as it i3 a non-banking financial company registered with the RBI, engaged in the business of
granting loans,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or ammounts which are deemed ro be deposits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Further, the
provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 73 are not applicable 1o the Company as it is 2 non-banking
financial company registered with RBI, engaged in the business of granting loans.

The Cenural Government of Indiz has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3{¥1) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

In our opinion, the Company 1s generally regular in depositing undisputed statutozy dues, including goods
and services tax, income tax, cess, and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorites.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues outstanding on account of any dispute by the company.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed as incorne during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company has not defavited in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
to any lender during the year.
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On the basis of our audit procedures, we repott that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the Company has not availed for any term loan. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures pecformed by us, and on
an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-tesm purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the standzlone financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, if any.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary,
assoclates, jpint ventures, if any.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments} during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(2) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company. .

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in Indiz, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, notced or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of such case by the Management.

(b} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carred out in accordance

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 2 report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of Cornpanies (Audit and Aunditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) was
not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢ During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance

=v. (2)

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has not received any whistle-blower
complaints duting the year.

As the Company is not a Nidh: Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not apphcable 1o it, the reporting
under clause 3(i) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in comphance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The detals of related party wansactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required under Indizn Accounting Standasd 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Refer note 34 to the standalone financial statetnents.

In cur opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b} The reports of the Iaternal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
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xvi {a)

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash wansactions with its directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the
Act under clause 3(xv) of the Qzder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-12 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b The Company has conducted non-banking financial acdwities during the year and the Company holds a

©

@

XV

xix.

vahid Certificate of Registraton from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

The Company is 2 Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and has obtained registration with RBY as per the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions 2016, The Company has comphed with all the directons provided in the Core
Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 as updated from time to time aleng with periodical
filings with RBL

Based on the information and explanations prowvided by the management of the Company, the Group (as
defined in the Core Investnent Companies (Reserve Baok) Directions, 2016) (“the group™) has four CIC
which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and one CIC which s not required to be
registered with the RBI

The Company has incurred cash losses in the preceding financial year (FY 2023-24) amounting to
Rs.120.93 Cr. and during the current financial year amounting to Rs.162.64 Crores.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the statutory auditors of the Company Sudit K.
Parekh & Co. LLP have resigned duting the year. We have taken into consideration the issues, objections,
or concerns raised by the ourgoing auditors, while forming our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

On the basis of the financial to the Standalone Financial Staternents, ageing and expected dates of
realisadon of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, cur knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumnptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meetng its Habilities existung at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within 2 period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this s not an assurance
as to the futare viability of the Company. We further state that our reportng is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all lisbilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

¥x%. (2) There are no other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount

&

remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a} of the
Order is not apphcable,

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspeat under Section 135(5)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Ozder is not applicable.



xxl. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Stzndalone Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this feport.

For B R Maheswari LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001035N/IN500050
; Digitatly signed b

AKSHAY AKGHAY MAHESHWAR]

MAHESHWARI,D&:;@: 26250510

g 21:26:59 +05'30°

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2025






TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

(¥in crores)
Notes As ar Mereh 3%, As e March 3L,
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TidF HOLDINGS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

{FIn crores)
For the yeor ended
Aarch 3, 2024
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March 31, 2025
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“di Tczxevpensé' S R . e T e - T
f@) Carent fax ) = =
.. i Deferredtax o 0457 -
. Yot tox expersa 0437 -
X Profit / (Loss) for the year (Vi - VIl 37442 {119.68)
X Totol comprehensiveincomef Goss) for theyear e T ) 37442 (19.68)
X! Formings per share of (Facewalie Z0each) R
Besicfn® 133
",n,_Q':E,“E‘?‘,,(’!‘E}i e et o o . ) LSO |
See gccompanying notes 1o standglone fingncicd statements
As per our report of even dote attached et
For &R Mchaswori & CoLLP For aexd on bahalf of the Beard of Directors NARUMANC st
Chartered Accountants Doty sgned by VENKATA
PATHAFMDAI i HI VENKATA A
Firm Reggistreztions Nesviber; O0I035H/MS00050 BALACHAN DR S SWAKUMAR .
" Digitally signed by ANBALAN I - 192521 4055
AKSHAY  AKSHAY MAHESHWARI Pa‘.&z‘: V. SVAKUMAR
Date: 20250510 : ] - V. 4
MAHESHWARI 21:38:30 +0530' Dirgctor Director
(DI - 02762983 {DIN - 0353410013
;ﬁ::i Haheshvier NEERAJ o.gnaug;gma
Membership o, 04704 MORIT KUMAR I e
AGARNALS, DWIVEDI 1919‘35.11‘53[)‘
rohit Agarwal Newraj Drovadh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Dalki
Date: May 10, 2025

Piace: Mumbal
Date: May 10, 2025

Membership No - ACS20874



THIF HOLDINGS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASHFALOW

(¥ i croras)
For ths yeor snded For the yeor endad
farch 31 2025 March 2, 2024

A CASHFLOWFROMOPERATINGACTMTES
Proﬁf.f (ioss) bsfore ?ax

___________ 2963 T 2508

Bc!ence%_w v - e e e o e ettt et et e e (G‘w) uuuu (O u}
Fmonce cos‘s 1877 28538

- - e e 036 637
(1092} GO

"~ Provision for diminution in the value of investment and loen {exceptional itern) 78

Marked-to-Market gain on account of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tata Capital

. .. lmited [Refer Note 46(q) (exceptiond ey e e o e e+ 0 SR, .
__ (Profit} Loss on sale of property, plant and eqmpmem I £.02) Q02
s 30 2637

Trcde ond orher rece.vqbles ) _— . e i ) Q58 1%
_______ __Trade and cther payables o o w ok N (+ o3}
O'rher‘mcncwl ossets e 1000 {044)
rcmf ossefs ) e e L o Q40

_____ e

) e . 003
102

e - B 2845

. (2571} . o3y
Income foxes (poid) (nef) e 938 (3228)

Net cash used in operating activit {262,085} 1102.563)

] Inseres’r m::ome rgcewed on !oc ns. depos:ts and mves,mem‘s

“irwestment of channel f\nc:nce
Recavery of chonnel fironce
Inter corporate deposit placed
ter corporate deposit repaid .
urchase)/ Redernpiion of mutuat fund u'u ks (ﬂeﬂ i
_Investment in squity share: ary cormpany
" Deposits with more thar 3 oenths maturity

o ob
10000

Net cash generctod from investing acltivities

i C. CASHFLOW FROM FiNANx.!NG AC" I'\"JTiES

Distritutions mads o hclders of instruments enti re:y equt‘y in nature (143.36;
Frocesds from borrowings s [other than debt securities) _ 294000 73000

_ Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) - {88000y (70000
Proceeds fromissue of debt saqunities 49080 _ 152830
Repayrnent of debt securities {2.84617) {(1957.00)

~ Netcosnused infinancing activities e - (438.92) (53206}

__ . Net Increcsef (decreass) incosh and cash eguivalenfs (A+8+C)_ . (620} L2799
. - T

o i R 281 2.2
.. Nef increasa/ (dacrease} in cash and cosh squuésﬂfs (A4B=C) - ©40) 127,91

Note-1. Finance costs has been considered us arising from operaling cchivities in view of the nature of the Company's busingss,

2 The Siotement of Cash Fows has been presented using indirect method os per the requiremenis of Ind AS 7. "Staternent of Cosh Hows™

As per our report of sven date attached
P 0

For B R Moheswari & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountorts Ciginstly rgecd by
. . PATHAMADAL o
Frm Registrodion Number, Q0I035N/NS0C0E0 BALACHANDREUG
- Digitally signed by ANBALAJL . Camdcssig ek
AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWARI o s
Date: 2025.05.10 PR, Bgj M. V. SIVAKUMAR
MAH ESHWARE 21:25:08 +0530° Sirectar Birector
{DIN - 027629833 {DIN - 03534100
Alshg Muhes%\wcm
Pcﬁne}; NEERAJ . supstysmeasy
#embarship No. 504704 MOHIT i KUMAR
AGARWAL B DWIVEDE s
Mohir Agorwa Neers Dwivech
Chief Firancial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No - ACS20874

Flace: Dalh
Date: May 16, 2028 Place: Mumbai

Daotel May 10, 2025




THMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 2025

A Equity share copited

ilscz?MarchSE.ZGZS As ot Morch 31, 2024
Number (Eincrores) Mumpar  (Encrores)
Shares oursfqndlng at the beginning of the year 1741593442 s 1.241;593147‘:’{ 1741, 59
Shares cutstanding o tha end of the year o T T aLEsa Aed A 174 5RAN T7AEe
B, Instruments entirely squity in naturs
o Ascf Warch 3t 2025 As o March 35 2024
Number (Fin crores) Numbsr | (Tircrorss)
Balanee of the beginning of the year 18,000 180000 18,000 _ 18000d
ls_s_u_:_ea dunng_ urne year B - - oo —
Balance of $he ord qﬁr@ year 15,000 180000 18,000 1800.00
C. Other equity
 Eincrores)
Reservs ond surpius
’ - ” Securifies : _ . .
Spacial reserva’ " premisn Copital reserve Retained sarmings Toral
account Undistribadable .
(rdAS 10D Distrihurciis
Belarce as of Apritl, L2024 25783 1947.05 _ Sos 553 {840.49) 182083
Pmﬁ"f_f ('TOS_S} fortha yaar T L T N . 374 42u ;"_WW " 3?4 42
Distributions made to helders of instrumnents - - - - {43.38) 4335}
entirely equity in nature
Transfer fo Speciol Reserve 7ags N ) a0 -
ce os of March 31,2028 B272 194705 505t 5339 (28431 205190
(Z incrores)
Resorve ond surplus ’
. R L. . . Securlt T R "
Speciol rasarve’ B acur \ 25 Capital rosorve Retainad earnings Torat
qorcRsy Undistibuicble . .,
tngasiop  etrioudie
S G5 at {\prii 32023 257.83 194708 ) "570.91 5.53 ) {(077.45) 208387
oft/ o) for theyesr _—— ~ D . Geed T RAS)
Distributions made to holders of instruments - T - "’ - ) 14336 (143.36}
entirely equity in nature
Boknce osat Morch 3,202 25783 1547.05 3091 553 (44049 152083

*Transfer fo special reserve: As per Section 45-iC of Reserve Bark of india Act, 1934, the Company s required 1o create o reserve fund and tronsfer therein o sum not less
than 20% of its net profit every year before any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund can be made by the Company except for the
purposs as may be spacified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time and every such apgropriation sholl be reported to the Reserve Bonk of Indic within twenty-
one days from the date of such withdrewal, The compony fransfer said amount at the end of financicl year

See accompanying nofes 1o standalone finencid statements

Az per owr report of even date attached

For B R Moheswaori & Co LLP
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THF HOLDINGS LIMITED
MOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Company information

TMF Holdings Lirmited {the “Cormpany™) having CIN - UeS923MHZODSPLCISZE0S is registered as a Non-Banking financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Company
NBFC*) under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of indic (RBY), Act 1934 with effect fram August 9. 2006, Pursuant to application reguesting for conversion of the
Company te a Core Investment Company. submitted to RBI on lune 23, 2017. RBI issued a fresh Certificate of Registration of NEFC - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically
Immportant - Core Investment Cormpany (CC) dated October 12, 2017, to the Company. The Company is ¢ subsidiory of Tata Metors Limited. Wirh effect from June 17,
2017, the narne of the Company had changed to TMF Holdings Limited frorn Tata Motors Finance Limited.

The Cormpany s primariy & halding comgany. holding investrents in its subsiciaries end other Group companies.
The standalone financiol statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonzed for issue on May 10, 2025

2 Bosis of preparation of standalone financidl statements
21 Statement of cormplionce

The standdlane financict statements of the Compony have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind ASY) prescribed under sectian 133 of the
Companies Act. 2013 (the *Act) read with relevamt rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generclly accepted in Indic. Any cppiicotion guidance/
clarifications/ directions issued by the Reserve Bank of Indic or other reguiators are implernented as and when they are issued! opplicable.

The preparction of financial statements recuires the use of certain critical accounting esfimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, lobilities,
revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabiiities. Areas involving @ higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assurmptions are
material to the Company are discussed in Note 3(0) - matericl cccounting judgements. estimates and assumptions.

The standalone financial stoternents are presented n indian Rupees §MR} and off values are rounded fo the necrest crores, except when otherwise indicated. "0 refers
to value rounded below rounding off rorms,

2.2 Historicod cost convention

The standalone financicl stoterments have been prepared on historical cost bosis except for certain financicl instruments, which cre measured af falr volue ot the end of
each reporing period as explained in the aeeounting policies below.

2.3 Presentation of standolene financic statements

The stendalone financial staternents of the Company are presented as per Schedule I (Division B of the Companies Act 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the
Miristry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) The Statement of Cash Flows hos been prasented using indirect method os per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Staternent of Cash
Flows.

3 Marerial Accounting Policies
The principal tccounting policies applied In the preparation of these standalone financial statements are set cut below. These palicies have been consistently opplied to
colf the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

(D Use of esfimates ond judgments

The preparation of the stondalone financial stefements in conformity with Ind AS requires menagernent to moke judgments, estimates and assurmptions that affect the
appiication of cceounting policies and reparted amounts of assets. liabiities ond disclosures of comtingent liobifities af the date of these standdlene financial sieterents
and reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actud results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assurmptions are reviewed Gt each balance sheet date. Revisions fo aocounting estimates are recogrised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and future period offected.

in porticulor. information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying aeeounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the armounts recognized in the standeatone financial staterments are included in following notes:

a) Mote (i} ~ Recognition of interest income/axpanses using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
1) Mote 3(il) - Recognition of deferred tax assets.

<) Note 3(v) - Useful lives of property, plont and eguipment.

o) Nots 3(vi) - Measurerment and recagnition of provisions and contingencies.

) Note 3(bo- Business model assessment for classfication and measurerent of financicl assets
f1 Note 3tix} ~ Impairment of financid assets based on the expected credit loss moded

g) Nate 3(ix)- Effective Interest Rate {EIR) methodology that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of retum over the expecied behaviordl life of financial
mstruments.

h} Mote 30x) and 36 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments.
1 Mate 32 ~ Disciosure of contingent linbilities

{iiy Revenue recogrition
{4} Reverue from opergiions
tnterest Income

irterest income is recognised by oppiying the Effective inferast Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other thon credit-impoired assets. When o
financicl osset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest ncome by applying the sffective interast rate o the net amortized cost of the financial
asset,

The EIR in case of a financial csset is computed
- The rate that sxoctly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financidl asset to the grass carrying amount of o financial asset.
- By cansidering all the contractudt termns of the finenciol instrumant in estimating the cash flows.

- ncluding oft fees/service charges and incentives paid and received between parties 1o the contract thot ore an intagral part of the effective interest rate. transaction
costs, and dlf other prerniums or discounts,

i1
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(i)

THF HOLDINGS LIMITED
MOTES FORMIMG PART OF STANDALCNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in interest income with the carrespanding adjustrnent o the carrying amount of the
gssefs.

Incomes Taxes

Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred faxes. income tox expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
Current incorne 1axes are determinad based on respective faxable income of the Company ond tax rules applicable for respaective tax jurisdictions.

Deferred tox ossets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temparary differences between the carrying vaiues of assets and liobilites ong
thelr respective tox bases. and unutlized business loss and undabsorbed depreciation carry-forwards end tax credits. Such deferred tox assets and lickiities ore
computed separaiely, Deferred fax ossets are recognised to the extent ther it is probable that future taxoble income will be available against which the deductible
fernporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utiized.

Deferred tox ossets and liabilities are measured based on the tox rates that are expected o apply in the pericd when the csset is reclized or the liakidity is seffled,
bosed on tax rates and fax kows that have been enccted or substantively enacted by the balarce sheet date.

Currert ond deferred tax assers and licbililes are offset when there is o legally enforceable right fo set off current 1ax cssets against current tox liebilities ond when
they refote to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity ond the Company infends to settle it current and deferred tax assets and liakiities on g net bosis

Irvesirnent Propenty

Property that is beldd for jong-term rental yield or for copital appreciation or otk and that i3 not oceugied by the Company, is dassified as Investment property,
Investment property is meosured inifially ot cost inchuding related transactions cost. Subsequent expenditure is capitdlized to the assets carrying amount only when it is
probable that fulure economic benefits associoted with the expenditure wikt flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured relicbly. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. Investment properties ather than iand ore deprecioted as per the estimated useful [fe of assets prescribed by the
Schedule fl fo the Companies Act 2013 e, 60 years for office premises.

{¥) Proparty. Plont ond squipment (PPE)

{ed)

Property. piant and equipment are stated at cost of acauisition less eccumuloted depreciction and Impainment, if any. Cost includes purchase price. non-refundable
taxes and levies and other directly attributcble costs of bringing the assets 1o its location ond working condition for its infended use.

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised o3 an asset if, and only if, it is probable thot the economic benefits essociated with the itern will flow to the Company in futre
periods, and the cost of the itern cun be measured refiobly. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put inte operctions, such as repairs end maintenance
expenses, are charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss during the periad in which they are incurred.

Anitern of PPE is de-recognized upon dispesal or when no futire economic benafits are expected to arise from the comtinued use of the ossets. Any goin or foss, arising
on the disposal or retirement of an tem of PRE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the cartying amount of the nsset, and is recognized in
the Staterment of Profit and Loss,

Depreciation i provided on the straighi-line method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, pust history of
replacernent and enticipated fechnological changes less residual value. ;

Scheduls It to the Companies Act 2013 {'Schadule’) prescribes the useful lives for various class of assets. For certain class of assets, based on technical evaluation and
assesstnent, Management believes that the useful ives adopted by it reflacts the pericds over which these assets are expected to be used Accordingly for those
asseis, the usefd lives estimated by monagerment are different from those prescribed in the Schedule, Monagement's estimates of the useful ives for various closs of
PPE are us given below:

Typa of Asset Estimated usaful ife
Furniturs and fixture 5 o 30 years

Cffice Equiprent 2 1o 10 years
Vehicle on operating lease 6 years

The usefid lives ond method of depreciation s reviewad af least of each year-end. Changes in expected useful livas are treated os change in accouniing estimates.

Pepreciotion en additions is provided on @ pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acguisition. Depreciation on deductions! dispasals is provided on a pro-rata
basis up to the month preceding the month of deduction/disposal,

However, leasehold improvements and PPE focated in jeasehold premises are depredicted on g straight-ine method over shorter of their respective useful fives or the
fenure of the lease arrangamant.

Individual cssets costing less than T 5,000/- are expensed off at the fime of purchase.
rovisions and Contingsnt Lickilties

A provision is recognized if, as o result of a past evens, the Company hos & present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reficbly, and it is probable
that an outfiew of economic benefits wili be required to settle the abligation.

If the sifect of the time value of money 5 material provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 1o the net present value using an
sppropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market agsessments of the fime value of money and, where aporopriate, the risks specific to the liablity.

A present abligation that arises from past events. whaere it is either not proboble that an outflow of resources will be required 1o seftie or a reliable estimane of the
emiount connet be mads, i§ disciesed os a contingent liabllity, Contingent liabliities cre alse disclosed when thare is o possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-coearrence of one or rrore uncertain future events, niot whally within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company. where the possibility of any ouiflow of resources in settlernent is remote, are not disclosed cs contingent liabifiies. Provisions, contingent
fubilities and contingent assets are reviewed af ecch Balance Sheet date.

Contingent assets are disciosed where an inflew of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognized in the standalone financiol statements,

(iiy Dividend

Any dividend declared or paid by the Company is based on the profits availcble for distribution as reported in the standalone finencial statemants, indian faw
mandates that dividend be declared out of distributakle profits. affer setting off un-provided losses and depreciation of previous years. In case of inadeguacy or
absence of profits In o parficular yedr, @ company may pay dividend out of accurnuated profits of previous years transferred ro Statement of Profit and Loss,
However. in the dbsence of acccumulated profits @ compony may declare dividend out of free reserves, subject to certain condltions os prescribed under the
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THMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALCNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2004, Accordingly. in certain years the net incorne reported in these standalone financial stotements may not
e fully distributaile, Further, declaration of dividend from the profits of the financial year ending March 31, 2025, ore also subject to guidelines of RBI in this regard,

i} Inwesiment in Subsidiaries and loint Venhures

(1)

Irvestrnants in Subsidiories and Joint Ventures are measured at cost os per Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements,
Finandial Instruments

A finoncial instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancicl csset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments
are recognized when the Company becomes @ party 16 the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Einoncial Assets

initicd recegrition and mecsuremnant

All fincncial assets are recogrized initially at fair value, However, in the case of financial assets not recorded o fafr value through profit or [oss, transaction: costs thot
are ctiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are added to the fair value. The fransaction costs directly ottributakle fo the coguisition of financief assets o fair

value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulotion or convention in the marketploce (reguior way
frades) are recognised on the trade dote, Le. the date that the Company commits fo purchase or sell the asset!

Financial ossets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solsly payrent of principal and nterest,
Clessificntion and Subseqguent measurennent

For the purposes of initicl recognition, financiol assets ars classified in the following categories

(g} at amertized cost, or

(b at foir value threugh other comprehensive incorne (FYTOCT), or

{c) af fair vaius through profit or toss (FYTRL

The above classification depends on the Company's business modsl for managing the financicd assets and the contractudl terms of the cash fiow.

(D Dabf Instrumaents

Initict clossificotion of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business maodel for managing the asset and the cash flow charocteristics of the asset. There are
{hree measurement cdtegories into which the Company classifies its debit Instruments,

(o} At omortised cosh
A debt nstrument s measured at armortised cost, if both the following conditions are satisfied/ fulfiled
- The asset is hald within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractuct cash flows; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cosh flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP on the principal omount
outstonding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measurad at amartised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into cocount any distount or premiur on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest incorne in the staternent of profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment cre recognised in the statement of prefit or loss, This category generclly applies
to fironce receivables and invesimenis.

) &F FYTOCK
A debt instrument is classified of PYTOCL i both of the following criteric: are met;
- The vhiective of the business medel is achieved both by collecting confractual cash fiows and selling the financicl assets: ond

- Controctual terms of the osset give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely poyments of principal and Interest (SPP on the principal ormount
cutstanding.

Dbt instrumenis included within the FVTOC! cotegory are measured initiclly as well as of sach reporting date at fair velus. Fair value movenients ore recognised in
the OCL However, the Company recognises interest income, impoirment fosses ond reversals in the Stetement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In OC! is reclassified from the equity to the Staternent of Profit and Loss. Interest eamed whilst helding FVTOCH debt
instrurnent is reported os interest incorme using the EIR maethod

{ch At FVTPL:

FVYTPL is o residual category for debt instruments. Any debt insirument, which dees net mest the criteria for categorisation as of amortized cost or as FVTQOCL is
chassified os ot FYTPL

In addition, the Campany may elect fo designate o debt instrument, which otherwise mests amortised cast or FVTOC criteria, as at FYTPL However, such slection is
cifovwad orly If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement of recognition incensistency ireferred to as ‘eccounting mismatch'),

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category ore measured af foir value with ol changes recagnized in the statement of profit and foss,

Derivatives embeddad in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 107 are not separated Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
inthelr entirery when determining whether their cash flows are solely poyment of principal and Intersst.

{1} Equity Instrumergs/invesiTnents
nvestments in équity instrurnents are measured at Tolr value, Equity Instruments, which are held for trading, are dossified as of FVTPL For squity instrumnents, other
than held for irading. the Cormpany has rrevocable option to present in OCI subsequent changes in the foir value, The Company mokes such election on an

instrument-by-instrument besis. The dlassification is made on initial recognition and is frevocable.

Wwhere the Company clossifies equity instruments s af FYTOC, then ofl foir volue changes on the mstrument, excluding dividends, are recognized i the OCIL There is
no recycling of the amaounts from OC!H to Staterment of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL cotegory are measured af fair value with olf changes recognised in the staternant of profit and loss.
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TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
MNOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i Ienpoirrnant of fincswiol cssels

“The Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) madsl in cccordence with nd AS 109 for recognising impairment loss on financial ossets except for
- gty instrumenis which ore not subject toimpairement under Ind AS 109, and

- other debf financidl cssets held of fair value through profif or loss (FYTPLY

The ECL allowarce is based on the credit losses expected to arise from ali possibie default avents over the expected Iife of the financicl assets (lifstime ECL), unless
there had been no significant increcse in credit risk of a defaulf occurring since origination or initic! recognition. in which case. the impairment diiowance is bosed onthe
12-marth ECL. The 12-month ECL i5 a poriion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events thet are possible within 12 manths after the reparting date.

ECL (both lifetime and 12 months) cre coledeted on a collective basis considering the homogenecus nature of the underlying portfolio of financidd assets, For stage §
and stage 2 assets, the corpany makes provision at higher of requirement s per ECL model and as per RS norees,

The impgirment methadology applies depends an whether there has been significant incregse in credit risk, When determining whether credit risk of o financicl asset
has increased sighificantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected cradit fosses, the Campony considers reasonable and supportable information thet is
refevant ond avallable without undus cest or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience ond
forward-locking information.

The expected credit loss is o product of expasure ot defaulr (EAD), probability of default (PD) and loss given defeudt (LGDY). The Company has devised an infernal
model to evaluate the PD and LGD based on the parameters set ot in ind AS 109, Accordingly. the finoncidl assets have been sagmented into three stages basad on
the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of o financial assets. The Company categorises financicl assefs at the reparting
date into stages based on the days past dus (DPD') status o5 unden

- Stage L Low credit risk, Le. O to 30 days past dus

- Srage 2 Significant increase in credit risk, ie. 31 fo 90 days past due

- Stoge 3 Credit impaired assets, Le. more than 90 days past due or cases whers the Company suspedts froud and legal proceadings are initiated,
Definition of dofiauly

The Company sonsiders a financial asset to be In “defoult” ond therefore Stage 3 (oredit impaired) for ECL edleulations when the borrowar bacomes 90 days past due
on its contractual paymants,

LGD is an estimate of ths foss anising In the case where o default occurs of a given time. 1t is boged on the difference betwaen the contractual cash flows due and those
that the Company would expect to receive, inciuding from the redlisation of any coliateral. it is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD,

P02 is defined a5 the probabifity of whether the borrowers will default on their cbligations in the future, For assets which arg in Stoge | o 12-month PD i required. For
Stage 2 ossets o ifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered os defoult. PD estimation process is carried olt based on historical internal data avaiiable
with the Cornpany.

EAD represents gross carrying amount af the reporting date in case of Stoge | and Stage 2. in case of Stage 3 leans EAD represents gross carrying amount af the time
when the defoult occurrad for Ist tirme.
Ferward locking informetion

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews magre-gconomic developments occurring in the economy cnd marker it operates in. On a pericdic
basis, the Compony analyses if there is any relationship betwesn key econamic trends fike GDP, Brent rates, unemployrent rates. benchmark rates set by the Reserve
Bank of Indic, infletion etc, with the estimate of PD. determined by the Company based on its internal data, While the internal estimates of PDL rates by the Company
may nat be aways reflective of such relationships, temporary overiays, if any. aré embedded in the methodolegy 1o refiect such macro-écenomic trends reasonably.

Boged on the considerstion of externd octucl end forecast information. the Company forms o base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables,
This process Mvoives developing two or mare additional econemnic scenarios and considering the relative probobilities of sach cutcome. The base cose represents o
most ikely outcome while the other scenarios represant more optimistic and more pessimistic oLtcomes.

ECL on Dbt instruments measured af amartised cosi

The £CLs for debt instrurnents measured at amortised cost reduce the gross carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet.

ECL on Debt instruments measured of for vedue through GCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOC! do not reduce the gress carrying amount of these financial assets in the balence sheet, which remains of fair value.
instead, an amount equal to the ollowance that would ariss if the assets were measured ot amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment
amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recagnised in OCHs recyeled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.
Write-off

The gross carrying amaeunt of o financial assets is written- off teither partially ar fully) to the extent that fhere is no reasenable expectation of recovering the asset inits
entiraty or a portion thereof. However, financial ossefs that are writter off could stil be subject 1o enforcement activities under the Company’s recoveary procedures,
toking into account legal advice where aporopriate. Any subsequent recoveries against such financiel assets are credited o the statement of profit and loss.

IV} Dsrscognition of finoncial asssis

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contracthuct rights to the cash flows from the osset expire. or when 1t fransfers the financial osset and
substantially olf the risks and rewards of cwnership of the asset 1o enother perty, If the Company neither transfers nor reteins substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues fo control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated Fability for ameunts it may have

to pay. f the Company retains substantiolly off the risks and rewards of cwnarship of ¢ tronsferred financial asset. the Company continues te recognise the finangicl
asset and also recognises an associcted lickility as collaterciised borrewing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a finandial osset, the difference betwesn the assef’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and recaivakle ond the
curnufative gain or foss that had been recognised in OC), and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Siatement of Profit and Loss,

Bnanciol babiities ond eouity nsfruments
Clossifieation s debt or equity

Debt ond equity instruments, issued by the Compony, are clossified s either financial cbilities or as ecuity. in accordance with the substonce of the contractuct
arrangerments and the definitions of o financict tidbility and an equity Instrument.



4]

i

THF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDAL OME FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b5 i ligais
Initial recagrition and mecsarement

All financiet fichilities are recognised initially af fair value, However, in the case of financial liobiiities not recorded at fair velue through profit o loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabifities are deducted from the fair volue of finencid iabilities. The fransaction cosis directly attributable to the
issue of finarciol liabiities af fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the staternent of profit or loss.

The Company's financial licbiifies majorly comprise of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. incuding bonk overdrafis and cash credit facllity and
derivertive financial instruments.

Subsequent medasurement

All financicl liobilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rote (21R) rethod or ot fair value through profit or foss (FYTPL),

{o) AT EVTPL

Finandial akilities af FYTPL incude financial liobiities held for trading and Tinanciat lnbilities designated upen inltiol recognition as at FYTPL Financial liobiities are
classifisd os heid for trading, if they are incurred for the purpese of repurchasing in the near term. This category olso inchudes derfvative financial instrurnents entered

into by the Company. that are not designerted and effective as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives
are dlso cossified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or fosses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial liobifties, designated ugon Initicl recognition at FYTPL, are designated as such at the inific! dote of recognition. and only If the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied,

(b} At arroriised cost

After initial recognition, inferest-baaring kans and borrowings ore subsequently measured ot amertised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, Amortised
cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or preriurn on acguisition and fees or costs that ere an ntegral part of the ER. The ER amoartisation is included in
interest expenses in the stetement of profit or loss,

Deracognition of financial lidbities:

The Corrpony de-recognises financicl liobilities when and only when, the Company's obligations cre discharged. cancelfled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying armount of the financial icbility de-recagnised and the consideration poid and poyable is recogrised in Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Modification/Renegotiotion thot do not result in derecognition

Changes to the carrying amaunt of & finaneic! liablity as a result of renegotiation or medification of terms that do nat result in derecognition of the financial fiability, is
recognised in the staternent of profit and loss, Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows of financial obility is recognised urder finance costin
the statement of profit or loss with the corresponcing adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the finencial fabiity.

(i) Equity Instrusment
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the essets of the Cormpany after deducting dll of its icbilities.
Incremental costs incurred which are directly atiributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax. from the procesds.

IR instruments entively equity in noture

The Company recognises hybrid perpetuct non convertible debentures as equity. i ferms of the instrument with regards to periodic coupon payments is such that.
coupon payments are af the discretion of the Company and the instrument i of nan redeernable in nature, thus such terms of the instruments svidences residuct
intersst in the assets of the Company after deducting ol of its liobiiities.

(v} Carnpound fincncial instroment

The components of compound financial instrurments issued by the Company are classified separately os financial iabiities and equify In accordence with the
substance of ihe contractud arrangements ond definitions of o finoncial liability and on equity instrument, A conversion option that will be settied by exchonge of fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's awn equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the licbility component is estimaied using the prevaiing market interest rate for similar non canvertible instruments. This amount is
recogrised as a licbiity on an amartised cost basie using the effective interest rate method until extinguished upan conversion or af the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as ety is determined by deducting the amount of ickility companent from the fair vakue of the compound financial instrements os o
whale. This is recognised and inchided in equity, net of tax effects. and is not subsequently remeasured, In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain
in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which cose, the balance recognised in equity will be fransferred to other cormpenent of equity. Wnen the conversion
option remains unexercised af the maturity dete, the bafence recognised in equity will be fronsferred to retained earnings. No goin or loss is recognised in profit o foss
upen conversion ar expiration of the conversion option,

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instrument are allecored o the fability and equity components in proportion fo the diocotion of the gross
proceeds. Transoction costs relating to the equity compenent are recognised directly in gquity. Trensaction costs relating to the liobiity component are includad in the
carrying amount of the liability cornponent and are amertised over the life of the convertible instrument using effective interest rate methad.

Fair valus messurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments and derivatives at fair values of each Balonce Shest date,

The fair vahue of o financial instrumnent on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (foir value of the consideration given or received] Subsaquent to inital
recogrition. the Company determines the fair value of financial instrurnents thot are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid prices Ufinancicl assets heid) ar

quoted ask prices (financict lickiities held) and using voluation techniques for other instruments. Vakuction fechnigues include discounted cash flow method and other
valuation madels,

Regent accounting pronouncernants

The Ministry of Carperate Affairs ("MCA®) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standerds under Cornponies (ndian Accounting Stendards) Rules s
issued from fime to fime. During the year ended March 31, 2028, MCA has notified ind AS 17 - Insurance Confracts and amendments to Ind As 1l6 - Leases , relating to
scle and lease back tronsactions, applicoble from April 1. 2024, The Company has assessed that thers will be no significant impact on its financial staternents.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

{¥ In crores)
£¢ of March 31, A5 ot March 3.
2025 2024
o Belonce withbanks . 2381 921
. . Towd . i T - 281 CE
§ Other bank bolancss
(Fincrorss)
As i Morch 3L, As e March 3,
2025 2024
... Deposits with banks. e - 104,25
Total N i04.25
6 Trode recgivables
£F ingrores)
As t Mareh 3L As it March 31,
20285 2024
,,,,, _ Receivobles considered good - Unsecured ” - a8
Less impairment loss allowance T - -l T - T
Totat T o - 048

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company eithar sevarally or jointly with any other person. Ner any trade receiveble ore due from firms

including kmited liobiity partnership (LLP) or private companies respectively in which any director is @ portner, a director or 6 mermber. No ageing of trade receivable as

the baiance outstanding en March 31, 2025 is nil,

Trade Receivabies ageing schadule

. (Tin crores)
As ot March 3, 2024
Not dus Ublled SRS OMOMRSTThvews  agves  MerRihond Totel
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables —
" conseredgues i - os8 - - - eaa
(i} Undispured Trade Receivabies — o : T o T -
which hove significant increcse - - - - - - -
__incredit rick L.
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - - s ) _ o _ __ - _ -
creditimpgired -
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — _ . . . -
__considered good - - - ;
(v} Disputed Trade Recelvables — B - - R R R e .
which have significant ingrease - - - - - - - -
. increditrisk
(v Disputed Trade Recelvabies - o ) B - R - oo
credit impaired ~ ~ - - )
Tatal - - 0.48 - - - - 048
7 loans
(Fin creres}
As ot March 3L As of March 3,
2025 2024
W Atomeomsedeost N -
. Cregit substitutes T R - 36556
_Inver corporgte deposts (repayableondemand) 0 T T T T 20565 387.00
Tolg(M-Gross ) 20565 75256
Le i s cliowance &0.40) (301
. Totd Ay - et o 145.25 74955
N 20645 75256
- ~ 20565 75256
= Less impairment fo: vance o {6040} (300
. Toll@)-Met — i 14525 749.55
£ Sector ) iy - I
b} Cthers 20565 T 7saEE
_oToidCy-Gress . e . 20565 75286
e - &S Impoirment foss dllowance U (60.40) (300
Teict {C) - Net ' ' o N 14525 74955

{1} The Company has not given loans or advances to promoters. directars and KMPs {os defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with ony other

person that ore repayable on dermand or without specifying any ferms or period of repayment.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i} The Company have given loans 1o related porties, that are repayable on dermand or without specify any terms of repayment as follows: -

(¥ in crores)
Porficuars Far the vear snded March 31, 2028 For iha yoier onded March 31, 2024
Amount of lecon or odvence n% 7o the fotol Loons ond Amourt of Iban or odvance m% %o the toral Loons and
_ the nature of loan cutstanding  Advonces i the nature  of the noture of loon outstanding | Advances in the nature of foans
locns
Related parties o ~ wroo sla2m
8 Invesiments
{Fin crores)
Poriiadars As of Morch 31, 2028 Ag ot March 3L 2024
Al fair voius
through Amortised Others Amertised Cthers Torat
profit or loss cost {ent cost)
Mu‘uc:l Funds ' '“ e e
Debt se - . E0000,
g?ﬂ*)!’.’ﬂ?‘ ruments [ e — - [
~Subsidicries - - &£52.38 £3.38 - = 731814 731514
To?ﬁ! (A} - Gress 5613 40000 £0.28 725.51 - S00.C0 7.315.14 79534
Investments in Indic . .sm 60000 &3 72551 - 50000 AT
investments outside India - - - - - - - -
TO?Q" ® 5613 S00.00 &2.38 725.51 - 6000 7.315.14 791514
Less
Allowarice for Impairment loss (C) - - (67.55) (69.38) ) h - h
Totdl . 5613 40000 - 55513 - £00.00 731514 7.515.14
Annexure | As ot Maoreh 3, 2025 &s av March 31, 2024
Quarity {Zincroves) Cuontity {F in croves)
o) Invesiments measured ot fair vdue through profit and loss
Mutal fund - - 5613 - -
e s B Tatet, " 5613 " :
S e e i R Gy ~ - . 5 ; :__
U Dabt Sacuriies toucied) —
.. Fully paid unsectred subordinatad non-convertible debantures o
Tota Motars Firance Limited - [Coupon rate - 9.95%1 2,000 20000 2,000 20000
: R e Sub?o‘.'c!' 2000 20000 2,000 200,60
_ vFu_E}v paid unsecured subordinated nen-converticle debentires o - ) B
Tata Moters Fironce Limited [Coupon rate - 9% 200 20000 ~ 729(1 QO
............ Tatan Mofors Finonce | an‘red [(;c»upon rate - iqg: I JWC0 w000 500 106,00
Tata Motors Finanee Lirit [Cougon rate - 1025%] 1000 100.00 15 10000
o e Sa{bioiqi‘ 4,000 400.0C 4,000 400.00
Fully poid pnsetured ephona!’y canve'ﬂbie zero ccupcn de::ar‘?uses e
. 235,000 - 835000 -
o Subtofal E35.000 - 835000 -
o ) ) T £0000 $0000
(¢} _Invesiments measured ot Cost_ - e — I
... Foulty nstrumonts R - . .
""""""""""" 97,965,962 - 9sigEs TTées
o - . 496939076 7.24576
e B o Subtoial - 7.315.14
(i Joini Venture e o L
Loginoric Tech Sciutions Private Limited ('Truckasy (Face Valus ZI0/=1 1260 31200
. Subtotal 3200 - 31,200 -
B Told i+ - 731514

- Du'mg the yec:.

ended Morch 3 2025 T'he Compc'w hos evcr{uc?ed its investments in oquity :ﬂsi-rument of TMF Business Services Limited [formerly known as Tota

Motors Finonoe Lirnited)(*TMFBSL") for indicators of impairment, and aecordingly considerad allowance for impairment loss of ¥ 69.38 crores.

MNaote:

L The Cornpany has purchased 18,22.0% shares of TMFBSE ot £ 0.05 per share during the vecr ended March 31, 2025,
2. The National Company Law Tribunal "NCLT" hos sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement of amclgamation of Tata Motors Finance Limited [Formerly known as
Tata Mators Finance Solutions Limited; "TMPL” into Tata Copital Limited "TCL"on May 01, 2025, The scheme is effective from May 8, 2025, with appointed date
being Aprit L 2024, Pursuant 1o the scheme. TMFL has ceased to be o wholly subsidiary of the Corpany. as of Apsit L 2024 and the Company will recelve equity
shares in the ratic of 37100, 16, 18.38.67.495 equity shores having face value of ¥100 ecch of TCL in lieu of 49.69.39,174 equity shares having face value of 2 100f- of

TMFL.
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2 Oiber financiol cessts

{%in crores)
Asaf Morch 3 As at March 31,
' ’ L 2028 2024
fey  Deposits _ — .. _ D SRR T
oy interest accmed on mvasfmanfs e #7 3oz
e " Others- imssfmbnf in Tata Capital Limited. nmetebelovy R 801662 -
. _ _  Total 804833 30.54

Note - Ths l\.CLT hos soncﬂoned the Scneme of Arrcngemenf of smalgamation of TMAL into TCL on Ncy OL 2028, Pursuant to the scheme, the Company will receive
equity shares in the ratio of 37100, Le. 18.38.67,495 equity shares having fece value of T 100 each of TCL in fisu of 49.69.39.176 equity shares having fuce value of T 100/- of
THMAL, which the Company has cccounted o far volue threugh profit and less recording an increase in value by ¥ 77085 crores basis the fair valuation done os on
reporting dats,

10 hwestment Property

{¥ in crores)
Buiidings Toial
Costosatppriyzozs e N e 22
22.4& A4S
_ {473 -
038 0.38)
N (505 (509
) B . 3 7357 737
Costasarhprll 2028 T may T T T e
Addiitions o o - -
CosrcsancrchSme - B ] . ) o 2246 2246
,,,,, CEr I 24
Depreclchon for the xear_ . Q.35 0.38)
{Accu'mﬁcrec depreccmncsmh\erﬂh s [ENE) 473
“Nat camying arnount as af iarch 3. 2024 17.73 W73
& incomne ond expendiiure of nvasiment property
(T incrores)
Asar . Asot
Avarcn B, 2025 Maren 31, 2624
w Rerntdd income derlved from investrment property o . -+ .-
@ Direct operating expenses lincluding repairs and msmenmce) ﬂrlsmg from mvesTmem 059 056
. preperythotgeneratedrentalineere e e : - ‘ .
(i} Deprecigtion @3 038

B) The fair value of the investment property ameunted to T 4325 ¢rores [As ar Mareh 31, 2024 F 43.25 erores), The foir value measurement for investment property has
been cotegorised os Level 2 foir value bosed on the inputs 1o the valuation technique used.

&) There is no restriction on the redliscbility of investrient property or the rerritiance of incorne and proceeds of disposal

{ch There was no contractudd obligations fo purchase. construct or develop investment property or for repdirs. radintendnce or enhancerments of nvestrnent property ot
March 31, 2025 and ot March 31, 2024,

{e) Title deed of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company Hence others disclosure requirements are ot applicatile.

i Property, plant and eguipment

(€incrores)
© Furnifure, fixkures and office oo : '
o : Vishiches . .. Terd
CostosevApril2024 s s
D[sggg_clmd;ustmenfs 0:48) -
Cost as af Morch 3, 2028 . . i ) 778 -
Accurracted deprediation as of Apri |, 2024 o I 7.80) B S "
Depreciation for the year " S L
Dizposalf Adiustrments - -
Accumslaied depraciaiion o5 of March 31, 2025 L .36 -
Mot carrying ameunt o5 ot March 31 2025 R 039 -
Costasal Aprill, 2023 T ) - e T T
“Cisposal/adiustments ) ©52)
Costas of March 31, 2024 -
Accurrsdoted deprecicfion os of April ], 2023
Dzsposc‘mdjustmems ’ e ) B ) 050
Aceuraloted depreciation as ot March 31, 2024 ) (7 80} -
Nat corrying omeound s of March 35, 2024 G 41 -
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12 Other non-financial assets

(®incrores)
Asai March 31 As gt tarch 3L
2075 2024
- e e ROA Q04
L,,, ' ool 009
(dlnfgxes paid Under protest e e e e e st e+ e+ e 001 i 001
(e Others o L L ) U004 o0
_Total 024 0ot
13 Paydbles
{T ingrores)
A3 ot Mareh 31, Asob Mareh 8,
. o . 02 2024
.. TradePayables - . e
0 Totd ou,srcnd\ng dues of micro emerpnses “ard srrail enferpr,ses o L)
M{iﬂ N 1ofal CufoGﬂd\r‘g dues or credn rors o?her r‘mn ricro enterprises and srocil enrerpnses . . .28 o775
doal e 9% 078

Mota: Accarding o the infarmation available with the management, on the bosis of intimation recetved from its suppliers regarding their status under the sicro, Sraall

and Medium Cnterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company has armounts due to micro and small enterprisss under the said Act is os follows:

A at March 3L
2025

___a}Principal omount not due

b) Principa amount due

(¥ In crores)
fsar Merch 3l
2024

o Interest dte on above

"y Arodnt of interest paid In terms of section 16 of the Micro, Srmall and Medium Enterprises R
__ Development Act, 2006

o} Amount of interest due and povable for the eriod of delay

‘) Arnourt of interest cccrued and rermaining uwpcad qs of yeor end

Trode Payebles oging schedule
As of March 31, 2025

(T in crores)

Cutstording for following poriods from dus date of ooayment

Not due Less thon 1

Morpthend O Tod

_ - i e VavYears | 28Years TG
(i} MSME 0% - 2] - - - fok)}
(i Others ) - 014 - 014 - e - __ 0%
WDsputeddves—MSME T - e T e T -
(i) Disputed dues < Others ) - - - - - ! - -
Totd 025 - 014 - - - 0.3%

Nate: All the omount of MSME vendors are paid within due dates and there is no interest accrued during the current year

(Z incroresy

Az o Mareh 3, 2024

Crasterding for following periocds from due date of poyment

Notdus Unb!i!ed._ Lss;;?njqnl 2 Yems . 247 Years Moa;aszrtma Tork
— - U — S — T O - - z - - -
@Others - 040 033 - I v
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - e -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others ) - - - - - - B
Totcd - 040 038 - - = 075
Note: Afl the ameount of MSME vendors are paid within due dates and there is no interest accrued during the previous year.
14 Debt securities
(¥ in crores}
As gt March 35, As ot March &
2008 024
Ursecured e . . .
"ol Privately placed non-corvertigle debertures T U0 254219
(B} Cormnmerciol Paper (net f unamortised b borrowing cost of € Al ond #2871 crares ot Morch 31 2028 and . 80520
March 31 2024, respectively) ’
Towk{h e . o 31608 3,43848
(Debt secunﬂes in Indict o . o o iueos 343848
liDebr securities outside India z T
L1608 343848

Tod B R e e
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Details of non-convertiple debennres (Unsecured)

{Z incrores)
R . As at March 31, 2025 T | Asof Morch 3, 2026
From Balance sheet Deta | e .. . ‘terestRasRengs Amount JnteresiRateRange Apnouat
Issued on pri Q@@@m‘r buss e e
Fhomuring within | Year ) . 769% /o 7.02% 10 9.42% o 1527.21
Maturing between yeor 10 3 Yecrs BETH k- 769% 10 8.53% L
Maturing befwetm?}erqrs 105 Years m _ e L k , o
Totcd Face Vaive . 1270065 2.747.86
Less qumorrised oree R A ) 457 . = 20567
TotalAmottedcosr T T T T T 608 PRI
Deidiis of Commercial popers (Unsscured)
(icrores)
. : Ascf Moreh 3, 2025 . As ot March 31, 2024
fromBdoreeshesiDate interesfRoteRange Amount _InierestRoteRonge o Ameunt
Maturing ..thml Yecr S e e __B4B%to8 50% 925,00
Total Focs Vokue e - 92500
_Lgs Unomortised borrowing cost ) e - . 2871
TodlAmedsedoost EE G
15 Borrowings - Other then debt securities
{Zincroras)
Bsat March 3 As ot March &
2028 2024
... Inter corporate deposits from related parties (unsec 2500 8500
" Yordi 8y ) _ } 214500 8500
6 Borrowangsin ndia o S LT zwson _ 8500
@ Borrowings oul i . ) - -
Tomi® o o 24500 3500
Note: The borrewings hqve not bﬂen guarameed by durectors o others. Also the Compony hcss not defoui?ed inrepayment of principgt and interest,
Details of Infer corporate depasits {ICDs)
{Fin crores)
. ’ . Asaf Morch 3 2025 Asg af March 31, 2024
Frosn Bokeoee shee) Dato et o ... interestRatsRonge Aot . inferest Rats Range T . 11, = o
Maturing within1 Yeor o 825% 70 8 92"/. 24800 892 8500
o*"cz’ Amer?:sedc : o V_‘___ - 214500 T "_'__ 8500
16 Cther financids liabilties
{Tincrores)
As of March 3L As at Morch 3L
025 2024
(a)interest cecrued onborrowings _ e e T e 220
(b) thers 2604 2604
Total e . . 2604 25
7 Provisiors
% in crores)
Asct Marehd As ot Mareh 3l
2025 2024
__ Provision for expenses 0.07 012
Tofd o ' G607 oz
18 Cther non-financid licbilities
@ in crores)
Asat Morch 21 A af Mareh 3,
2028 2024
_ Statutory dues ) o e 280 139
et T . N o =
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1¢ Shore Capiial

b)

¢}

& Incrorss)
Ag ot Mard 3, &g ot fiarch B,
2025 2024
3000000000 Ordinary ety ordeef fomadh T EERE P
{os ot March 31, 2024 2.50.00.00.000 Ordinary shares of ¥10 each) N
75000000 (forgpﬁéér; convertiole preference shares of @00 each L o M ! ) 75000 75000

{as af March 3, 2024 7.50.00,000 Ordinary shares of Ti00 each)

Tote L7459 174159

Reconciliation of the equify shares oulstanding ot the beginning and ot the end of the reporting ysar

As o Micgch 31 2025 A3 at March 31 2024
Mo, ¢f shores (T incrores) No. of shares (T in croresi
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year e 1741502442 17859 174189344z 174159
Equity shoresissuedduringtheyear - - - :
o 170593442 174159 1741593442 174159
Detalls of equity shares held by holding company and ifs subsidiaries:
As of Moreh 3, 2028 As ot Mereh 31,2024
% of izsued share . % of issuod shars
. No. of shares capital _ o, of shares copticd
Equity shares with voling rights _ . e . e
Tota Motors Limi?_ed . 174,593,442 _— msCO?’- R 12_4_1\5‘?34-52 e BO%
Detaits of equity shares held by Promoters:
As gt Morch 31, 2025 Asat Merch 3, 2024
Fromator ram No. of Shores % of tofod shoras % Cémg;:;uring the No. of Shares % of foid shares * Chﬁ?:;mng e
TooMatorsLimited. | 174598442 100% N lzasoaaar o 00E oM

o Torms | rights afiached to equlty shares:

The Cormpany has single class of aquity shares. Accordingly. of equity shares rank egqually with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residust assets,
The equity shares are entitled fo receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of
an equity shareholder on o poll are in proportion to its shore of the poid-up equity copital of the Company. On winding up of tha Company. the holders of equity
sheres will be entitled to recelve the resicual assets of the Compony. remaining after distrbution of off preferential amounts in preportion o the rumber of the

equity shares held,

&) infarmation regarding issue of shares in the kest five years

(i} The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash,
{i} The Company has not issued any bonus shares.,
fii} The Cormpany has not undertaken any buy-bock of shares.

) Dividends not recognized of the end of the year

The company hes not declarad dividends during the financicl year ended March 31 2025 and March 31, 2024,
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20 instrumnants entirely equity in nakure

Asaf Meorch 3% Ag ot March 3,
2025 2024
Nurnber (Tincrores) Nurnbar (T in crores}
Balarice os of beginning of the year o 18000 180000 18,000 180000
sueddringtheyear o - L - - - bl - -
Boonceasatendoftheye " 18,000 180000 18,000 180000

The Company hos issuad 18,000 subordingted, ksted, unsecurad rated perpetud securities of fate value of 2 10 crores edch aogregating to T 1800.00 crores, The coupen
on these securitios runges bethwaen 7.2962% pa. to 8.7551% p.a.

These securities are perpetual in nature with ne maturity or redemption ond are cofiable only at the option of the Company. There is a stepwup provision of 100 bps over
fhe respective coupon rate if the securities are not calied by the issuer at the end of 10 years from the dote of diotment. The poayment of cny Coupon may be cancelled
or suspended at the discretion of the Board of Directars,

The Coupen on these instrurments shall not be cumidative except where the Company shall not be ligbie to pay Coupon and may defer the poyment of Coupon, i

i it's odjusted net worth 1o aggregate risk weighted ossets ratio ("ANwW Rafio®) is below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by RBI under the CIC Directions of
ii. the impact of such poyment resulis in the Company's ANW Ratio foling below or remaining below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by R8l under the CIC
Directions,

As these securities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation. these are classified os equity.

Tate Motors Limited (le. Parent Company) hos written put ophion to purchase these instruments from the investors on respective option exercise dates as specified
below:

Cpiions Exercisable Date Arnount (F incrores) Stotus of Cptions Exercised by Tata Motors Limited
IR Aucust, 2024 195.00 Exercised
18" August, 2024 305.00 Exercised
G4t November, 2025 100.00 Not due
27" Novernber, 2025 100.00 Not due
2" Becember, 2025 150.00 Not due
30M Decermnber, 2025 150.00 Not due
5" September, 2026 10C.00 Not due
28" September, 2026 0000 Nof dug
30" September, 2026 15000 Not due
30 June, 2027 20000 Not due
30" Septermber, 2027 25000 Not due
2t Notes to reserves

(i} Special reserve

As per Section 45-C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every ron-banking financial company shall create areserve fund and fransfer therein o sum not ess
than fwanty per cent of s net profit every year os disclesed in the Staternent of Profit and Loss and befere any dividend is deckared. No appropriation of any
sumn from the reserve fund shall be made by rhe ron-banking financial company except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of india from
time to fime and every such Gppropriction shall be reperfed 1o the Reserve Bank of India within hwenty~one days from the date of such withdrawal. The
Company frensfer said ameunt af the end of the financial yeor.
(i} Securifies premiun Geeount

The amount received in excess of face volue of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Account. Also, all “eligible” issue expenses in respect of new
equity infusion and CCPS infusion is recognised in Securities Premium Account.

(i} Copitod reserve
The Capitcl Reserve represents the compenscring reversoel adiustment relating to amortisation of discount on the Zero-Caupen Debentures which wers
charged aguinst the Securities Premium Reserve earlier which is not dllowed as per the Companies Act, 2013, This separate rate reserve head is created based
on the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) issued by the Ind AS Transition Facilitetion Group.,

{iv) Retained earnings
Retained sornings are the profits that the Company has eormed 1l dote.

22 Interest Income

(T inerores)
For 1hs yoor ended For the year anded
sereh 3, 2028 March 31, 2024

. Onfinencicl csssts measurad at arrortised cost

23 Net gain on foir valus changes
{T incroses)

Fer the veor ended For the year ended
. !  Fgrch 31,2025 ... Mach3202s
o Net goin on For Vehus chenges. e e e )
S Redlsed L ) R ..o
o ot B
- .56 130i
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24 Other Income

{Zincrores)

For the yeor ended For the yeor ended
March 31 2025 Mereh 31, 2024
(o) Support services income o - 2550
() Bolances written back - - TOaR
{c} Net gain o grition of property. plant and equipment oa
_(d) Interest on Income tax refund - - 294 o T
CoTerd it 304 2562
25 Finance Cosis
(F in crores)
For the year snded For the year ended
Figroh 81 2025 Rgroh 312024
. . . 4373
(0} Interes: - Zese T
(c)érie-r finance ch 7 [s]
mmj TD_TCJ - - 26877
26 Impeirenanit on fircndd struments and other assels
{Tincreres)
For the year ended For the year ended
#March 31 2025 Hareh 31, 2024

impairment on financial ossets

_ Leans (ot amortised cost}

_ -Alowonceforloaniosses

- Loans written off

" investments (ot amorfised cost)

Other financial assets

T Allowance for dousntful assets

- Other write off

27 Other expanses

For the yeor ended
Farch 31, 2025

(T in¢rores)
For the vear ended
March 3, 2024

{2} Rent, toxes ond energy costs
H(—b) Re'pr::i'r;.dc!'r:d maintenarce R
() Director's fees, dliowences and expenses
() Auditor's fess and expenses .
(&) Legal and professional charges

~ £f) Insurance

) Auditors’ remuneration {exchuding Geods & Service Tox):

& incrores)
For the veor sndsd For the yaar ended
Morch 3L 2025 fharch 81, 2024

(el As cuditors - Statutory cudit o 0.8
fb) Asoudiors - Taxoudt ' 002
(e} For other services [P SR oL . 007
_(d) Reimburssment of out of pocket expenses - 0
Q.37

(il Corporate secial responsibiity

The prescribed CSR expenditure required to be spent during the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 s per the Compcnies Act. 2013 is Nil. in view of average net

profits of the Company being i (under section 198 of the Actl for three Immedictely preceding financial years. No arnount has been spent by the Company on

construction / acquisition of on asset. There were no CSR transactions with or contributions to any relaied parties fisted in Note 34,
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28 Ipcome taxes
a} incorme fox expenss recognised in statement of profit and loss

(% inerores)
For the vor ended For the vear endad
Karch 31 2028 baarch 3L 2024

Income tax expense

Adjus

Total current tox expense

:_Decrecsg (_ipgr_eosei in:ae:_’errgd_ Tox assets

__{Decreasel increase in deferred tax liobiliies 10437 -
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) B _ 10437 -
Incorme Tox expense 104,37 -
b} Reconciliation of the income fax expenses and accounting profit
Reconciliation of the income tox expense and the accounting profit muitiplied by Indid’s tax rate;
. {Z incrores)
- For the yecw snded For tho yoar endad
rgreh 3, 2025 Morch 3, 2024
Profit beforetaxes _ o o L A7BFY __(9.68
Stafutory tox rate R 25]68% 25168%
Incomne fax expanses calcuated o statufory fox rate e e 12050 302
Tex effect of the amount which are not faxable in cafeulating taxcble income : R e
~Deferred tax cssets not recognised becouse realization is nef probaoble. o s (2050 LLLoe
- Qthers 104,37 -
income tax expansef(credi) recognissd for the year of affective tax rofe -~ 0437 -
¢} Significant cornponenis of deferred foe assets and lickilifies for the yeor ended March 31, 2025
Fincrores)
Recognised in
Cpsringbaionce  sicement of proft Closing batoncs
andloss

Deferrsd tax assats: B

Property. plant 3 equipment - Accurnulated degreciction S . -

Expenses deckctible in future years; . ‘ - -

Provisions for impairment olicvweances on finoncial assets ) - - -

Compensated abserices and refirernent benefits dlowable en payment - _ _

busis

others o e . i S :

Totci dlsferred tax gssels - - -

Deferred to lickdisies: -

Fair Veluation of financiol assers measured ot FYTOCE and BYTPL - - -

income 1o be faxed on actudl receipt basis ‘ o o 10437 10437

Sourcing comimission claimed on incurrence basis - - -

Cthers - - -

Total deferred fax iabiiies - 0457 10437

Net ossets/{ichilities) - {I04.37) (04,371

d} Amounts recognised directly in equily
Thars was no incoms o sxpenses for current yeaor and previous year for which tax impact has been routed through reserve.

e Tax losses

As at March 31, 2025, unrecagnised deferred fox ossets amounted 1o T Ml (As at Mareh 31, 2024 - #1001 erores) which can be carried forward indefintely and ©
286.39 erores (As of March 31 2024 - € 255.22 crores) which con be carried forward upto a specified period, These relate primarily 1o depreciation carry forwards
ond business losses, The deferrad tax asset has not been recognised on the bosis that its recovery is nat probabie in the foreseeabie future.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets expire unutiized based on the year of origination os follows:

& incrores}

Morch 3L 2026

March 31,2030

March 31 2031
March 3l 2032
Merch 31,2053
Thereafter
Tosal
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29 Earnings per share

Bosic and diuted ecrnings per equity share are computed in aecerdance with ind AS 33 — Eornings per shore. Basic sarnings per equity share are computed by dividing
net profit after tax by the waighted average rumber of equity shares outstanding during the year,

The diluted earnings per equity share is compured by dividing the net profit ofter tax os adjusted for dividend reloted to diutive potential equity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares and weighted average number of diutive potenticl equity shores autstanding during the year, except where the result are anti-dilutive.
The following tabile sets forth, for the yeor indicated, the computation of 2araings per share.

Net profit / (loss) attribu
Weighted average no. of equity shares cutstanding

{{Z in croras), excapt per shore data)
Particuiars For e yeer endecd For the yeor snded
mharch 31, 2028 Maorch 3, 2024

squity share holders (ReferNated T T Twmgr T T Mgy
1741593442 1741.593.442

Basle earnings per share (%) — ) R e ) 132 5D

Aoy T 26304)

o U msvaasn 1741593.442

e e e N . - e (s

Face value per shore () e i — — Boo I -
f\iotem T‘quw!aﬁmafr@?proﬁ?__cfﬁﬂ:mblefoegﬁi_ty Jor, e B R
Profit / tioss) after rax as per staternent of profit and loss 374.42 . (19.68)
Less - Digtribution rmade to holders of perpetudl nstruments (4335 (143.36)
Net orefit { doss) aitributable o equity share belders 28107 (24304}

30 Segrment

The Company. being ¢ Core investment Campany has been operating only in one segrment vis investing activities and the operations being only in india, the disclosure
requirements of Ind AS 108 Segment Reparting are not applicable,

3i Disclosure in respect of Operating lecses

Cornpany as lessor- Operating Leases

The Commpany has given office premises under operating lease. The Company has recogrised isase rental income from leasing of office premises amounting 1o ¥ 454
croves (March 3, 2024: T 454 crores) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Although the risks essociated with rights that the Company retains in underlying assets ore not
considered to be sigrificart. the Campany employs strategies to further minimize these risks. For exarmple, ensuring ol contracts inckude clauses requiring the lessee to
compansate the Compony when o property has been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term.

32 Contingent lichilitiss and cornmitments

(i) As af March 31, 2025, the company does not have any contingent licbilities. (As ot March 31, 2024: Milk,
(i) Commitments: Loon cormmitment os af March 31, 2025, is § 794.35 erores (As at March 31 2024 % 123100 crores)

23 Other Stohgtory Information

i

Vi

v,

il

There is no proceedings initiated/pending against the Company for bencmi property under the Benarni Trarsactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of
1988) and the rules made thereunder as af March 31, 2025, and as af March 31, 2024,

As at March 31 2025, borrowings from banks or financiol institutions on the basis of sscurity of current cssets is Nil (March 31, 2024 nil).
The Cornpany has not been declared as willful defoulter by any bonk or financial insiitusion or any lender.

During the year ended March 3, 2025 and March 3, 2024. the Company did not have any itansactions with the companies struck off under
section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

There are no charges or satisfaction yet fo be registered with Registrar of Compantes beyond the statutory period os ot March 31 2025, and at
March 31 2024,

As per Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rues. 2017, Non-Banking Fincncial Companies are exempted from resiriciion on numiber of
layers.

The cornpany has not advanced or foaned or invested funds (efther borrowed funds or share prermium or any other sources or kind of funds) 1o
any other person(s) or entitylies), inchuding fereign entities (Infermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the interrediary shal () directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any marner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guaronies, security or the like to or on behdlf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understonding
twhether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall () directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behdf of the Funding Party (Uliimate Beneficiaries) or (i} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behailf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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34 Relegad party disclosures

(c) Reiated parties ond thelr relafkionship (os defined under ind AS -24 Relted Porly Disclosure)
. Holding Compony: Tata Motors Limited

. Subsidiories
Tata Motors Finance Limited (ceases 1o be o subsidiary we f April 01 2024, (refer nate 400g).
TMF Business Services Limited

il Other relaied perties with wham transaciions have token placs diring the aurent and previous vear
{0 Fellow subsidicries, associntes and Joint arrangsrents within the Group

Teta Moters Global Services Limited (formerly known as TML Business Services Limited)

Tata Technologies Limited

Tata Motors Insurance Broking and Advisery Services Limited

Tata Cummins Private Limited

(i) Taia Sons and ifs subsiciarios and Joing arrangements
Tata Sons Private Limited
Tata AlG Generdd Insurance Company Limitedt

iy Manogement parsonnet

#r. Nasser Munjee. Independent Director and Chairman
M. P. B, Balaji - Non-Exacutive Director
Mrs. Varshe Purandare - Independsnt Cirector
Mr N Y. Sivakurnar - Independent Director
#r. Shyarmn Mani - Non-Executive Director (upto August 31, 2023}
Mr. Samrat Gupta - NonvExecutive Director {upto October 15, 2024)
Mr.P. 8. Jayakurnar, independent Director (upto Novernber 7, 2023)
fdr. Dhirnan Gupta - Non-Executive Director (upto December 23, 2024)
s, Ridht Gangar - Chief Financicd Officer (upte November 30, 2024)
Mr Arrit Mittal - Chisf Financigl Officer (from Decarmber 1, 2024 to Aprd 15, 2025)
r. Mohit Aganued = Chief Financial Officer {w.ef April15. 2025)
Mr. Vinay Lavannis - Cormpany Sacretary (upte March 3, 2025)
M. Anand Bang. Manager
Mr. Neeraj Dwivedi - Company Secretary (w.ef. Apritl, 2025)

(&) The following toble summaorizes related-party fransactions for the year endedf os ot March 31, 2025,

) ) & incrores)
Helding Company Subsidiories Joint Venture Q*mim Toial
& Transactions duing the yeor . S e
Rent incoma - 202 - e » o002
Interest incorne on channe e - - - 1. e

Expenses for support services (lnc. rexmb:..rsemenr of
expenses) (Refer note ()

Loans and advances recovered
Inter corporate dep
Inter corporate depoé ts recovered
Interest income on infer corporate deposits placed

Irwesi'mem' in equity shore capiral

Exercise of put option on Hybirid pe{getucl bonds '_ _ Wﬁf_* SC"OO o - - o 500_00_
Interest expense on inter corporgte deposits accepted 4936 - T - 49,20
Inter corporate depositsaceepted 294000 - e - 224000
inter corporote deposits repad 795.00 - - - 79500
&) Closing Bcorcs _ R ~ B
Arnount receivable in respect of inter corporate _ 20565 _ _ 20565
deposits e s i e o

Amgunt payabie m respect of nier companydeposit T ams00 T - T e T 2450
Amount poyolis others e e e o . bk
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{c) The following table surnmarises reicted-party rensactions for the veor endsdy os af March 3, 2024,

(% In¢rores)
Helding Commpeny  Subsidicries Joink Verms CAftar Ratated Totd
5

<} Tronsaetions during the vae e e e
Rentincorme e e+ o a8 - e
%q_._eress incorne _on chonpel financing /Lloen . - - 30.39
Interest income onunsecured Tier-ll debenture ! - 5817 - i,
Expenses for support services (ingl. refmbursement of 0ng 109 - 047 164

expenses) (Refer riote (1))

o - - e _0CB oo
i . T . 5593‘74 o M_ﬁS.S_‘??.f?fl
T 60&1 55 L 7._6.0615 i

InTer corporcre ceposns recove'ed .
Irnerem ﬂjcome on IPTGI’ corDcrc.edepcSars piaced o

InTerforporme Dep05| s placed
inter corporate deposhis accepted

BJ Closing Balance
Amount receivable inrespect of inter corporate

[{i:1ele]
denosits I ) B B o
Amaunt receivable others =
Armourd receivoble in respect of ifterast acdrued on

deposm & investrments

Amourt recelvobis Inrespect of debenture R £00,00 e

Amount poyable in respect of inter company deposit - 2500 - -

Armount recelvakle - credit substitutes - - - - 3vs

Amount recervable in respect of interest accrued -

credis substitutes - - - 162 162
Amount payable ofhers - JE 028 BT R )

Notes:

1) includes amount cross charged by subsidiaries for support services and remuneration 1o Key Managerict Personnel
fi} westments in optionally convertile zero-coupon debentures of € 835 crores and equity shares of T 266 crores In Loginomic Tech Solutions Private Limited
(TruckEasy"} was written off during the year ended March 31, 2024,

Terms and condifions of fronscction with related parties:
The transcction with refated porties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm's length transactions.

(e Key management persornel rermuneration

(@ in crores)
Fortheyear ended  For the vea ended
Porticuiars o Mereh 3, Haren 3,
. : e o S . 2088 C 2004
Sitting fees paid to ndependen? diroctors 031 030

33 Reconciliation of rovsrnent in borrowings 1o cash flow from financing activitios

(% incrorss)
o 4 Exchangs Ameniisaiionoflben AsabMarch 3
Parficuiars Asat Aprit 1 2024 Losh Fows (net) Py . ceigination costs 20195
DebtSecurities L 3438485 (2355.57) S < £~ £ 1+
Borrowings fother than Debt secun?nes) 8500 2,060.00 = T 214500
252348 {295.57) = 37 326108

No?e Deb’r secun‘r jes includes commercicl papers and zero-coupon bonds for which the discounting charges paid is ¥ 37.92 crores and prermum charges paid of T
&2.2Y areres respectively on the repayrment date is shown in the finance cost in cash flow staternents

1% Incrored)

Exchangs Amcriisgfionoffom As o Merch 3,

Particudars Asar Apri 01, 2022 Cash Flows (netl Diffsrance origination 2054
Debt Securities T 368643 WPBFOR = B075 343848
Bor’cwngs {cither thor Thun Debt s secun ) . 4500 40.00 - - 8500
oiel Liabitios from Fnoncing Activities 373143 (38870} - 18075 352348

\lafe Debt securities rncludes cammercial pepers ond zero-coupon bonds for which the discounting charges paid is ¥ 88.95 crores and premium charges paid of F K
trores respectively on the repayment date is shawn in the finance £ost in cosh fiow statements.
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36 Foir valle mecsurements
Finencial Instrurnents by categeries

{Tin crores)
. As ot March 3, 2025 As ot March 3, 2024
Particulars Amgoriised Arnortised
FUTPL cost F‘!TP{. cost
Frezcicl Assets
(G) zmestments T o T o - v
S MuGifunds - o 5413 T T
i - Debt securfies N T T s e L LG0.00 - H00.00
T Eqaity instrament N P - . -
(b) Louns -
(¢ Cash and cash equivdle -
(d) Qther bark balances ) L z )
(o) TradeReceivables T T - z m 15
{2 Other financial asssts e T 804853 - 3094
—T"-“E o o - mﬂ m m_"_m_:__m 5513 879659 A 1494.43
il R e et s S
{e) Borrowings (Other than Dekt securities) T 214500
(b} Debt securities - 1608
() Trade payables - T N gz
(d} d) Other financict lidol h.:es - T 2604
Toid S - - 328751

Fair vodue hierarchy

Set ouf below, is a comparison by closs of carrying ameunts and fair vaius of the Company's financic ossets/lichilities, other than those with the carrying emounts that are

reqsonable gpproximations of far values:

{€incrores)
y A5 ai March 31, 2025
Particulors
Cerying volue Fair vaive Levall Level 2 {eveld Teial
() Finorcicd iohilitiss measwred ot
amcrtieed cost for which fair valus is
........ discjosed o . e e e
Rl Borro\nmgs . 18000 . T . T e ZM"’Q?
(3 S_ecurmes . 116.C8 - 5 .393! - LHY81
Total S 326108 - 336480 - E363 8]
{b} Financial assets measured of foir valus
through pron? & Eoss
@ mutalfunds T sk TTsen 8 LT s
f' ) Orhef f;nonc:ol asset 8.016,62 801662 - - 8016.62 B8.015.62
801642 8.01662 - - 8.016.62 801642
(6} Fincrciol cssels measured of ormortised T T
cost for which fair valiue is disclosad
_tooms 4525 145.28 - 14525 - 145.25
) TO?CI| I 4825 14525 - 14526 - 14825
(% in crores)
Asgt March 31, 2024
m‘ lqg-s
P Carrying value Fair vaue Levall Lovet 2 Level 3 Total
(@) Financial icbifities mecsured af
amertised cest for which fair vaiue is
L . e S
i R . .. sea 8500 . - asgo __..8sa0
RUE Dent Securmes I, 254219 2.536.85 - 253685 - 2.53685
TOTCE' 262719 262185 - 2462185 - 262185
(o} Fincnciol cssels meosured af foir valug through ) o o - -
prorrt Gloss i
; iwesrmen’s ___________
= Mutud funds - - - - - -
IO - - - - - -
o) Fincncicd assots mecsured ot amontised cost ) e
for which fcslr vcu.e iS c{zsc'ased ) N o
Y 74955 75955 B 38545 36410 74955
R 749.58 74358 - 385.45 36410 74255
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The categorias used are as foliows:

Guoted prices in an active market (Level 1) This leve! of hisrarchy includes financial assets that are measurad by reference to quoted prices in active markets Tor identical
assets or abilities. This category consists of mutual fund investrents

Valuation techniques with cbservable inputs (Levet 2). This level of hierarchy includss financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than guoted prices
inchuded within Level 1 that are olservable for the asset or liabifity, either dirsctly (e as prices) or indirectly lie. derived from prices),

valuation techniques with significant unobservabile inputs thevel 3): This level of hierarchy includes financicl assets and liabilities measured using nputs that are not based
on observable rmarket dota (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determingd in whele or inpart, using o valuction model based on assurmptions that ore nelther
supparted by prices frorm cbservoble current maorket transactions in the same Instrument nor are they based on avaiiable maorket data,

There has been no tronsfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the vear ended March 31, 2025, ond March 31, 2024

Yeluation technigue used to determine fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivelent to the risk-free rate of return, adjusted for the cradit
spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar maturity and credit queality are classified inlevel 2.

Managernent uses its best judgrment in estimating the foir volue of its financiol instruments, However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore,
for sutistantially afl financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessariy indicative of ol the armourts that the Company could have realised
or paid in sale fransactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financia instrurnents subisequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from
the amaounis reported at sach year end

Eair volie of financial assetsflichiities measured of amortised cost

The carrying amounis of financial assets and financiol lickilities other than those disclosed in table above are considered to be the same s their fair values due to the
shart-term metunties of instruments or no material differences in the values.

29



THF HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37 Mhoiurlty Anclysis of Asseds and Licbilites
The table below shows the motwrity onalysis of assets and liobilities according to when thev are expected fo be recovered or settled

- . Fincrores)
- Particuiers . As ot Morch 3l 2025 As ot Maren 31 2024
. o Curent  Nonoument  Totl o Qument Hon curent Toidl
assErs
Fpmqqi qssafs T mm—— o T T " T N T
Cashondeoshequivdents  © L& IR I S -
Bonk Bc1ﬁnce other than c::sh cmd casn
sauivalents - - - 104.25 - 10425
Recevables . _ _ e R
Troderecenabies R S . . 048 L
Loons S o ws2® . 4SS TADPSS o T 4RSS
Investments - - - - 79154 79514
Otherfingneielgessts T T T gy T gisgs “soasz  sos 0¥ sa%4
Non-firancid gssets
9\.1 rent TGX QSSSTS (neT) T - ‘21.35 ‘2]35 ” -
B BN 737 gE T
- ez e S
oI5 005 024 oK
23595 8.75612 897207 89425

Trade payales
totad cutstonding dues of micre en‘rerpr ses and
smoli enferprises

total outstanding Gues of creditors other than
rricro enterprises and small enterprises

J'_‘Je-bfr securities

on - on Q - -

028 - 028 078 - Q75

TTUINe0s | 240748 oS00 343648

24500 T -
- 7. s S . 1.2

Orher ncnqcls ucblixftes

Non-finoncict lciiles
Current tex ‘\Gbii tes (nef) .

Provisins B A LT T

Deferred tcx I:ooilmes (nerj ) T WaEr - - 10427 T L " - )
ther ﬁOF"T‘ﬂGHCZIG} ||C1bFImeS :m i WWWWWWM:‘: T 2?8-0 o o - o "'*"’”""2'3'0_ o ’ W13§ : 139
Towd poblies 263185 76673 339858 25508 105704 357608

Net o 23550 7.983:39 559349 052479 558701 536242

33 Finoneial risk management

The Cornpany's activities expose it 1o maorket risk (nchuding currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk ond liguidity risk. The Company's risk
managerment strategies focus on the un-predictability of these elements and seek to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Cenfraiised
treasury department and risk management department cdvises on finencial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company and
provides assuranee to the Company's senior mancagement that the Company's financial risk cctivities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and menoged in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives,

{A) Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that o counterparty will not meet its obligarions under o finoncial instrument or custormer contract, leading to o financial loss. The Company 5
exposed fo credit risk from its

- Operating activities, primardy foans ariging from financing aetivities.

- Investing activitios, including primartly investments in debt securities, preference shares. equity shares and mutuad fund schemes: and

- Finoncing aciivities, including term deposits and balarces with hanks and financial institutions and other financial instrurments,

Bxposure to Credit Risk

The carrying ameunt of financial assets represents the maximurn credit exposure, being the total of the carrying emount of balenges with barks, tme deposits with
banks, loans arising from finoncing activities, invastrnent in debr instrurments, derivative instrurments, trode receivobles ond other finoncidl assets exchuding agquity
ivestmenss,

Fincncial ossets thal are neither past due or impaired

Cradit risk on cash and cesh equivalents and deposits with bonks/financial institutions is generally low o8 the said deposits have been made with borks/financial
institution who have been assigned high credir rating by international/domestic rating ogencies. Credit risk on derivative instruments is generally low as the Cernpany
anters into derivative coniracts with reputed banks,
Investmants of surplus funds ore made only with internclly onproved financial institutions/counter party and primarily include vestments in mutuof funds and baonk
depesit,

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, gre past due or impaired. Regarding the trade receivables, other receivables, investment in
preference shores ond other recelvables are nefther mpdired nor past dus, there were no indications as at Mareh 31, 2025, that defaulis in payment obligetions will
QCeLr.

Loans grising from financing cetivities and others - Credit qualily of financial assets and irnpainment foss

‘The carrying amount of loans represent the maximum cradit expasure net of provision for impairment. The maximum exposure to credit risk wos 7 206,65 croras o8 of
warch 31 2025 (March 3, 2024 - ¥ 752.55 crores)
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Credit risk for Joans is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit irits andt periodic monitoring of the creditworthiness of iis customers to
whichthe  Company grants credit terms In the normal course of business. Laans are unsecured and are derived frorm custormers located in Indic.

On cccount of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses the 3 staging Expected Cradit Loss (ECL) model to assess the impoairment gain or foss. The maodel takes into
account o continuing credit evaluation of Cornpany’s customers' financial condition: ageing of loans: the value and adequacy of collateral received from the customers;
the Company's historicol foss experience: and adjusted for forward looking information. The Company defines default as an event when there is no reasonable

expactation of recovery.
The Company makes aliowances for losses on its porifolio of loons on the basis of expected fulure collection from receivables. The future collection are estimated on the

basis of past coifection trend which are adjusted for changes in current circumstarces as well as expected changes in collection on account of future with respect fo
certain macre econormic foctors

®

-

Managoment of Licuidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its finonoial obligations os they become dus. The abective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient  liouidity ond ensure that funds ore avallable for use o5 and when required. The Company menages the iquidiry risk by maintaining cdequdte cosh reserves,
banking facilities and reserve barrewing facilities, by continuously manitoring forecast and aciuat cash fiows, and by matching the marturity profies of financial assets and
liabilifies. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liguid schemes of rmutual funds. which carry nofnegligible mark to market risks.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liobilities, incliding estimated interest payments as af March 3L 2028

{Tincrores)
. . . DusindrdioSh P Taval sontrechal
Corrying amount Duie in 2nd yeor yoar e aftar 3th yew cosiows
Non-cervatives S — R . e
Borcowings ; 214500 - T -
Debt securities U, -1, - I 231 e o -
Trade & Cther paycbles 0 - - -
Other fingnciolliablines 2604 - - - 2504
Totd K 3,287.51 253471 83133 - 26,04
The table below provides detals regarding the contractual mcturities of financial fiakilities, including estimated interest poyments as at March 3, 2024
(F inerores)
Camyingomount  Dus inlkt ves Bus In2nd yvaar Pusm }g;?oﬁh VDuecﬁersghyecr 'O?g;zz;zﬁmE
Nonederivatives e e e e e e
Borrowings - 8500 9258 " -
“““ 3.438.48 253288 38932 83133
0 Q75 - S
4815 22.1 - -
3.57235 264832 389,32 831,33

Ag per Liguidity Risk Manugement Framewark, Core Investments Comparies are exermpt from the applicability of Liquidity Risk Coverage norms.

{C) Manogement of Market Risk

Market risk comprises of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, interest raie risk orises from varicble rate barrowings that expose the Compony's financial
performance, financicd position and cash flows to the moverment in market rates of intersst,

The company is not exposed to foreign currency exchange risk as ol the financial instruments are denominated in the functional currency of the company ie. indian
Rupees (INR).

interest rate risk

Interest rade risk is the risk thot the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in market rates, The Company's exposure to

the riskof changes in market rates relates primariy o the Company's borrawings with floating/voricbie interest rates, The Company borrow through vearious
instrurnents which has floating ratef interest rate reset clouse which is sxposed to interest rare risk.

A5 at the end of reporting yeor, the Compuany had following variable interest rate borrowings:

% in croresy
As of Moren 31, As ot Morch 3.
2035 2024
e . - e 65660

Variable rote barrawings

Profit or loss is sensitive to Interest expense from variable rate borrowings o5 @ result of changss in interest rate. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates o
the bofance sheet date would result in an impact {decreasefincrease in case of profit! (oss) before tax of F Nil and T 400 crores on income for the year ended March
3, 2025 and March 3L 2024 respectively.

The above sensitivity anclysis assumes that ol other varicbles remcin constant and the borrowings outstanding of the reporting dote have been cutstanding for the
entire reporting period.
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Capitel nonagement

The Company's copitel managemsnt is intended 1o create valus for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.

The Cormpany determines the amaunt of capital required on the basis of annudl operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding
requirements ore met through equity, convertivle and non-convertible debt securities and other long«termyshort~term borrowings. The Company’s pelicy is aimed at
combination of shorf~-term and long-term borrewings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of reguictory capitd ratio viz. Capital to Risk-waighted
Assets Ratic (CRAR).

The management monitors the return on capital as well os the level of dividends to shareholders The Company's goal is to continue o be able to provide return fo
shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods,

Total debt includes off long and shart-term borrowings os disclosed in notes 14 and 15 1o the financial staterments,

Below are the key regulatory capital ratios af the year end dates

{Tincrores;
Ascl March 3, As at March 31,
s

CRAR(®Y B i . A140%
CRAR -~ Tier | copitel (%) _ . ’ e o e
CRAR- Terlicopiialin T _ I LT eeom T o
Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier i Capital (T in - -
qarest — . e = . A
Armount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrurments (Z in - -
crores) R _ .
L Coverage Ratio - VU RUUOUT - S . .
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THMF HOLDINGS LIMITEDR
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Additional disclosures given in terme of fhe Non Banking Financial Companies - Sysfermicadly Importfent Non Deposit Taking Company andd
Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 (os amended) and RB! Circular RBH2020-2i/24, DoR {NBFC) (PD} CC. No
1I7f02.10,001/202C-21 dated August 13, 2020 goplicabie for alf Core Investment Comnpanies.

{C} Cornponents of ANY and other related informotion
As ot March 3L As of March 3L

1 ANW os o % of Risk Weighted Assets
N 2 Unrea 'zed cppreaaﬂon in the beok vedue of quofred m\.esfmer‘rs {% incrores)

4 Levefog@ Ratio

(D) Investrnent in other CICs

(B Totol cmount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in another CIC (inchuding name of CICs) : Not Applicable
(i} Numbsr of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect copital contribution exceeds 10% of Gwned Funds: Not Applicable
(i) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution is less than 10% of Owned Funds: Not Applicable

(£} Off balance sheet exposure

As at #arch 3L Asce March 3,
2028 2024
_ 1 Oifbolance sheef exposure Zincroves) . e e L d%4ss 12300
.2 Financicl Guardnfes a5 a % of fotal off-balarce sheet exposure i
3N r-Financial Guarentee as o of totcl off-bolarce shest exposure N
SXPOSUre 10 gversess subsidiories ) Not Applicable
ssueg toany subsidiory b

(F} invesiments
@ in crores)

As b March 3), “Asat Morch 3l
20325 024
1 Value of investments
{0

__ _b) OQusideindia
B Prowswons for Deprecxcmcn
alin ndlia .
B O OufS\delndq L o
(i) Net Vclue of inves?men‘rs R
Lol ningia
b} Qutside Iny _ .
2 Movernent of provisions | el fowcrcs deprec:ction feix] investments
W Oqgrggg balance
(i} Add: Provisions made during the year
(i) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisons during the year

ot Ciosang bolence

{G) Business Ratios

As at Faarch 31, -+ Asal Machd
2025 2024
)V RetumonEquity Ro} 087 2230
L2 M’Re‘rum on Assers(RoA) - e . . acs B {1
" 3 "Nef profit par emplayes (2 incrorss) 080 0%

For the computation of Roa, net assets have been cansidered Net Assets have been derived in fine with the guidonce in parég;c;ah 3 (xvill of the REI Master
Dirgction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 201 dated August 25, 2016 {updated as on October 5, 20211

{H} Provisions and Contingencies
Breok up of Provisions and Contingencies shown in the statement of profit and loss

Fincrores)
As it March &, Asof #arch3h

2025 2024
Allowances for loan losses 5740 (152
Lo Aowenceforivestents 0 3 . 88 o
 irwestments written off . —— I . . . - S
A owancefor cfoubh‘ui csse‘ss e B e e -~ 9
__O‘r_her write off e o .5

i Conceniration of NPAs
_____ ® incrores)
= & 0s o % of fotd

Amoun? o POSE cscate

 HPA gecounts [ N
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(J} Ratings ossigned by eredit rating cgencles and migratiens of ratings inrespect of all credit faciliies and debt instrumenits during the yean

inginsnents
Rating Yo Long-term bark Shori-term bank Seeursd Non- .
cganey tocditios fciities srible dobeniuzes Unsecured NCDs  Commmercid papers - Perpeiuct delbt
| p— MA MA MA CRISLAAMSTABLE  CRISLAW _ CRE
T Maich NA . A . MA GRISIL AAPOSITWVE  CRISIL A+ CR
s ona March3,2025  MA N& RA ICRAAAHSTABIE  ICRAAT+
March 31, 2024 ICRA AA [ STABLE MA o NA 0 ICRAAAJSTABIE ICRA AN
s cage  Merchaizoes A O Na_  MAUTTUT T UNA L CAREAI
e Marcn32024 CAREAAWSTABLE  CAREAN o NA  CAREAAH/STABLE  CAREAM
(¥} Sectorci exposure
As ot Mareh 31, 2028 . As o March 31 2024
Toral Exposrs Toted Exposure "
(inchudes on badence Peresringe of Gross  (includss op bedanes . Pwﬁ;ﬁ ?;S{ o
Sactors : shoet and off- GrossNPAs - WPAstololdiexposrs  shostahdofi- - GrossNPas e ;’m
balance shest . pitaisocter  bolmwestest - R el
EXPOSUE) . exposure) *

_1. Agricuturs ard Alied Activities

2 Industry w - - -
Total

"3 Serviges o egoop -

£} Exposurs to Capital Market

(Fincrores)
ParficuiEs As Gt Morch 33 Azt Morch 3,
. 2025 2024
Direct investrnent in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity &7.38 731514

@ arented mutual funds the corpus of which i@ nof exclusively invested in corporate debt:
T Ediiences against shares / bands / debbeniures or ofher securifies or on clean basis 1o individudls for Comrmmmem
(§) Investrment in shares {inchuding POs / ESOPS). convertible bends, convertivle debentures, and units of
equity criented mutuat funds;

. Advanees for any other purposs:

G of weity ariented mutucl funds are taken as primary security:
Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the cofiateral security of shares or - -
converticle bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity criented rutucl funds te. where the

(v primaty security other than shares | convertible bonds / convertibie debentures / units of squity
eriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances:

T Sattred and undecured advancss fo stockbrokers and guorcntess issued on behdf of stockbrokers z -
W ond market makers:
Loans sanctioned to corparate against the security of shores | bonds / debeniures or other securities or ' P -
(vi) on clean basis for meeting promoters contribution to the equity of new companies in andicipation of
T'Gisiﬂg rgSQUICeEs,

(i} Bricige loans fo companies against expected equity flows / issues:
 Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks In respect of primary ssus of shares or convertinl
D4 omdls or convertible debentures or unifs of equity oriented mutud! funds:

i) Financing to stackbrokers for margin froding:

Al exposres to Alternative vestment Funds: T mm——— - _
4l Caragory !
O ay Categary it

(i} Category il

Toidl sxposura fo copiid market - . 59.38 7.315.14

) Disclosure on licuidity risk under RBIf2019-20/88 DORNBFC (PD) CC. No.102/0330.001/2019-20 dated Novernber 04, 2019 on Liguidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financict Companies and Core Investment Cornpardes,

i, Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Mo, of Significant Counterpariies (Fincrores) % of Toicd Daposite % of Totd Liobiiles
326108 NA 9595%

Five {5 Nos)
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i Top i0 Borrowings (s & % of Total Borrowings)

- I o ' ' . % of Tofud
Particulars o & in crores) Borrowings
TenfONesh - I S 3l3sga  _w6Mn
iv. Funding Concentration based on significant instrrnent / product
Momoof the nstrement - - ' o ' @inerorast % of Toio Liciiltas
Commercial Paper (CP) L e B ' - 0.00%
Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) : e B _ineos 0 raax
inier-Corporaie Deposhts (CD) I 2HS00 5t
Tord T - 326108 95557,
v, Stock Ratics
L - _ & in crores)
Particulors : ) : oot Public Funds Totad Licbifities Tota Asseis
e 000% e OOOE L
............ MA . NA
S6.3%% 2509%

Note:
Interest acorued bt not due has been excluded from Borrowings/ Tetal Publc funds

vi, instifutional set-up fer kiquidity risk management
TMF Holdings Limited (TMFHL) has constituted an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO), to ovarses ligquidity risk managarment, ALCQ consists of Non-Exscutive
Directors, Manager (KMP), Chief Financial Officer, Chief Digital and Marketing Officer, Chief Credit Officer, Chief Risk Officer and Head - Trecsury. The ALCO meetings ore
held every quarter, TMFHL has a Risk Management Committee (RMC). a sub-committes of the Board. which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed
including Jouidity risk monagernent (LRM). ALCO's views on liouidity and asser ligbility management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a quarterly basis.
The ALCO and RMC olso updates the Board af reguiar intervols.

For the previous year ia. Finoncial Year 2023-24

(i} Funding Conceniration bosed on significant counterparty tboth deposits and borrowings}

e of Significant Counferpastios {® Incrores} %of Toted Deposts % of Toidd Lichiltias
. 346853 o
(B Top 20 iorge deposits (% of Totcd Depositsy .
ot Applicasie R — ettt et ettt e e e .
{il} Top 10 EBorrowings (a3 a % of Totd! Borrowings)
: o % of Total
Beshoars {¥ingroras) Bomowings
Teal0res) e e e
(v} Funding Concentration based on sigrificant instrumant / product
Narne of the instrument (¥ iy croras) % of Total Licbiities
e o o o - 89629 . 25.06%
Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) o I ‘ L2saew o TI0R%
Inter-Corporete Deposits (ICD) _ 8500 258%
Jeial 352348 98.53%
{v) Stock Ragios
. (#in ceores)
Particuiors o Tord Publs Funds Tota Lablittes Totof Assats |
Commercicipapersasanef L e 16.84% L 2508% . 10.03%
Nen Convertiole Detentures {originel rratirity of loss than o ye : NA N NA
Other short~term liobilities as a % of 30.48% 4538% 1815%

Note:
Interest accrued but not due hos been excluded from Borrowings/Totol Public funds

(v2) insiutional sat-up for fiquidity risk mxmogement
TMF Holdings Limited {TMFHL) has an Asset Liabllity Supervisory Committes (ALCO). o Boord level Sub-committee to overses Fquicity risk management. ALCO consists
of Independent Director, Mancging Director and Group Chief Firancdl Officer. The ALCO meetings are held once it 3 months. TMPHL has o Risk Management
Committas (RMC). a sub-commitiee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed including liquidity risk management, ALCO'S views on
liquidity and asset lobiity management are presented to RMC for s independent review on & guarterly bosis The ALCO and RMC olso updates the Board of regular

intervals,
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(M) Disclosure on Asset Classification and Provisions s per k31 notification RBIZ019-20/170 DOR (NBFCL.CCPDNOIOP/Z2103062019-20 dated 13th
Harch 2020 (as amended) '

Asset classfication Gross Carrying Loss Adowarnss Net Carrying Provisions tegidred  Difforonce behwosn
Asset Clossficetion s per REL cxpernd AS107  Amcundospering  (Provisions) os recuired Arvicut aspeor RACP norms  Ind AS 109 provisions
Nerms for firancicl year AS wnder ind AS 109 ared IRACP norrns
2024-25 . .
1 z 3 T P Fodt

Performing Asset

Subosdard e

DoubtfuluptolYear
Ho3Years

Morethon3Vears

Loss B e Stage-3 — - S ~ e -
Ciher iterms such as gudr'cthf'e'es. tage-l - . e o . ) ) U

foan commitments. etc. which are
inthe scope of ind ASI09 butner © 7 gggen 77T
covered under current income
Recognition, Asset Clossification
and Provisioning (IRACF) norms

_—S“;ug;-?:w— - - ~ — - MR -

20565 082 5958
205.65 £0.40 45.25 082 59.58
Asset clossifioation Gross Carrying Loss Allowaonces Nat Carrying Provisions required  Difference betwaen
Assat Classfication G per Rl opor D AS 9 Amourfospering  (Frovisions) aa required Arncunt G periRACP norms  Ind AS 105 provisions
Nerms for finoncial year AS under Ind AS 109 . and IRACP nerms
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~ 75256 ) TTagss T o
75254 30t 74955 30 -
Doubtidup o1 Year - ——— i e o .
lo3Years ——BEeed e T e :
MorethaniYears . St - - - - -
T Stage-3 o - = - - -
SubtordofNPA L - - - - -
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40 Ctier disclosurss

(e} No penalfies were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the year ended March 31, 2025, (year ended March 31, 2024:  Nif)
0] The Company does not have any exposure in redl estate sector during the vear ended March 31, 2025, (year ended March 31, 2024 T Nil)
i} The Company being CIC, the prudeniial exposure limits in respect o single borrower limit 7 group borrawer limit is not applicable,

{d) The Company is only registered with Reserve Bank of India as o Systemically important Non-Deposit Taking Non-Barking Financial
Company ag Core Investment Company (CIC).

te} The Company has not entered infe any derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2025 or holds any exposure in respect of derivative
transactions as on March 31, 2025, (vear ended March 31, 2024: € Mil)

i} The Company has not drawn down any armounts from the reserves during the year ended March 31, 2025 except os disclosed in Stoternent
of Changes in Equity (year ended March 31, 2024: 3 Nil).

{g! The Company has not sold any Financiol Assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the year ended
Mareh 3, 2025, (yeor ended March 31, 2024: TN

(h} There are no loans to directors and ifs relatives, enfities assodiated with directors and their reiatives & senior officers and their reiatives.

(i} The Company has not purchased any nen-performing financial assets during the year endad March 31, 2025, (year ended March 31, 2024: T Ni))

) Overseas cssels (for those with joint ventures and subsicicries abroad), The Company does not have any Joint venture or subsidiary abroad,
hence not applicabie.

(k) Custorner Complaints:

The were nil customer complaints during the vear due fo no customer interaction,

& The amount of unsecured advances stood af F #45.26 (March 31, 2024: T 749.54 crores). Further, the Compeany has not granted unsecured
advances aganst collateral of intangible securifies such as charge over the rights, licenses or authority.

im} The Company has not obtdined any Regisiration/ ficence/ authorisation. by whalever name called, from other financial sector regulators.
{n) The Company has not fraded/invested in crypto currency or virtual currency for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

{0} There is no unhadged foraign currency exposure as on March 31, 2025 and March 31 2024. To mitigate the risk arising in case foreign currency
exposure, the company underfakes derivative fransactions for hedging foreign currency transactions on balance sheet assets and liabilities
as per its approved Risk Manogernent Policy. The poiicy has mandated 100% hedge for forsign exposures. The company has ideniified fist of
banks to enter info hedging fronsaction with an cggregote totd limit and fenure as per the policy.

(p} There Is no breach of covenant for any berrowings underiaken by the Company.

{c} The Board of Dirgctors of TMFL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. at its meeting held on June 4, 2024. approved (subject to the
raquisite regulatory and other approvais! @ Scheme of Arrangement for amalgamation of the TMFL with and into TCL with appointed date
of April 1, 2024, The Scheme has been approved by the NCLT. Mumbai Bench on May 1 2025, TMFL and TCL has received all other
recessary regulatory approvals and the scheme is effective from May 8, 2028, The Company wil receive equity shares in the rafio of 37100,
i.g. 18.38,67.498 aquity shares having face value of T 100 each of Tata Capiiat Limited in lieu of 49.69,3%.176 equity shares having face value of
100/~ of TMFL. The Compuny has accounted for fransfer of net assets in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India and hos recognised the excess of considerafion received (investrment value) over the carrying value of net assets iransferred as ot April
1, 2024, amounting to ¥ 77085 crores in statement of profif or loss.

(r} The Company has reported ¥ 64107 crores under exceptional ferns of income and expenditure during the year ended March 31 2025, cut of
which ¥ 12878 crores is towards provision of impairment of loans and investiment in TMFBSL and ¥ 770.85 crores is towards disposdl on
account of rmerger of TMFL to TCL. (Refer Note 40(g)). (year ended March 31, 2024 T N,

{8) The company does not have any divergence in provisioning and gross NPA reported by company and assessed by RBI during it's last inspection.

{t) No modified opinion{s) or other reservation(s} has been mentionad in the audit report or mited raview report in respsct of the financial results
of any previous financidl year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the reportable period.
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(i} There are no tronsactions which are not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income duwring the year

ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(v} Current perlod figures are shown in bald prints.
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Schedule to the
Bolonce Sheet of o nen-deposit foking Core investmant Company

(Disclosure s per Annexure § of Master Direction - Core Investrment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016}
. (¥ in crores)
PR . Arround
Lickilties sids; Armount outsionding ovardus
(Moans ond advaness avadied by the CIC Inclusive of interest ceonued thereon bt not paiet
@) Debentures tSecured T T T T T e e e
:Unsecured (Note 1) o 11608
. ____ lother thonfalling within the meaning of public deposits)
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B -1 S
_ -From baonks - -
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_ o Assetsonhire
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- — 20000
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L tedEquty o T e
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S)3orrower group-wise dassification of asssets financed os in (2) covwd (3) chove
{#incrores)
Arnpunt net of provisions
Cotegory Socured Unsaeured Told
....... 1 Related Parties )
@ SUbSIdIOﬂES
T Compames in the same group

e O_fher reloted partiss ) ) R

2 OTher ThGP Related BGH‘IQS . . L . T T e o mmmmm— R

|o‘u! ) e L - 14625 4525
{&¥nvestar group-wiss dassification of all invesimanis (current-and long ferm) in shares ond secirities {both quoted and unguoted):
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Muorket Voiuef Brack up or Book Vedue
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fote I R ! Represents Zero coupan debenfures v-hzch are gross of accr vaiue of prermium
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